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Corporate Structure

NCIES

As at 31 March 2024
202453 H31H

BGMC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
EFERERER A F
(Stock Code: 1693) (Note 1)
(B35 : 1693) (AfaE1)

BGMC Malaysia Limited

BGMC Holdings Berhad
BGMC Corporation
Sdn Bhd BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd
80% 51% 95%
Built-Master Headway BGMC BRAS BGMC E
Engineering Construction T state
Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd (Note 2) Sdn Bhd
(Btat2)
Built-Master
Elevator
Engineering
Sdn Bhd
Notes:
1. Unless otherwise stated, all subsidiaries are wholly-owned by BGMC International Limited.
2. On 26 April 2023, BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company as the management control and economic interest in BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd

has been acquired by reNIKOLA Sdn Bhd. As a result, the financial results of BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd will no longer be consolidated by the Company, while the Company
remains as registered owner of 95% shares in BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd until reNIKOLA Sdn Bhd exercises the call option or BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd exercises the put
option, details of which are disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022.

1. BSEHPBI) - BrERE R A BB IER B R A A2 EHR °

2. BR2023F4 /26 H - #158eNIKOLA Sdn Bhd E4CfEBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd &) EFE1E #IE R A/ B 75 » BEIIEBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd T~ /37K 23 Al &
2] o Bt - KR EETEE BFBGMC Bras Power Sdn BhdBEI 5348 + 17K 23 G113 /BBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd 95% JR 178975 AT 5 & B £reNIKOLA
Sdn Bhd7T1Z 538 RB##E 5BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd7TI€3208 A - B E #H#HERA L 7] H A A2022F9 721 HHI# 1F -
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As we step into 2024, | am honored to be the Chairman of BGMC International
Limited. This year marks a pivotal moment for both the Company and the
Malaysian construction industry, characterized by innovation, sustainability, and
resilience. Our collective commitment to these principles will define our path
forward and drive our success.

Malaysia’s Economy

Bank Negara Malaysia announced that the Malaysian economy expanded by
4.2% in the 1%t quarter of 2024, up from 2.9% in the 4t quarter of 2023, fuelled by
increased private spending and a positive shift in exports. This demonstrates the
country's notable resilience and growth amidst global uncertainties. Anticipating
a gross domestic product ("GDP") growth rate of 4.5% for 2024, Malaysia is
steadily recovering from the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects. The primary factors
contributing to this growth are strong domestic demand, impressive export
performance, and substantial investments in infrastructure and technology.

The government's strategic efforts, including the Twelfth Malaysia Plan (2021-
2025), focus on sustainable development, economic diversification, and
technological innovation. These initiatives provide a strong foundation for
the construction industry to thrive and contribute significantly to the nation’s
economic progress.

Industry Overview

The Malaysian construction industry is projected to grow by 4.4% in real
terms in 2024, supported by rising foreign and domestic investments and the
advancement of numerous infrastructure and energy projects. Continued growth
will be driven by strong domestic demand, alongside improvements in inflation,
unemployment rates, and income levels. To jumpstart the recovery of the
construction industry, the economy will need several mega projects, which will
subsequently create multiplier effects throughout the economy. The construction
industry is expected to record an annual average growth rate of 5.7% between
2025 and 2028, through investment in leisure and hospitality infrastructure,
manufacturing facilities, public transportation expansions and renewable energy
projects.

Business Outlook and Prospect

The Group continues to implement various measures i.e. prudent cost control,
monetise low-performing assets to mitigate risks associated with financial, labour
cost and material price escalation in order to maintain financial and operations
stability of our businesses. Backed by the Group's close monitoring, we will
continue to execute our strategy to ensure the sustainability and growth of the
Company. The Group will be actively sourcing for new business opportunities to
strengthen the recurring revenue stream.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREBE

The future of the Malaysian construction industry is bright, with vast opportunities
for growth and development. However, we must remain agile and adaptable
to navigate the challenges that lie ahead. By fostering a culture of innovation,
sustainability, and excellence, we are well-positioned to lead the industry and
create lasting value for our stakeholders.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would also like to extend my sincere
appreciation to our financiers, business partners, shareholders and relevant
authorities for their continuous patience, support and co-operation throughout
our business journey and despite the challenges faced. The Board and the
management will continue to innovate, evolve and remain committed to
delivering value creation to our stakeholders.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

BGMC International Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED N

Business Review

BGMC is a full-fledged, integrated solutions provider operating in two business
sectors. One of them is the Construction Services sector (comprising Building and
Structures segment, Energy Infrastructure segment, Mechanical and Electrical
segment, and Earthworks and Infrastructure segment) which undertakes
primarily construction service contracts not exceeding five years. The other is the
Concession and Maintenance sector which undertakes Public Private Partnership
("PPP") contracts with a duration of around 20 years.

LR

EBNERAZEENBRT RHERER  RMEXS
BHEE - HE-REERBEH(HBFREED
BB BERERDE  MRRETORAR LTS RE
BOREK) - TRARTBEAEDFNEERBES
#) o A— RFFHEERREE RS - ARLO0FH

RILER([PPPIEL -

b) LRTEBERSEMTHRESL

Core Business Segment/Model What BGMC Does

BT 28, X BREREREE

Construction Building and Structures Focuses on construction of low-rise and high-rise residential and commercial

Services segment properties, factories, as well as government led infrastructure and facility projects.
MRS BT REEn & STFREERSEBEERPMEDNE - ITRAMBFETEEZRREEBE
¥ o
Energy Infrastructure Has two previously independent businesses:
segment (@) design and construction of medium and high voltage power substations; and

(b) installation of medium and high voltage underground cabling systems. Is also
responsible for developing and constructing the utility scale solar power plant.

BEIREZE & BB MIBSTAE L ER

(@ REtkEERBRSBEEEY &

R E B BB RNEREARIELAGE

gé's%?n °©
Mechanical and Electrical Focuses on bringing value-added engineering expertise to the installation
segment of mechanical and electrical components and equipment for buildings and

infrastructure, drawing on its all-round capabilities from design and planning to
installation of the mechanical and electrical facilities.
Wt 2 B+ 53 8D STRAETREZNRERH MRENTRIBHIEEIRZERMNE - &R
HHBERIENRA AR BIAE LR T

A195% E AR MRS

fTERK

Concession and Build, Own and Operate A concession to build a solar power plant, and to generate and to sell such power

Maintenance ("BOO") model generated from the plant to national utility company for 21 years. The Group
had entered into agreements to dispose of interest in 95% ordinary shares in the
subsidiary which holds the solar power plant on 24 March 2022, the details of
which are set out in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022. The
completion of disposal has been announced on 26 April 2023.

FrRriR s Lme | 2% BEREE —IBRRTR AR ERBEXGREER YRS EREERHERH
(IBOO HE BENTERXLAREAT] - BHNEF - REBECA AL ERERENBA

A BIR20220F3 A24 B A L ARSRESS B - BRIRE
BHEHRARFHEA2022F9A21 BRREK - HEBEEMR2023F4726HE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Construction Services Sector

The Construction Services sector contributed RM116.5 million, or 99.5%, to the
consolidated revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 (‘FY2024"
or “Year”), against RM107.5 million, or 97.6%, recorded for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 ("FY2023").

During FY2024, the Construction Services sector has secured a new contract
with a fixed contract sum of RM540.6 million. As at 31 March 2024, we have an
outstanding order book of RM610.4 million which will keep the Group busy for
another 18 months. The Group’s major ongoing projects are as follows:

PRI A

EERISLAE AR E 202493 A31 B IEEE (12024
ME R REE WAL ELESREEE 116588
A 995% » MAE2023F3 A31H I HEE
(12023814 |) B A107.58 BME4E197.6% °

2024815 - RERBESCDES—HETANE
R AS406 8 BMERFIIE L) - R2024F3H318 -
HZMBI04BBEMEFAIRTKETE - AL AEE
RRFNAEARATIEMAREIT - AEBHARAIERE
HEWT :

Project Name and Description

HE BB REN

The Sky Seputeh: Construction of two 37-storey towers with 290 apartment
units, car parks and other facilities at Taman Seputeh, Wilayah Persekutuan,
Malaysia.

The Sky Seputeh : 7 5§ 2k 78 25 Taman Seputeh,
Wilayah Persekutuan &% M EE37 /8 89 RAE - B$E290
ERNTE - FHIGREMEBRE o

Bangsar 61: Construction of Earthworks, Basement and Associated Works for a
4-storey basement car park at Bangsar, KL, Malaysia.

=61 RERADTRIE DD A4EHEFEE
IR - HERIEETE -

WAKL: Additional modifications and upgrades to the facade of an existing
25-storey hotel building on the Lot 1275, Seksyen 57, Jalan Raja Chulan, Wilayah

Persekutuan, in the City of Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

WAKL : R Phar R T AR RLE RE S @
127530 ER 3R 75 1925 88 J& AAZ S0 N7 T 89 BT his e Fn
T4 -
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Building and Structures Segment

As the leading segment of the Construction Services sector and the Group as
a whole with sizeable contracts on hand, Building and Structures contributed
RM115.0 million, or 98.2%, to the Group's consolidated revenue in FY2024,
compared to RM94.3 million, or 85.7% in FY2023.

During FY2024, this segment has secured a new project with a fixed contract
sum of RM540.6 million. The Group continues to switch its focus to (i) increase
the productivity and work done for the existing ongoing projects in order to
complete the ongoing projects soonest possible; and (i) preserving the Group's
resources in procuring the suitable projects. Meanwhile, the Group’s operation
level and construction activities have further improved as a result of the
implementation of National Recovery Plan by the Government of Malaysia.

As at 31 March 2024, the Building and Structures segment had an outstanding
order book of RM610.4 million as compared to RM157.2 million as at 31 March
2023.

Other Segments

During FY2024, the Energy Infrastructure segment has not contributed any
revenue as compared with RM9.2 million or 8.4% of the consolidated revenue in
FY2023.

On the other hand, the Mechanical and Electrical segment has recorded a
revenue of RM1.5 million or 1.3% contribution to the consolidated revenue in
FY2024, as compared with RM3.9 million or 3.5% contribution to consolidated
revenue in FY2023.

Both the segments are running low in the remaining order book due to non-
procurement of new project during FY2024. Though the Group possesses
the track record of securing and completing these projects, the procurement
activities are nevertheless kept to a minimum due to the challenging market
conditions. The Group foresees the revenue contribution to be insignificant
going forward and has therefore re-allocated the resources to the Building and
Structures segment.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Concession and Maintenance Sector

BGMC completed disposal of its interest in April 2023 with respect to one PPP
contract, the Solar Power Purchase Agreement signed with Tenaga Nasional
Berhad (“TNB"), a sole power distributor for Peninsular Malaysia, which is
operated under BOO model.

BOO Model - Large Scale Solar Photovoltaic (“LSSPV”) Power Plant

This concession contract that the Group has entered into is a contract to build a
LSSPV power plant, to generate and to sell the power generated from the plant
to TNB. The plant has an output capacity of 30 megawatts alternate current and
is located at Kuala Muda, Kedah, Malaysia. The LSSPV power plant has managed
to procure the commercial operation date on 22 March 2022 and has since then
started to generate and sell the solar power to TNB even though the Group
has yet to accept the construction of the LSSPV power plant fully from the
Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Commissioning ("EPCC") contractor.
The full and final handover of the LSSPV power plant will only occur when
the Group is satisfied with the completion of the defective work by the EPCC
contractor. During FY2024, the BOO business has a revenue of RM0.2 million as
compared to RM5.1 million in FY2023. The reduction is due to the disposal of
BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘BGMC Bras Power") on 26 April 2023.

The Group has however entered into agreements on 24 March 2022 for the
proposed disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares of BGMC Bras Power, which
the proposal was approved in the extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM") of
the Company held on 7 October 2022. The completion of the disposal was
subsequently achieved on 26 April 2023. For details, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 21 September 2022 and the announcements of the
Company dated 27 June 2022 and 26 April 2023.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022, the
main reasons for the Group to dispose the interest in 95% ordinary shares of
BGMC Bras Power is to allow the Group (i) to settle the disputes existed with the
previous financing partners; (i) to avoid investing additional funds required for
the completion of the project; (iii) to recoup the investments made and to re-use
it for other purpose. The proposed disposal was completed on 26 April 2023 and
the Group has recognised a gain on disposal of RM10.1 million in FY2024.

Notwithstanding the disposal of this LSSPV power plant project, the Group will,
nevertheless, invest more resources to procure a new project that resembles the
features of this sector. As the main reason for the disposal of BGMC Bras Power
is not to quit the business but for those reasons listed above, the Group believes
that it will have more experience and knowledge to build a model that suits the
Group better going forward.

BGMC International Limited
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group recorded a total revenue of RM117.1 million in FY2024 as compared
to RM110.1 million in FY2023. The increase in revenue is due to the Group having
secured a new project with a fixed contract sum of RM540.6 million.

Gross (Loss)/Profit

The Group recorded a total gross loss of RM7.3 million in FY2024 as compared
to a gross profit of RM4.3 million in FY2023. The deterioration of gross profit and
gross profit margin was due to an increase in raw materials price as well as an
increase in construction costs in order to expedite the completion of a major
Building and Structure project.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RM1.2 million in FY2024, as compared with the net profit of
approximately RM11.9 million attributable to the owners of the Company in
FY2023. The deterioration in net profit for FY2024 was mainly attributable to,
among others, (i) deterioration of gross profit as mentioned above; (i) increase
in legal and professional fees; and (iii) reversal of a provision for performance
bond was recorded in FY2023 but no such reversal of provision was recorded in
FY2024.

Other Income
Other income increased from RM1.2 million recorded in FY2023 to RM5.8 million

in FY2024 mainly due to written back of goods and services tax payable which
amounted to RM4.2 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses increased from RM15.7 million in FY2023
to RM17.2 million in FY2024. The increase is mainly due to the Group having
incurred additional legal and professional fees for the project.

Finance Cost

Finance costs for FY2024 were RM1.6 million as compared to RM1.1 million in
FY2023 due to increase in redeemable secured loan stocks interest expenses.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group recorded income tax credit of RM0.3 million in FY2024 as compared to
income tax expenses of RM0.5 million recorded in FY2023 due to overprovision
of income tax expenses.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Net gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by dividing the net debts by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) decreased substantially from 0.28 times
in FY2023 to a negative ratio of 0.24 times due to settlement of advances in
FY2024.

Cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits) stood at RM37.0 million
as at 31 March 2024 as compared with RM29.9 million as at 31 March 2023,
representing an increase of RM7.1 million.

Net Current Assets

Net current assets of the Group stood at RM19.1 million as at 31 March 2024, as
compared with RM107.8 million as at 31 March 2023 mainly due to asset classified
as held for sale of RM213.9 million was recorded in FY2023 while no such asset
was recorded in FY2024 after completion of disposal of BGMC Bras Power.

For the going concern analysis, please refer to Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, "Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements”.
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Treasury Policies

The Group's financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and
controlled at the corporate level. Bank borrowings of the Group are all
denominated in RM and on a floating - rate basis. It is the Group's policy not to
enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure mainly consisted of procurement of construction machinery
and computer equipment, which was funded by hire purchase and internally
generated funds. The Group has acquired computer equipment of RM0.02 million
in FY2024.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currency of BGMC's operation, assets and liabilities is denominated
in RM. Therefore, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign exchange
risk and has not employed any financial instrument for hedging, except for Hong
Kong Dollar denominated bank balances which is not material to the Group as a
whole.

Significant Investment Hold
The Group did not hold any other significant investment during FY2024.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

Save as disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during FY2024.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has 99 employees as compared to 107 as at 31
March 2023. Total staff costs incurred in FY2024 were RM11.0 million as compared
to RM10.6 million recorded in FY2023. The Group has taken immediate actions to
review and reorganize the workforce required to run the operation and projects
more efficiently.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Remuneration is determined by reference to prevailing market terms and in
accordance with the performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Periodic in-house training is provided to enhance the knowledge of
the workforce. Meanwhile, external training programs conducted by qualified
personnel are also attended by employees to enhance their skills set and working

experience.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) which
became effective on 9 August 2017 (“Listing Date”), being the date of listing
of the shares of the Company (“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange, to enable the
Board to grant share options to eligible participants giving them an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
there was no outstanding share option granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities up to the date of this annual report
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Future Prospects

Despite facing challenges in the construction sector, BGMC remains optimistic
about the future and is strategically positioned to leverage emerging
opportunities. Our comprehensive approach to overcoming current obstacles
and focusing on sustainable growth, industrialised building system, and
community engagement will drive our success.

The construction industry in Malaysia plays a pivotal role in the nation's
economic development, contributing significantly to gross domestic product
and employment. The sector is characterized by diverse segments including
residential, non-residential, and infrastructure projects. The Malaysian
government has introduced several economic initiatives, such as the National
Energy Transition Roadmap (“NETR") and the New Industrial Master Plan ("NIMP”)
2030, which have provided a robust pipeline of opportunities for the construction
industry. However, the sector is also experiencing challenges such as fluctuating
material costs, labour shortages and regulatory changes.

BGMC International Limited
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We are dedicated to expanding our project portfolio with a focus on
environmental sustainability. This includes implementing eco-friendly building
materials in our construction processes. Our commitment to sustainability will not
only reduce our carbon footprint but also align with global trends and regulatory
requirements, ensuring long-term viability and competitiveness. Additionally, we
are exploring opportunities in renewable energy projects, including solar and
biomass energy installations, to diversify our portfolio and contribute to a greener
future.

We will continue to prioritize training programs for our team. By equipping our
workforce with the necessary skills to meet modern construction challenges,
we aim to ensure that BGMC remains competitive in the industry. Our focus on
workforce development will help drive innovation, productivity, and excellence
in project execution.

The construction industry is facing headwinds from narrowing margins due to
the uncertainty of building material prices, rising finance costs, and a shortage of
skilled workers. By staying agile and adaptable, we will navigate these challenges
and identify new opportunities for growth. Our proactive approach to market
conditions will enable us to sustain our construction segment and capitalize on
emerging trends.

The Malaysian construction industry is expected to recover gradually, supported
by government initiatives and private sector investments in infrastructure,
residential, and commercial projects. BGMC is well-positioned to capitalize on
these opportunities through our strategic focus on sustainability, innovation,
community engagement, safety, quality, strategic project acquisition, and
workforce development.

In conclusion, BGMC is well-equipped to overcome current challenges and
capitalize on future opportunities. Our strategic focus on sustainability,
innovation, community engagement, safety, quality, strategic project acquisition,
and workforce development will drive our growth and success in the coming
years. We remain committed to delivering high-quality results and upholding our
reputation for excellence in the construction industry.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors and Senior Management

ESERSREEE

Directors
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee ("Dato’” Michael Teh"), aged 41, was appointed as a Director
on 18 November 2016 and is now the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director. He is also a member of each of the Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. Dato’ Michael Teh is currently the chief executive
officer and a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (‘BGMC Corporation”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is also a director of all
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for overall management,
corporate development and strategic planning of the Group. He graduated from
the University of the West of England, Bristol in England with a Bachelor's degree
in Law in July 2006. Dato’ Michael Teh is a nephew of Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming
Choon (who resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 7 October
2020), a controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, he is a director of
Seeva International Limited which holds about 19.1% of the issued Shares in the
Company.

Dato’ Michael Teh has over 17 years of experience in the construction field.
Prior to his joining of BGMC Corporation as its project director in April 2011, he
joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a housing and commercial property
development company in Malaysia, in September 2006, as a personal assistant
to the managing director for about five years. He was responsible for providing
guidance on contract and commercial practices and procedures to the managing
director, project managers or other operational staff.

BGMC International Limited
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Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman, /ndependent Non-executive Director
and Chairman

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin"), aged 64, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director (“INED”) and Chairman on
7 October 2020. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin has years of experience in the real estate sector, including
but not limited to property valuation, property investment and property
management. Datuk Kamalul Arifin was appointed by the Malaysian Government
as the Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Pelaburan
Hartanah Berhad from 2006 to 2018. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is currently an INED of
Sentral REIT, a real estate investment trust ("REIT") listed on Bursa Malaysia under
the stock name SENTRAL.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin obtained his Bachelor of Estate Management from Universiti
Teknologi MARA and his Master of Business Administration from Ohio University
in the United States of America. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is a fellow of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, United Kingdom, the Royal Institution of
Surveyors Malaysia, and the Malaysian Institute of Property and Facility Managers.
He is also a registered property manager with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers,
Estate Agents and Property Managers.

Kua Choh Leang, Independent Non-executive Director

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua"), aged 60, was appointed as an INED on 3 July 2020.
He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. He is also a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board. His experience as auditor will add to the
Board's expertise in the areas of performance, risk management and reporting.

Mr. Kua obtained his Malaysian Higher School Certificate from Tarc College in
1983. Mr. Kua has over 35 years' experience in auditing and business advisory. Mr.
Kua held various positions with Ernst & Young since 10 December 1984 up to 30
September 2019, where his last positions were executive director since January
2005 up to December 2008, and partner since January 2009 up to September
2019.

Mr. Kua was a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Malaysian Institute of Accountants since 1991 and 1993, respectively, up to
present.

Mr. Kua has been appointed as an INED of KESM Industries Berhad, a company
listed on Bursa Malaysia (Stock Code: 9334), since 1 May 2023.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Datuk Kang Hua Keong, /ndependent Non-executive Director

Datuk Kang Hua Keong ("“Datuk Kang"), aged 64, was appointed as an INED
on 24 June 2022. He is the chairman of the Risk Committee of the Board. He is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Datuk Kang has been engaged in the information technology industry involving
in hardware manufacturing, distribution and retail including software business,
e-commerce and international trade business since 1985. Datuk Kang graduated
from the National Taiwan Ocean University (formerly known as National
Taiwan College of Marine Science and Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering.

Datuk Kang is currently the chairman of Danong Group, a council member of
the National Employment Council, Prime Minister's Office of Malaysia, a council
member of the National Recovery Council, Prime Minister's Office of Malaysia,
managing director and chief executive officer of SMB Connection Sdn. Bhd.
(former publisher of SME Connect magazine for small and medium-sized
enterprise community), a director of SMB Solutions Management Sdn. Bhd.. Datuk
Kang was a former director of Asia Media Group Berhad, a company incorporated
in Malaysia, the shares of which are listed on Bursa Malaysia (stock code: 0159).

Senior Management
Dato’ Michael Teh, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, 41 years old

Dato’ Michael Teh is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the
overall business of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors” in
this section above for his biography.

Chiang Wai Lam, Project Director, 45 years old

Chiang Wai Lam is a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible for
supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the Group. He graduated
from the University of Sheffield Hallam, England with a Bachelor’s degree in
Building Construction Management in September 2002. He has around 17 years
of experience in the construction field. Prior to joining BGMC Corporation as
a project manager in April 2011, he held the position of quantity surveyor at
Modular Construction, a construction company in Malaysia, from October 2002 to
July 2007, where he was responsible for cost estimation and contract documents.
In October 2007, he joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a construction
company in Malaysia, as a senior quantity surveyor/cost planner for 3 years. He
was responsible for contract documents, cost estimation and cost planning.
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Ee Kian Yiaw, Project Director, 47 years old

Ee Kian Yiaw is currently a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the construction projects and energy
infrastructure projects of the Group. He graduated from the University of
Hertfordshire in England with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering in June 2000.
He has over 22 years of experience in the construction field. Prior to his joining
BGMC Corporation in April 2011, Ee Kian Yiaw joined Mie Industrial Sdn. Bhd., a
construction company in Malaysia, in November 2000 as a trainee engineer and
was subsequently promoted to project engineer. He was responsible for planning
and implementing construction projects. In February 2004, Ee Kian Yiaw joined
Best Ventures Sdn. Bhd. as a project engineer for 7 years. He was responsible for
supervising and monitoring the construction projects.

Joan Ong May Ean, Chief Financial Officer, 41 years old

Joan Ong May Ean is a Chief Financial Officer of the Group and BGMC Corporation.
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the overall financial management of the Group.
She graduated from Swinburne University of Technology, Australia with a
Bachelor of Business in Accounting in December 2005 and obtained her Master
of Business Administration from University of Wollongong, Australia in July 2016.
Joan Ong May Ean is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales (“ICAEW") and she is a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants ("MIA") since December 2014.

Joan Ong May Ean had over 4.5 years' experience in auditing field with Deloitte
KassimChan Sdn. Bhd.. She has over 8 years of experience in the account and
finance field. Prior to her joining BGMC Corporation as the Chief Financial Officer,
she joined Sime Darby Global Services Centre Sdn. Bhd. as team lead, Market
Research and Strategy Assistant manager with Sime Darby Bhd — Global Trading
and Marketing, and was the Head of Finance of EFCO Malaysia Sdn. Bhd..

Yong Set Sen, Project Director, 52 years old

Yong Set Sen is a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation, primarily
responsible for supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the
Group. He graduated from the University of Greenwich, England with a Master of
Science in Construction Management and Economics in April 2003. He has over
28 years of experience in the construction field. Before joining BGMC Corporation
in October 2017, Yong Set Sen dedicated approximately 21 years to Multi-Builders
Sdn. Bhd,, a construction company in Malaysia. During his tenure at Multi-Builders
Sdn. Bhd., he held the position of contracts administrator and subsequently
promoted to Project Director. He was responsible for managing various projects,
overseeing contract management, and coordinating with stakeholders to achieve
project goals.

Directors and Senior Management
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIG- e ERERHE

1. About this Report

This environmental, social and governance ("ESG") report is prepared in
accordance with the “Comply or explain” provisions of the ESG reporting
guide ("Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs") were calculated and presented in the form of intensities, where
the amount calculated is divided by either the total construction floor area
("CFA") or the office area that contributes to the KPI. Social KPIs, on the

other hand, were calculated using the relevant universal formula.

This report presents the environmental and social performance of BGMC
International Limited ("Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”

or "BGMC") for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (“Year").

During the Year, all of the Group's operations were located in Malaysia,
hence the relevant laws and regulations mentioned in this report are those

legislated in Malaysia.

2, Sustainability Management Objectives, Strategy

and Approach

The Group aims to instill the ESG concepts in its business and growth and
to continuously improve its performance in each relevant subject area of
the Guide. It does this by adopting ESG objectives, policies and procedures,
allocating good resources for ESG, embedding ESG objectives into the

Company's Qube System, and creating an ESG identify for the Group.
2.1. Adopting ESG Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group has adopted the following ESG objectives:

To ensure the company’s operations are environmentally

sustainable.

ii. ~ Toensure the company's operations are socially sustainable.

ii.  To ensure the company's operations adhere to good corporate

governance practices.

BGMC International Limited
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The Group has in place the following set of policies and procedures
aimed at achieving the above ESG objectives.

Waste Reduction Policy
ii.  Emission Reduction Policy
ii. ~ Personal Data Protection Policy
iv.  Intellectual Property Protection Policy
v.  Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
vi.  Policy against Child Labour and Forced Labour
vii.  Set of procedures on workplace environment, safety and health
viii. ~ Set of procedures on quality management
ix.  Set of corporate governance policies
Policies and procedures above mentioned explained in this report
under their respective related ESG aspects. The Group’s Corporate
Governance policies are described separately in the Group’s Corporate
Governance Report.
Allocating Good Resources for ESG
The Company's board of directors ("Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. In line with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.
Embedding ESG into the Qube System
The Group has a proprietary system called the Qube System 2.0. There
are eight elements in the Qube System 2.0 that drive the everyday
efficiencies that stack up as quality, time and cost advantages for the

Company'’s stakeholders. Two of the eight elements are in line with
the Group's emphasis on ESG. They are:

a)  “Sustainability” - Conducting business responsibly in the
environments, economies and communities the Group operates
in for the benefit of today’s and future generations.

b) “Governance’ - Balancing the interests of all stakeholders to
operate with accountability, fairness and integrity.

2.2

2.3
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2.4. Creating an ESG Identity

To garner greater awareness and unite all stakeholders towards
achieving ESG objectives, the Group has adopted a stand called “Better
Together” — a movement that creates an identity for the collaborative
nature of its ESG activities. Under the “Better Together” movement, the
Group has the following three specific mottos:

(@) “Sustaining Together’ — The Group uses this motto to promote
environmental sustainability. It is associated with initiatives to
reduce emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, as well
as to reduce hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.

(b) “Prospering Together’ — The Group uses this motto to
promote social and economic sustainability. It is associated
with efforts in balancing the interests of all stakeholders and
operating with accountability, fairness and integrity.

(c) “Caring Together” — The Group uses this motto to promote
community investments as part of social sustainability. It
is associated with initiatives such as supporting charities,
community sponsorships, and employee welfares.

PROSPERING
TQSETHER

SUSTAINING

3. Stakeholder Engagement

The Group recognises that the expectation and feedback from its
stakeholders are vital to the sustainable development of the Group. An
effective communication with stakeholders is maintained through daily
operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, written/electronic
correspondence, training etc,, to develop open and honest relationships
with stakeholders. Key stakeholders of the Group include government,
shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers, subcontractors, industry
players, employees and community.

We engage with all stakeholder groups regularly through a structured
mechanism. An effective communication with stakeholders is maintained
through daily operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website,
written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open and
honest relationships with stakeholders.

While senior management is primarily consulted during the preparation of

this statement, its contents are aligned with stakeholder interests whenever
possible.

BGMC International Limited
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Identifying key stakeholder groups helps us gauge the actual or potential
impacts our business has on them and vice versa. Key stakeholders of the
Group include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers,

subcontractors, industry players, employees and community.

Materiality Assessment

The Group has assessed the materiality of each ESG subject area, aspect and
KPI listed in the Guide. As a result, some KPIs under the Guide’s “comply or
explain” provisions have been determined to be immaterial to the Group's
business and hence are not measured and disclosed in this report. They are

explained in Figure 1.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRE
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or

KPI No. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported

BEZKPIFS: [TEFRER MER T RK2HBHHD REHRER

Al1.1 Emission data from gaseous fuel The Group uses a very insignificant amount of gaseous fuel.
consumption.

REBIAEHE A B BE R BUE - REBEEAIETELENREE -

A12 Hydrofluorocarbons (‘HFC”) and The head offices of the Group use a centralized chilled-water
perfluorocarbons ("PFC") emissions from air-conditioning system that does not require HFC or PFC as
refrigeration/air-conditioning. refrigerants. Other locations use very insignificant amount of

refrigerant.

2R/ ERZFHEEMCM(HFC)IA AEBABHAZRANZHRALENLAKERARS - W8
K@ (TPFC)HERL - BEAHFCPFCRESH - B B BIE A EE L ENE

2P -

Greenhouse gases ("GHG") removals from The Group does not plant any trees in the Year.
newly planted trees.

EEEARRRERE(IGHG]) ° REBPNAFE L EREA o

Indirect emissions from purchased gas. The Group uses a very insignificant amount of purchased gas.

SN RS B R HE R o REBEEAIFETLENINERE -

Other indirect emissions from electricity used ~ The amount of sewage produced from the Group's operations is
for processing sewage by government very insignificant, as most of the fresh water used by the Group
departments. goes into the public drainage system.

BUTEBFIEE A ERLRIE)S/KBIEFTES  AREERBKMELN /KN ERMTEMY - mAEEAE
B B PR BERR FAEVB R BB MR EDHE R A HHK R AR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The completed works of the Group do not require packaging.
products per unit produced. Although the Group sometimes protect the finished parts with

materials such as paper, plastic, and plywood, these are usually
salvaged from construction wastes.

BHE—(AKRmERNEBEME AEBETINEBERERBEME - MEREEBRRS(E

FA— e RER - ANARSR ~ BRIMB AR - WRHRER
BEEERER o
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  The Group uses most of the localized suppliers for its project

iR B MEEREE -

materials and services.

AREE B E AR KB D IR B WF FARTG(E A A C RS -
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or
KPI No. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported
EBEZKPIFS: [TEFHRER ER T RE2HOHS REHFREAE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging All suppliers and subcontractors are required to undergo a stringent
suppliers, number of suppliers where the selection process to ensure their products and services met
practices are being implemented, and how our requirements concerning quality, price, delivery, terms of
they are implemented and monitored. payment, and health and safety.
BEAEHERRENEBRL - 28T MAEHERRS EEAKEFRRNEEIERF - BREER KR
ZmAZRHER AR - KA R BRAERMNEE - B I REFARBERZ 2T
BITAKES - EHR)EK »
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are The Group uses the motto of “Sustaining Together” to promote
implemented and monitored. environmental sustainability. Hence, we strive to engage
10U R B | £ PR SR B (EBR EP RO IR AL suppliers and subcontractors, who incorporate the consideration
SREBRHOED] - ARBBRRITRERT of environmental and social risks into their supply chain
S management, with responsible acts to society as defined in item
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 6.5. Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management.
environmentally preferable products and TREUTEFRERRIBRE  (OERATHRRR -
services when selecting suppliers, and how - RABAREZRHRERLERRAAERER - I
they are implemented and monitored. EH6SIEAMATHH SR EENTRNHER LS B -
W ERE R RS FRRER R  EEBS | RURRERE -
IRFGEVER - AR T R B =TT
P
B6 Information on policies and compliance with  The Group does not advertise or label its products or services.
relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to
advertising and labelling.
HNESEENERE  ZUEITEE AEERBHERIBRBETEEEEHRAEE -
TABBREZENBER(E S A RETE
RAEE RN GAR -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Disclosure on the number of products sold or shipped subject to

subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

HZ 2 mEEERREMSE G LS E sk
EELEMGRERBENADT

recalls for safety and health reasons was not applicable due to
the Group'’s business nature.

Rz REERNOREAMKEEEHNEEHIEELERNEER
BREAEENEREE ML NEA -
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or
KPI No. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported

BENKPIFS [ FETHERE RRT RIS REHFRE

B6.2 Number of products and service related The Group reqularly controls and monitors the proves of each

complaints received and how they are project in order to ensure that it delivers high-quality services

dealt with. and sustainable projects to our customers by our Quality, Health
< o 0= >
Pz R O i I BRAS ARRAIR AR B A DA S B and Safety team as defined in item 6.6. Aspect B6: Product

BAR - Responsibility.
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and ARG EE ARSI EE SR E I A W0 - AR BMIME R - 2
recall procedures. BRE 2 SRS SRt B R B R R AT
W B REBIIA R BB OA - HA - EEBs - ERAE -
B3.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to  The Group encourages staff to actively participate in charitable
the focus area. activities. See disclosure defined in item 7.1. Aspect B8:

Community Investment.

HEIMR P LA ER (NS & REE R R THRB2EEZEE - F2H7 1 RFENH

/) - [EMEB8 : HLRKRE -
Figure 1: Unreported KPIs under the “Comply or Explain” Provisions of the Guide and Their BT :  EIESI B T E TR RE RS R E w2 e
Explanations KPILA R #6 G 7
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5. Sustaining Together: Environmental Aspects 5. BFKERE  RREE
5.1. Aspect A1: Emissions BEA1 : B
Policies and Targets BREBE
The Group has an emission reduction policy to reduce the emission AREBAE —ERDBERDOBEER LU
of air pollutants and GHG. The policy includes incorporating greener RS RAYFGHGEERR - RERBIE T &
options into the maintaining efficient vehicles and machinery; MR TR B2 A = R MBS (R DA hN
conscious use of air-conditioning, electricity and paper; and setting up IRRAPETE  AEMEFERZTH - MK
rainwater harvesting systems at project sites. 3R RIEIEH BBV RKEE RS
The Group also has a waste reduction policy to reduce its hazardous AEBHE —ERPBEZMABER - ful
and non-hazardous wastes. The policy includes reducing the spillage TR BEEANEEREZYHIRR o
of hazardous waste by using methods like dip trays and bund walls, R BT R ARKIERMEREE AR
reducing the use of hazardous substances by exploring alternatives, VEEREZEDAER  ROERAEEDE
as well as reducing, reusing, and recycling products that result in non- WERERD - AR - ERAME AR
hazardous wastes. é?%i,m%}iﬁii‘@ﬁ'ﬂ%ﬁ: °
Laws and Regulations SEERBEGRR
Emission of air pollutants and handling of hazardous and non- ERERTEYBERANE E AR mERE
hazardous wastes are governed by the Environmental Quality Act EYRRIER| SR AREE KT E’]%Xﬁ
1974 of Malaysia and amendments, with which the Group complies. 1974 FIRIBRE LN EEBFTAENR
Air Pollutants ZERIEEY
In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, air pollutants refer to RIFIRIBKPIIES| - ERSAYIENERE
nitrogen oxides ("NOx’), sulphur oxides (“SOx’), and particulate matter £ (TNOL]) ~ FREAE Y ([SO.]) LA K REHI
(“PM"). The main sources of air pollutants in the Group's operations YI(TPM]) - KEBEBEENZTERS
are construction machinery and motor vehicles used. Figure 2 below 2YEERE N TRREFIRIEA RSN S
shows the amounts and intensities of air pollutants emitted by the A - UTBR2ETRAEENRAEEHR
Group's operations during the Year. EBFEENZER AN EMAE -
KPI Results
for the Year
KPI Description KPIZ% 85 REEKPIZR
Amount of air pollutants RSN E 1.192 tonnes
1.192Mf
Amount of air pollutants per CFA CFAREIZE RS2 E 2.573 grammes/m?
2.573% ¥ K
Figure 2:  Air Pollutants Emitted by the Group’s Operations for the Year B2 REBERKEEZ ) ERS A R)T
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GHG

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, GHG emissions refer
to the sum of carbon dioxide (“CO2") emission and the CO, equivalent
emissions of methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N20"). GHG

emissions are categorized into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct emission of GHG in the Group's operations
are motor vehicles used for employee commuting and transporting
goods, as well as machinery and power generators for construction
activities. The main sources of indirect emission of GHG in the Group's
operations are the use of purchased electricity and paper waste
disposed at landfills.

Figure 3 below shows the amounts and intensities of GHG emitted by
the Group's operations for the Year.

BRI g RERKRS

GHG

RIBIRIBKPIFES| - GHGEVEERIERN R — &
iR (TCo DHEME ~ Fh([CH)FEAL
TAR(TN0 D HEERCOMBEREN LR
GHG B BE PR AT LA 2 753 B 4 HF RO ) 52 B
B e

REBEBEENGHCEEHMERR
BB THBHMNEREYIATE RN
PE - AMETESERNEMRMEE
1 o T AR5 B A5 P EE AR FUGHG IR BE IR
AXTEREMNMERABESN REREHIE
[ H) AR REZRY)

AR BRI RAEB N EE N EREAT
EAMGHGEEE FI5&E -

KPI Results

for the Year

KPI Description KPIZEA REEKPIZER

Direct GHG emissions due to mobile and stationary B ENFIE B A T S B B 599.427 tonnes

combustion (motor vehicles, machinery and power GHGHERR (4B & - HI R A KRS 599.427 1
generators) )

Indirect GHG emissions due to consumption of I GHGEEM (A AFTEE /) 1,345.003 tonnes

purchased electricity 1,345.003

Other indirect GHG emissions due to paper waste EEZEEHER A BREE SRR A 6.848 tonnes

disposed at landfills R GHGHERR 6.848M

Total GHG emissions GHGHI A E 1,951.278 tonnes

1,951.278M

Total GHG emissions per CFA CFARKIGHGHE A 8 0.0042 tonnes/m?*

0.0042M S 75 3K

(4.2 kg/m?)

(42F % FFHXK)

Figure 3:  GHG Emitted by the Group’s Operations for the Year

B3 AFEE R AF R AR EATHELAIGHG
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Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous wastes from the Group's operations are mainly unwanted
hazardous substances includes diesel oil, lubricants, paints, and
coating, contaminated soil due to spillage, empty drums or containers
previously contained hazardous substances. Figure 4 below shows the
amounts and intensities of hazardous wastes produced by the Group's
operations for the Year.

KPI Description KPIF% BB

BEERY

AEEXGELNEESEZNEREN
EBEENGEME (IR - HEH
HRRZRE) - BEURM =580 L% -
RRERBEAEMENZRATS - LT
BRABRARERAFENXBAEE
MEEERZMHBEMAE -

KPI Results
for the Year

REEKPIGER

Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites

Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA

CFARTETE B THbFTEA Y
BEREEY

EIRE THFTEAM B EREEY 0.600 tonnes

0.6000

0.00000129 tonnes/m?
0.00000129M8 ¢ 5 3K
(1.29 g/m?)

(1.29% 75 3K)

Figure 4:  Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations for the Year

Non-Hazardous Wastes

Non-hazardous wastes from the Group's operations include all other
domestic and construction wastes like paper, plastics, wood, and
metal. Figure 5 below shows the amounts and intensities of non-
hazardous wastes produced by the Group's operations for the Year.

avs

KPI Description KPI% A

B4 . AEBRAFREEEIELNEZRE
zY

AEBEGHELNEERZMEEME
HibREMTIRERY) - AR - 2%
AHAREE - W TERSBERASER
REENEBIEENESTEZRYHEN
BE °

KPI Results
for the Year

KEEKPIER

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA  CFARFETE B THIFTEE A 1Y
mEREEY)

HIEB THAELNEEERY

4,252.590 tonnes
4,252.590M
0.00916 tonnes/m?
0.00916Mf " 75K
(9.16 kg/m?)

(9.16F 5%, FHK)

Figure 5:  Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations For the Year
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5.2. Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Energy Consumption

The Group consumes energy in the form of electricity for both its
office and worksite. It also consumes energy generated from diesel oil
for construction machinery. Whenever possible, the Group taps into
the existing electricity supply network to power worksite operations
to minimize the usage of diesel oil which emits more GHG. At office,
the Group implements energy-saving initiatives such as replaced
energy-saving light bulbs and light-off while not in use or during
lunch break. Figure 6 below shows the amounts and intensities of

energy consumed by the Group’s operations for the Year.

BRI g RERKRS

5.2. BHEA2 : ERER

RERH#E

REBERAERTHAEANEREE
EET - FIFEFRSRESRIETEH
o REBEERAIBENERENENHRE
Een T EHRE  BIR D EREL
FZGHGHSH - AEBEERAEBHEE
BEERYE - B MENEER B N E B IR
HIEEE - A TERBRARERANF
EHEIFHBEREFEEMRE -

KPI Results

for the Year

KPI Description KPI BA AEEKPIZR
Energy Consumed by Project Sites T8 B THhpesE 3,005,819.116 kWh
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) (BEEFLMH) 3,005,819.116 T FL B
Energy Consumed by Project Sites CFAREYIE B THRERE 6.472 kWh/m?
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) per CFA (RBEEFLEH) 6.472 T EL B FI7 3K
Energy Consumed by Offices PAEEERE 22,489.080 kWh
(purchased electricity) (BESE 22,489.080 F I i
Energy Consumed by Offices REEERTERRAEREHE 14.083 kWh/m?

(purchased electricity) per Office Floor Area (B8

14.083 F LB E 753K

Figure 6:  Energy Consumed by the Group’s Operations for the Year

Water Consumption

The Group consumes water for its worksite construction activities.
The amount of water used at its offices are very insignificant and
immeasurable as the head offices share the building’s public
restrooms. Figure 7 below shows the amounts and intensities of water
consumed by the Group's worksite operations for the Year.

BZ6 :  AFEERNF LA EFEAIFEFE

FEKE

AEEN T TEB A ERRK o Mk
NENFKEANZER DM BEEEHERN -
ERAM/EENARHAEHERTAEKR
BOAHKEER - LTER7BETRAEER
RAFEN THEBEHOFKEMRE -

KPI Results for the Year

KEEKPIFER
per CFA
KPI Description KPIF% BB CFARR
Fresh Water Consumed by Project Sites I B THbFEKE 18,024 m3 0.03881 m3/m?

18,0243 /53K 0.038813 /5K F 53K

Figure 7:  Water Consumed by the Group’s Worksite Operations for the Year

BZ7 :  AEERRF L) THEFFAIFERE
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BRIR

5.3.
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HERERRS

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

As part of the clients’ requirement, some of the Group’s activities
involved clearing lands, exposing slopes, and handling of hazardous
substances. Heavy vehicles are also prone to tracking mud and silt.
Construction sites are also notorious for producing wastes. If the
above is not well contained and controlled, it will contaminate and
pollute the surroundings environment.

To reduce impacts on the environment, the Group provides more
localized systems and protections such as slope protection, dip trays
and bund walls to contain hazardous spillage, washing bays for heavy
vehicles, rainwater harvesting, solar-powered floodlights, and ample
waste bins. Where relevant, these systems and protections adhere
strictly to requirements of the Malaysian Department of Environment
under the Ministry of Natural Resources, Environment and Climate
Change. To further reduce impacts on the environment, the Group
has also implemented the 3Rs exercise (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle)
at site wherever possible such as replaced the usage of timber to
aluminum formwork for scaffolding.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Increased severity and frequency of extreme weather events could
lead to project suspension and schedule delays as a result of power
outages, destruct operational sites, cause injuries of employees,
damage to completed works and damage to plant and equipment.
Also, regional transport routes may become impassable for the
delivery of materials.

The Group has appropriately responded by establishing relevant
measures and policies for mitigation and adaptation such as
formulated contingency plans and guidelines for working under
extreme weather, keep materials to covered area, place equipment in
a secure location and maintain a good communication with clients on
project progress.

BGMC International Limited
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6. Prospering Together: Social Aspects

6.1. Aspect B1: Employment

The Group strives to provide its employees with decent working
environments with fair opportunities to grow with the Group. For the
Year, all of the Group's employees were based in Malaysia. Therefore,
the Group adopts employment policies that comply with the
Employment Act 1955 of Malaysia and Industrial Relations Act 1967 of
Malaysia (and their latest amendments), among other Malaysian laws
and regulations that govern employment practices.

The Group’s employment policies are merit-based with a structured
compensation system. Employees’ individual performances are
transparently reviewed in a systematic appraisal process. The Group
practices fair and non-discriminatory recruitment, promotion and
other employment policies where all candidates are given equal
opportunities (See Note A below). Diversity of employees is a
significant factor in establishing workplace policies, in order to ensure
such policies do not pose unfair advantage or disadvantage to any
particular group of employees. Benefits and welfare such as annual
and sick leave entitlement, medical and dental fees reimbursements,
marriage and bereavement allowances, and insurance coverage that
are above and beyond the minimum statutory requirements are also
provided. The Group adopts fair dismissal provisions where employees
are fully informed of their rights with respect to termination of
employment, and takes great measures to ensure dismissal cases
are handled ethically, sensitively, and cordially. Above all, the Group
provides a clear and unobstructed employee grievances channel
where employees have free and convenient access to high-level
management and the Group’s human resources department (“HR
Department’) to channel their grievances.

Note A: Construction services being one of the Group’s main core businesses, it is
natural that a larger percentage of the Group’s employees are males.
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Figures 8 to 9 below show the total workforce and turnover rates by
gender and age group for the Year.

AT E R E RN AR ENAFZIRIER]
HERERNBTHNETAABEETRE
):%\:( o
KPI Results for the Year
REEKPIFER

No.of Turnover Rate

Employees (%)
Gender %5l EEAE BIRKE%)
Female egi 28 2.65%
Male B 70 1.31%

Figure 8:  Average Number of Employees for the Year (by Gender) & Average Monthly
Employee Turnover Rate for the Year (by Gender)

B8 - AFRZILSE D0 FIIERA BB
FE I FIE 78 F1g8 AR Tink¥E

KPI Results for the Year
REEFEKPIFER

No.of Employees  Turnover Rate

Age (Years) Fir(BZE) EEAH ETIRKE
181030 18E305% 9 5.45%
31t0 40 312405% 48 1.40%
4110 50 41E505% 24 1.73%
Above 50 5055 A £ 17 0.48%

Figure 9:  Average Number of Employees for the Year (by Age Group) & Average
Monthly Employee Turnover Rate for the Year (by Age Group)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group's environment, safety and health division ("ESH Division”)
is dedicated to managing all workplace health and safety matters.
It strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for the
Group's employees as well as sub-contractors. A comprehensive set
of policies and procedures on workplace safety and health is strictly
enforced by a team of qualified safety and health officers, supported
by dedicated safety and health personnel, that form the Group’s ESH
Division.
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The Group complies with the latest safety and health laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Malaysian Occupational
Safety and Health Act 1994, Malaysian Factories and Machinery Act
1967, and Malaysian Construction Industry Development Board
("CIDB") Act 1994 (and their latest amendments). The compliance
includes providing the necessary personal protective equipment
to all employees, training on good workplace safety and health
practices that are tailored specifically to the nature of work and
working environment, training on ergonomic habits and practices
at the workplace, ample safety and health signages, inclusion of
other organizations’ employees in the Group's safety and health
programmes for better effectiveness, and providing adequate first-aid
boxes.

During the Year, the Group’s ESH Division has initiated and organized
several Grand ToolBox Awareness training on specific topic such as
“Safety Harness and Working at Height”, “How to use Fire Extinguisher”
and etc.

BRI g RERKRS
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The Grand ToolBox awareness on “Safety Harness and Working at The Grand ToolBox awareness on “How to use Fire

Height” at project site on 23 February 2024.
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ToolBox awareness)Z &) °

Extinguisher” at project site on 22 February 2024.
FR2024F 2 522 A £ IE B 535 B B 2017 (& FH B
#5 |#9Grand ToolBox awareness)Z &) °
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Figure 10 below shows the number of work-related fatalities and lost
days due to work injury for the Year.

2 o
KPI Results
for the Year
KPI Description KPI=% B3 EEEKPIFER
No. of Work-Related Fatalities in the Year REETIEMENEBET WA 0
No. of Lost Days Due to Work Injury in the Year AREFRERIEEINMBEENTIERE 0
Figure 10:  Work-Related Fatalities and Lost Days due to Work Injury for the Year B0 REEITIEIHEME T FLARRATLESE

SMNTIEA B T EX 2
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6.3. Aspect B3: Development and Training

6.4.

The Group, via the HR Department and respective heads of divisions,
ensures that its employees are provided with sufficient development
and training. A systematic procedure is in place to determine the
training and development needs of each employee. The Group
sponsors its employees to attend training courses as well as
continuous professional development courses which enables them to
upgrade their knowledge and skills.

Figures 11 and 12 below show the percentages of employees trained
and average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category in the Year.

[ETB3 : R RIE

AEEBBANERBFARESBHAEE
RSB TIRH B MM BR AL - A&
BHEE - ERRARNEFATEE (L8
THIRIEEROFTL - ARESEHE
T2 NEEMERTTH AP B ALV EEFIFRIZ A
RIsEERERRIE -

ATBERN R 2BRAFERIEREEES
ARB DRI ETASLAREMET
BRI IR o

KPI Results for the Year
REFEEKPIFER
Percentage of Average
Employees Training Hours

Trained Per Employee

FIET BNETH
Gender B Btk  EIEEIIFE
Female peqis 44.89% 4.56
Male B 45.77% 3.07

Figure 11:  Percentage of Employees Trained for the Year (by Gender) & Average Training
Hours Completed per Employee for the Year (by Gender)

X1 AFERERILLIE D ZIE T B
RAFRZILFE 78 E 8T E T
HY-F 55 AF 2

KPI Results for the Year
KEEKPIER
Percentage of Average
Employees Training Hours

Trained Per Employee

BNEIMN
Category &3l FHETESE  TI9EIIREE
Management BEEE 39.22% 3.78
Executive ITHEE 49.38% 3.64
Non-Executive TR fE 33.80% 1.68

Figure 12: Percentage of Employees Trained for the Year (by Category)
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has a strict policy against employing illegal child labour
and forced labour, in line with the Children and Young Persons
(Employment) Act 1966 of Malaysia (and its latest amendments). It
ensures that all of its employees work voluntarily for the Group and
are not intimidated or threatened to enforce employment.
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Employees may voice out any contravention to this policy via
employee grievances and whistleblowing procedures as set out in the
Group's employee handbook. The Group restricted its supplier or sub-
contractor to employs illegal child labour or forced labour, the Group
will instruct the supplier or sub-contractor to cease the use of illegal
child labour or forced labour immediately, report the supplier or sub-
contractor to the relevant authorities, and blacklist the said supplier or
sub-contractor from all future projects.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

During vendor selection, the Group considers the distance that the
supplier will travel to deliver items to project sites especially when
the items will be delivered at high frequencies while weighing other
feasibility factors such as product specifications, vendor performance,
and after-sales service.

Most products used by the Group for construction projects are pre-
selected or pre-specified by its clients. However, whenever possible,
and subject to feasibility, the Group will use environmentally friendly
products sourced from responsible suppliers. The Group also
promotes the use of such environmentally friendly products to its
clients and consultants.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Quality, Health and Safety

The Group has a team of quality assurance and quality control
("QAQC’) personnel that ensures construction and installation works
are carried out in accordance with clients’ specifications. The Group's
ESH Division, on the other hand, ensures construction services are
carried out in a safe and healthy manner. The Group also has in place
a quality management system (“QMS”) certified under I1SO 9001:2015
that aims to consistently achieve client satisfaction. Client complaints
are properly recorded and monitored until such actions have been
taken to address said complaints. Root cause analysis is also carried
out to prevent recurrence.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group observes and protects its clients’ intellectual property
rights in accordance with intellectual property laws and regulations
(and their latest amendments) such as the Copyright Act 1987, Patents
Act 1983 and Trademarks Act 2019 of Malaysia. As per the Group’s
written policy, it is committed to respecting the intellectual property
of others, and requires its employees, consultants, professional service
providers, sub-contractors and other agents to use legal and ethical
resources to prevent the tainting of the Group's operations with
improper introduction of proprietary information of third parties.

6.5

6.6
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Privacy Rights

The Group has a personal data protection policy that complies with
the Personal Data Protection Act 2010 of Malaysia. The policy includes
information on the type of personal data that the Group may collect,
why and how the personal data are collected, the parties with whom
the Group may share the personal data, the possible transfer of
personal data outside of Malaysia, the choices the Group offers its
stakeholders, responsibilities on personal data protection, retention
period, and stakeholders’ consent.

The Group assures its stakeholders that personal data collected are
wholly for the purpose of properly carrying out its obligations to its
stakeholders, that it does not unnecessarily disclose personal data to
third parties, that it protects personal data with its best endeavors, and
that its stakeholders have options to control how their personal data
are used.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group complies with the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission
Act 2009 and its latest amendments. It has in place an anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy which forms part of the Group’s employee
handbook. This is intended to set out minimum standards to assist
such persons in recognizing circumstances which may lead to or give
the appearance of corruption or unethical business conduct.

The Group has organized and conducted several briefings on “Anti-
Bribery & Anti-Corruption” to all directors and staff. Through this
training, all directors and staff will have a better understanding of
bribery offences and corporate liability, how to effectively deal with
corruption risks and ways to avoid such risks, as well as our anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy.

In addition, the Group has in place a whistleblowing policy as part
of its employee handbook which explains the provision of a secure
whistleblowing channel for its employees that leads directly to the
Group's compliance officer. The policy also protects whistleblowers
against unfair dismissal, victimization or unwarranted disciplinary
action even if the concerns turn out to be unsubstantiated.

For the Year, there has been no confirmed non-compliance incidents
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering within the
Group.

BGMC International Limited
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7. BFEE

7.1. [ETEBS : £ BIRE

7. Caring Together

7.1. Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group incorporates social and environmental considerations into
their operations, emphasising community well-being, environmental
sustainability, and workplace enhancements. Essentially, corporate
social responsibility ("CSR”) serves as a subset of ESG, signifying a
dedication to responsible business practices that extend beyond
profitability, encompassing societal and environmental impacts. The
following section outlines the initiatives undertaken by the Group
during the Year.

Join us in Making a Difference with Kechara Soup Kitchen
("KSK")

We collaborated with KSK (that has been serving homeless and
marginalised communities in Malaysia for over 15 years) and
volunteered to distribute packed meals to homeless that are
registered with KSK. On 1 November 2023, we joined KSK to distribute
packed meals to 100 individuals in need. Through our collective
efforts, we were able to provide nourishment and support to those in

need, offering a glimmer of hope during challenging times.

Packing food for distribution
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Sharing is Caring

As part of our continuous outreach initiative in the Group's CSR
program, we donated daily dry food products such as flour, milk, rice,
cooking oil and other essentials to Stepping Stones Living Centre
located at Taman Seputeh, Kuala Lumpur. Established in November
1998, the centre is a home for underprivileged children, women,

single mothers as well as the elderly.

2 ZHER

ERARKBECSRETBIFEINREB N HE S
—IR - HMIMA AR FEHE Taman Seputeh
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Some of the donated items
2 1B

Group photo capturing the involvement of our team
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Essential in talent management, the Group motivates employees with
ethical practices and social responsibility, building trust, fostering
loyalty, and reducing turnover, creating a strategic advantage in talent
acquisition and retention. Beyond typical company functions, positive
impacts on stakeholders and communities enhance employee
engagement, providing purpose beyond job roles and improving
overall business performance.

Chinese New Year 2024 dinner gathering at Unique

T-day Training on "Learn Lifesaving Skills’

R~ KA BEHAEFFE S5

Seafood Restaurant, Petaling Jaya on 2 February 2024
202442 H2 HIE/\FT # H i Unique Seafood
RestaurantZB7T 92024 Z /B #T FHE
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Corporate Governance Practices

BGMC International Limited (“Company” and its subsidiaries, “Group”)
is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its shareholders
("Shareholders”) and protecting as well as enhancing Shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Company has adopted the
principles contained in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Listing
Rules’, respectively), as its code of good corporate governance, which the
board of directors of the Company (‘Directors” and “Board’, respectively)
recognises as essential to the success of the Company.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code
for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (“Year").

Board
2.1. Roles and Responsibilities

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the Group's business and affairs by establishing
the overall strategies, setting objectives and business development
plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management day-to-
day management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership of
the executive Director ("ED") of the Company, the management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and the implementation of the internal control systems and
risk management.
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Composition of the Board

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are set out below:

Executive Director (“ED")

BTES(HTES))

2.2

CEBESAK

RAFERAEEAFTHRAHRZEEZESKE
]HT

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’” Michael Teh") (Chief executive officer)
BN EBEEAR ) (77844%)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

BYFHTES(BUFIITES))

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin") (Chairman)
2B Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman ([ £&Kamalul Arifin 1) (F/Z)

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua”)
FEE(MEE])

Datuk Kang Hua Keong ("Datuk Kang")
SETER(E8I))

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report. An updated
list of the Directors identifying the ED and INEDs, and the roles and
functions of each Director, is also maintained on the respective
websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company reviews the Board composition to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the needs of
the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of any legal action against the Directors and the senior management
of the Group.

Meetings of the Board and the Shareholders and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. All Directors are given draft agenda for all
matters for deliberation and resolution at the meetings.

BGMC International Limited
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The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
is responsible to prepare and circulate the abovementioned draft
agenda and board papers. All Board meetings’ minutes recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions reached will
be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to the Directors for comments
and records respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

Seven Board meetings and one annual general meeting of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Company ("AGM") were held during the Year and up to the date

TEREFEEEN
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of this annual report. Their meeting attendance at Board and Board (RRBEERE]) - E=2HFEEEEeSR
committees’ meetings is evidenced by the attendance record set out MEEZEeeR A TNRAELELERS
in the table below. 2o
Meetings Attended/Held
LR/ BaNEE
2023 Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
B £ R’E Ak 2023
Bspg Ezg Z8g ZE% ZEg Z88 RREFAE
ED
BEE
Dato’ Michael Teh 17 - - 2 33 1/1
SEHER
INEDs
BUFHTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin 17 6/6 22 2/2 33 11
2 BKamalul Arifin
Mr. Kua 77 6/6 2/2 22 3/3 11
Bt
Datuk Kang 17 6/6 22 2/2 33 1
2B
FiR 204 BRERZERERIE M
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2.4. Induction and Continuing Professional Development 24, \BRIFEEELZR
The Company has from time to time arranged relevant trainings at ARARE T AMEESLTHMRBET -
the Company's expense to all Directors to develop and refresh their NERIEMBRENBHELEBE  EAH
duties and responsibilities. All Directors have provided the Company RREE - 2BESDRAQERE ZJX
with records of the trainings attended by them during the Year. FEEREHFIEYINGE - BRIBEAA
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the GEMSEIGE  SEENAFEE E\‘E’J
types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the Year are HIIFERIB T

summarized as follows:

Attending
seminars/reading
materials relevant
to the director’s

Name of Directors duties
HERBRES
BENHEE
EEHR RIEARE MR
ED
BITES
Dato’ Michael Teh v
2B R F)
INEDs
BUFHTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin v
2B Kamalul Arifin
Mr. Kua 4
s
Datuk Kang v
=BT
Each of the Directors complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. FEEFLDETFTIERERTFAITFRIEXCI14 -
3. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 3. FERITHER
During the Year, Datuk Kamalul Arifin acted as the Chairman and INED of RAFE » 2EKamalul ArifinfEEREE E/F
the Group and Dato’ Michael Teh acted as the Chief Executive Officer. The RN IERITES  MEBHEFIEEITHRE
Chairman performs the management of the Board and the Chief Executive # o Ifﬁﬁ%%A EEMITBBHAER
Officer performs the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses. SEEXEBHATEEE  c\REINESESE LA
Clear division of their respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set EREAWAEEE N ERERERE DT
out in writing to ensure a balance of power and authority. The Chairman is B-FHEEEEEFENRERREBEYER -

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to the Board.

42 ANNUALREPORT2024 BGMC International Limited



4.

INEDs

INEDs are appointed on a term of one year.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all Directors (including INEDs)
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

During the Year, the Chairman held one meeting with the INEDs without
the presence of other EDs.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the annual
written confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and based
on such confirmations, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to date of this annual
report.
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5. Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The list of members of the four Board committees are as

follows:

Name of Directors

5. EEZXEE

ExgR fCRUMNBEZES  IEXKZE
g FWEEE - %m%i,ﬁ&ﬂfﬂ ZBg-
Aﬁfﬁﬁ*% ARRTRTEMEEER - EF
ZEgREHARERUEITHERE - HEAZ
EZEEMKEBRBENT

Board Committees’ Composition

EEZEenAN

Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk
Committee Committee Committee Committee

EBgE EREEE ¥HZEEE® REZEE ERZES
ED

HITES

Dato’ Michael Teh - - Member Member
2B HEF pd=] =]
INEDs

BYFHTES

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Member Chairman Member Member
2 EKamalul Arifin K& B 53 K&
Mr. Kua Chairman Member Chairman Member
S a B3 4= B3 pg=
Datuk Kang Member Member Member Chairman
28I p4=! K& pd=] B3

The composition and the terms of reference (the “ToRs") of the Board
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they remain
appropriate and in line with the Company’s business and changes in
governance practices. The written ToRs of the Board Committees (excluding
the Risk Committee) are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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5.1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all INEDs
and is delegated with the authority from the Board primarily to
oversee the Group's financial reporting and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of the external and internal audits. Details of the
authority and duties of Audit Committee are set out in the Audit
Committee’s ToRs, which has been published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee has performed the following works:

Reviewed the appointment and remuneration of Moore CPA
Limited ("Moore”) as the Group's external auditor for the Year
and up to the date of this annual report;

ii. Reviewed the audit plans, scopes, methods and reporting
formats proposed by Moore;

ii. Reviewed the external audit reports by Moore respectively, and
the management’s response to the reported findings;

iv. Reviewed the internal control audit report by external
consultant;

v.  Reviewed the adequacy of qualified accountants in the Group;

vi.  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions conducted by
the Group;

vii. ~ Reviewed the interim and annual financial statements, reports,
and results announcement of the Group for the Year prior to
publication;

viii. Reviewed the internal controls policies and procedures across
the Group, including those for accounting and reporting; and

ix.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the table on
page 41.

5.1
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52. FZE S

5.2. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which
comprises at least two INEDs and is delegated with the authority from
the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to the
Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and practices. Details of the
authority and duties of Remuneration Committee are set out in the
Remuneration Committee’s ToRs, which has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the performance of individual ED and senior
management, and recommended their discretionary bonus and
remuneration package;

ii. Reviewed the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

ii. Reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and annual bonus
policy;

iv.  Reviewed the management’s analysis on performance bonus
funding methods, and its underlying principles and metrics to
be used;

v.  Reviewed the remuneration bands of Directors and the senior
management; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board’s approval.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.
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5.3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, which
comprises one ED and three INEDs and is delegated with the
authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy
for nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and
assess independence of INEDs. Details of the authority and duties of
Nomination Committee are set out in the Nomination Committee’s
ToRs, which has been published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Nomination Policy which is
set out under the Section 6 “Nomination Policy” of this report.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.
No changes were recommended in view that the Board's
composition is still in line with the Company’s corporate
strategy;

ii.  Reviewed the confirmation of independence by the INEDs;

ii. Reviewed the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM

held on 4 September 2023;

iv. Reviewed the time commitment of the Directors for
performance of their responsibilities;

v.  Reviewed the Company'’s succession plan for the Board; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year and
up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.
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5.4. Risk

Committee

The Board has established a Risk Committee with written ToRs that
complies with the CG Code. The principle roles and functions of the

Risk Committee include but are not limited to:

Vi.

Vil.

Viii.

Advising the Board on the Group's risk appetite and risk
principles;

Advising the Board on other risk-related issues including
corporate actions and proposed strategic transactions such as

mergers, acquisitions and disposals;

Overseeing risk management framework and reviewing its
effectiveness;

Approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerance;

Considering emerging risks relating to the Group’s business and

strategies;

Reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and
policies;

Reviewing the Group's capital adequacy and solvency levels; and

Monitoring stress testing results of the Group's key risk
exposures.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Risk

Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed enterprise risk management ("ERM") reports;

Reviewed a risk analysis report for a new business segment of

the Group;

Reviewed the Group's risk management policies; and

After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Risk Committee held a total of three meetings during the Year

and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual

Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the

table
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6. Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Without prejudice to the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee as set out in its ToRs, the ultimate responsibility for selection
and appointment of the Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to the selection criteria which include, but are not limited to, diversity
of the Board, commitment for responsibilities, qualifications on both
accomplishment and experience, independence of INEDs, reputation for
integrity, potential contributions to the Board, and any plan(s) in place for
the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the selection,
appointment and reappointment of a Director, including an INED in
accordance with the following procedure and process:

A.  The Nomination Committee:

may take measures that is appropriate in identifying or selecting
suitable candidates, with due consideration given to prescribed
selection criteria and broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board's circle of contacts;

ii.  may adopt any process it considers appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference check;

ii.  will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of the
remuneration package; and thereafter make recommendation to
the Board;
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iv.  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members
of the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

v.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or
any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the re-
election of a Director including an INED in accordance with the following

procedure and process:

review the overall contribution and service, and the level of
participation and performance of the retiring Director during the

period of service;

ii.  review and determine whether the retiring Director continue to meet

the criteria as set out above;

ii.  provide the relevant information of the selected candidate to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration of the remuneration

package of such candidates;

iv.  based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee will then
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the following general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate
as Director at the following general meeting, the relevant information
of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to Shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant following
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable

laws and regulations.
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7. Board Diversity Policy

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy whereby it recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, which enhances the
quality of its performance by achieving a sustainable and balanced
growth towards the attainment of its strategic objectives. It endeavors
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The design of the Board’s composition shall consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members, as well as the

measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises four Directors. The following tables further illustrate the diversity
of the Board members as of the date of this annual report:
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NG
Exp 45 ik Bk YEER EXER PR3 & 59
ED
HITES
Dato’ Michael Teh Male 41 Chinese Law Construction/ 7 years
(Malaysian) Property
SEHEN it 5 ER BE/EHE 7
(BRAERE)
INEDs
BUFHTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Male 64 Malay  Estate Management/ Real Estate/ 4 years
(Malaysian) Real Estate  Chartered Surveyor
2EKamalul Arifin S BE mEER/ EiE,/ 4
(BREEAE) FiE FrETRIER
Mr. Kua Male 60 Chinese Accountancy Chartered 4 years
(Malaysian) Accountant
O Bt 5 &t RrRT&atan 45
(GREZHE)
Datuk Kang Male 64 Chinese Engineering Information 2years
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There is no female Director in the Board of the Company for the time being.
According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange will not
consider diversity to be achieved for a single gender board. Henceforth,
the Board is planning to improve the gender diversity at board level and
across the workforce, and is in the process of seeking one or more suitable
candidates of different gender to join the Board as Director(s) on or before
31 December 2024.

Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”) that sets out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to
the declaration, payment or distribution of its consolidated net profits as
dividends to the Shareholders.

8.1 Principles and Guidelines

The Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, provided that the Company has a distributable
reserve and records a consolidated profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The recommendation of the
payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of
the Board and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders.

ii. Itisthe policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company's
profits whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture
future growth opportunities. In proposing any dividend payourt,
the Board shall also take into account, among other things,
financial results and conditions, cash flow situation, business
conditions, strategies and cycle, operations and earnings,
general economic and political conditions, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders, any restrictions
on the payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

ii.  Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands), the rules, codes and
regulations, accounting policies/financial reporting standards
that the Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association.
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iv.  If the Board intends to declare or recommend any dividend
payment for a particular financial year, such dividend payout
ratio will not be less than 30% of the Group's audited
consolidated net profit for distribution to the Shareholders/
equity owners of the Company for the financial year, subject to
the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

v.  The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

9. Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognizes that the Directors should be collectively responsible
for the corporate governance duties. Such duties include but are not limited
to:

Developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

ii.  Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development ("CPD") of the Directors and senior management;

iii.  Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

iv.  Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;
and

v.  Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has

reviewed and performed the abovesaid corporate governance functions.
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10. Audit and Accountability 10. Bt REE
10.1. Independent Auditor’s Remuneration 101. B RS
Moore has been engaged as the Group's independent auditor for the REFHECEZEAREBNAFEER
Year. T IZELRD o
The remuneration paid/payable to Moore for reviewing the Year is set RAFEEERTECN /BN RESHE
out below: K HT NSRS A
Services Fee paid/payable
PR % Bft ENER
(RM)
(MHEH)
Statutory audit services, review of annual result announcements and review of
continuing connected transactions for the Year 617,000
EEBEZRY  BHAFENFEEEANSRBRAFTENRERERS
Total 617,000
et
10.2. Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 102. EEHHHRERNVESE
It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and EFEefRMTEHFERTHRE - LR
comprehensible assessment of the annual and interim reports, AIFTB R AREE R A S REME BHEE
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures AEEEMEME RS A MBI EBEAE
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as ESRAWE E’jéﬂ}mﬂji’jm 1PN GBS
information required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable statutory RS LIBHEE « AR REARE
requirements, such that they give a true and fair view of the state of BERBIEAR - EFLIER - ANAAE
affairs of the Group. The Board also confirms that the Company has BAEMHEB SRS MBS FREAAE
an effective process for financial reporting and compliance with the F e
Listing Rules.
Material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast AR A RE I AR R R BB L L IR E
significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going KRB EH NG E R EATEE R
concern are disclosed in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial = REETBRERMTEI0)HE -
statements.
In addition, Moore has stated in the independent auditor’s report its AN+ REFEE R IBILZEAD R4
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial BARAQARAFENLGEMBRENER
statements for the Year. WEE -
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11.

12.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The ED has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of one year while each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association. At
each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he/she retires. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
does not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between the persons who became
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors and Senior

11.

12.
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Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out below: T

Number of
Remuneration band (in HKS) Individuals
AR R (BT A
Nil to 1,000,000 3

221,000,000
1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,000,001 2 1,500,000
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13. Model Code for Securities Transactions

14

15
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The Company has adopted a model code (“Securities Code”) for securities
transactions by the Directors and the employees likely to possess inside
information of the Company (“Relevant Employees”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (‘Model Code").

Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on each of them, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and the
Securities Code during the Year. No incident of non-compliance with the
Securities Code by the Directors and the Relevant Employees was noted by
the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chen Kun is the company secretary, who has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the Year, Mr. Chen
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update
his skills and knowledge.

Constitutional Documents

On 23 June 2022, the Board proposed to amend the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company in order to reflect and align with
the new requirements under the amended Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules which have come into effect on 1 January 2022. The proposed
amendments and the proposed adoption of the second amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company was
approved by way of special resolution at the AGM of the Company held
on 4 September 2023. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 June 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 31
July 2023.

A copy of the latest version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of

Association is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

BGMC International Limited
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16. Shareholders’ Rights

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“"EGM”)

Any one or more Shareholders holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, in aggregate not less than 10% of the voting rights (on a
one vote per share basis) in the share capital of the Company (‘Eligible
Shareholder(s)") shall at all times have the right to require an EGM to
be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM by written requisition
("Requisition”).

The Company will verify the Requisition; if found to be proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolutions proposed by
the Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within two months after the deposit
of the Requisition.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently at Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre,
Tower One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong) or by email to
info@bgmec.asia for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM of the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the AGM under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals
or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in accordance
with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM” set out
above.
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. Investor Relations

The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency and
communicate with the Shareholders and the investors of the Company. The
website of the Company contains the latest data and information of the
Group so that the Shareholders, the investors and the public can view/get
the information about the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s
website address is www.bgmc.asia.

The Company has established various and a wide range of communication
channels with the Shareholders with the objective of ensuring that the
Shareholders have equal and timely access to information about the
Company in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
General meeting is a main channel of communications between the
Directors and the Shareholders. Other channels include annual reports and
interim reports, notices and circulars, announcements, and all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange. In addition, the Company
updates its website from time to time to provide the Shareholders with
information of the Company’s recent development.

For the AGM, the notice of meeting, the relevant form of proxy, the
Company's annual report and the circular containing information on the
proposed resolutions will be sent to the Shareholders at least 21 days
prior to the date of the meeting. The chairman and members of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and Risk Committees will be available to answer
questions from the Shareholders at the meeting. At the meeting, separate
resolution will be proposed by the Chairman in respect of each substantially
separate issue, and voting on each resolution will be conducted by poll. The
results of the poll will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on the same day of the meeting.

For the EGM, the notice of meeting and the circular containing information
on the proposed resolutions will be sent to the Shareholders at least 14
days prior to the date of the meeting. The chairman of the meeting and, if
applicable, members of the independent board committee will be available
to answer questions from the Shareholders at the meeting. At the meeting,
separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of the meeting in
respect of each substantially separate issue, and voting on each resolution
will be conducted by poll. The results of the poll will be posted on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same
day of the meeting.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders communication policy and the results were satisfactory.

BGMC International Limited
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18. Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
risk management. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Company has implemented a framework with defined
levels of responsibility in the Company’s risk management system. On the
strategic level, the Board, via its Risk Committee, determined the strategic
and departmental objectives of the Group’s business, and set the risk
appetite for the Group ("Risk Appetite”). Based on these objectives, the
Group's risk management working group ("RMWG”), which consists of the
Chief Executive Officer as the chairman and the senior management as well
as the manager of internal control and risk management division of the
Group ("ICRM Division"), determined the associated financial, operation,
reporting and compliance risks, possible root causes, and existing
mitigations. With due consideration of such existing mitigations, the RMWG
then assessed the risks by giving them ratings and compares them to the
Risk Appetite. Any risks that were rated higher than the threshold in the
Risk Appetite were further assessed to determine additional mitigation plan
to further reduce the risks until they fall within the acceptable level of Risk
Appetite. The entire process and its outcome were documented and will be
reviewed by the Risk Committee at least twice every year.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
control audit function during the Year. The external consultant worked
closely with the ICRM Division and has assisted the Audit Committee in
carrying out an independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

During the Year, the external consultant has carried out internal control
audits in accordance with the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee,
which covered all functions of the Group. The reports, findings, and their
corresponding management'’s response were presented quarterly to the
Audit Committee meetings for its review and approval. In addition, the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee also review the Groups’ internal
control and risk management policy at least once a year.

As such, the Board confirms that during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk management of the Group and considers them
adequate and effective.
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19. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

As stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report contained in this annual
report, in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements, it describes
the Group incurred a loss from continuing operations of RM8,206,000.
The Group's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon a
number of factors. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Directors of the Group are of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis
remains appropriate based on the following:

(i) the estimated cash inflows of RM23,791,000 within the next twenty-
one months from the customer of a new construction contract which
was secured by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024;

(i) the Group is in the midst of arranging mezzanine financing to fund for
working capital; and

(i) continuous repayments from the debtors within the next twenty-one
months.

Based on the Group's cash flow projections, taking into account of
effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a period of
twenty-one months from the end of the reporting period prepared by the
management, the Directors of the Company consider the Group would be
able to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the forecast period. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities that
may arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors will continue to give careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Apart from the plans and
measures undertaken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
the financial position of the Group are summarised in paragraphs (i) to (iii)
above, the Directors will also undertake the following measures: (a) identify
suitable construction project; and (b) identify suitable concession project.
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The directors of the Company ("Directors”) are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (“Year” and "Consolidated Financial
Statements’, respectively).

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's subsidiaries during the Year are set out in Note 37 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Group Reorganisation and Global Offering

The Company was incorporated on 18 November 2016 (‘Incorporation Date”)
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) in the Cayman Islands. To rationalize
the corporate structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in issue on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Main Board’, respectively), the
companies now comprising the Group underwent the corporate reorganisation
("Reorganisation”), pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 6 December 2016. For details of the Reorganisation,
please refer to the sub-section “Reorganisation” in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
July 2017 ("Prospectus”).

The issued Shares have been listed on the Main Board since 9 August 2017
("Listing Date” and “Listing’, respectively).

Business Review

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business during the Year, future
business development and the risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out below and in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” ("MD&A”") sections of this annual report.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note
5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The MD&A section also provides
a detailed analysis of the Group’s financial performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators.

Details regarding the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, are set out on page 64 of this annual
report.
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Risk Management

Under the Group's risk management and internal control framework, the risk
committee of the Company (‘Risk Committee”) determined the strategic and
departmental objectives of the Group's business, and set the risk appetite for
the Group (as stated in the sub-section “Risk Management and Internal Control”
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report). Based on these
objectives, the Risk Committee assesses its likely impacts and evaluates the risks
in order to develop effective internal control activities for mitigation of the risks.

Principal Risks
The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note

5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The principal risk factors that the
Group is exposed to and the key mitigation strategies are summarised below:

R EE

RIEAEENRREE N AFEHIER - AQEH
RipZBEe((ABREES )T A S B XEBMN R
KEBFIBAR - Wil E AR B A E R AR e 7 (A AN
WIEXE ARSI R EIERARRES 2D &
i) - ERZFRR  BRZEEFEEATENTE
WrHERRR - 1 mFRA B A EBIE SIS B A& A#
R

AEBNPBRARERE B ERERIANGE MR

RITEES - AREEGH T ERRBERR T EERR
BN T

Principal Risks

Mitigation Strategy

Main contractor or client imposed
liquidated ascertained damages (‘LAD") to
the Group
TEARBREFRAAEERIUELE
Ex((BOBEEE])

Progress at all our construction sites have been
affected by the global supply chain issue and
the fluctuations in prices for building material.
BAPIPr A RS R HEE AR R 2R
R8N R SEM R BRI E -

FTERB R IR R
Operational Risk . Inability to adhere to work program Implement and introduce innovative work method that
2B E BB IIERR requires less resources.

B ks ABRFRERDHEIFTIIERE ©
Ensure proper site possession, pre-planning of material
and fund allocation.

BREEEHRIES  RAREDHEES RS -

Close monitor and prompt update to relevant parties if
master plan is not adhered to.
EYEEABRARASINBERIL NS HEHET -

Negotiate with vendors for alternative payment plan and
arrangement of workforce.

SRR B ARG 8 RS TR BT TRERS ©

Strictly comply to relevant regulatory and authorities’
requirements.

BT HBEE RE LB RERIFIRIARE
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Principal Risks Mitigation Strategy
TERB BRI R
Financial Risk Poor financial results To ensure sustainability and continuity of business by
B E s MISRETE monitoring order book.
BBEE T ERREBNASEE RSB -
Unstable Group's finance
REFBTEE Engage with more bankers regularly to widen financing
options.
Difficulty in obtaining funds to support HE ZIRTFEHEA  INEHRERmEHE -
future projects and existing operation and
projects. Building cash reserves by getting financing facilities ready.
BEESEESUEHARRIER RBARL BEERRERE  BRRSESE -
EIER
To establish short-term, mid-term and long-term financial
Impacted by previous years’ financial results, planning against economic slowdown.
the Group is facing difficulties in raising fresh OB R BRI ERER - FE R R IR E o
financing for new projects.
XBEFEEMGEETE  AEEEEHIE Reversal exercise of impairment to improve debt recovery.
BRIE R - BOUREASSEEERER
Work with potential (financially strong) partners for
possible collaboration project.
EBERN (M OEREN) S ERHFR AT LA ER
B -
External Risk Unfavourable economic environment Diversify client base.
S| BB B PR E R BRZTIENEFE

Group's reputation risk

AEEREERR

As the economy is still recovering from the
COVID-19 pandemic, the slowing down of new
project launches in the market has delayed the
Group's effort in replenishing the order book.
HR2019B MBS HEIFE - KEARRADF
18 - TS LFTIE B BRERE - BEUR
SEBFATENITEBILE -

Renew business model to adapt to current economic
situations.
AEEEEX  BEERIKELS -

Emphasis on concession business to generate stable
concurrentincome.

BHEREFMEEERT  BUFRBELEER
A o

Explore the stimulus package by Government and find
projects which suit our capability.

BRSRIBRT BRI 0 2 K e B3 PIRE T AR I AL HY
HH -

Selective in tender that meet the Group's size and
technical objectives.

BARPORTT & NEBRE B B RORIRAER -

To build asset-based sustainable business.

B AEERERNAIRERRER -

Ensure prompt payment to subcontractors and suppliers
to re-gain the Group's reputation.
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N
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Particulars of Important Events after the Reporting
Period

Please refer to Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The board of Directors (“Board”) has overall responsibility for the Group's
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group's ESG risk management and internal control systems to
ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.

The details of ESG are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the ongoing compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, as far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impacts on its business and operations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training.
The Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers,
without whom success in the Group's production and operation would be at risk.
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Contingent Liabilities

(@)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020, a
subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had disputes
with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed in
completing the works under two contracts arising out of the same project.
Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group’s two performance bonds in
the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an injunction in
the High Court against Customer A’s proposed forfeiture of performance
bonds and has obtained an ad-interim injunction order dated 29 May 2020
against the forfeiture of the performance bonds by Customer A. On 16 April
2021, the High Court granted the Group the injunction order. Customer
A filed an appeal at the Court of Appeal against the High Court order. The
Court of Appeal on 13 January 2023 dismissed Customer A’s appeal and
upheld the High Court’s decision. Customer A did not further appeal to
Federal Court within the deadline 12 February 2023.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which was
withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October 2020, which
was eventually consolidated) to dispute the validity of the terminations
by Customer A and claim against Customer A for (i) losses of profit of
approximately RM35,000,000 (i) return of retention sum of approximately
RM4,400,000 and (iii) return of the sums under the two performance bonds
amounting to approximately RM25,800,000.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of approximately
RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of approximately
RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration proceeding against
the Group.

The matter was heard in 2022 and 2023.
As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised
for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. The hearing of the

matter has been fixed for 6-17 October 2025.

The Group's legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a stronger
case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's favour.
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On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd (“BGMC Corporation”)
received a demand letter from a licensed bank in Malaysia (“Bank”), in
which the Bank alleged that it had received a demand against a bank
guarantee from a beneficiary ("Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC
Corporation, in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000, and unless the
Beneficiary withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained from performing
its obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the sum demanded to the
Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by BGMC
Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for which the
Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly performed its
contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation filed
an application (“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court against
the Beneficiary, which restrains the Beneficiary from receiving the sum
demanded by the Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur
High Court granted an interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation,
which restrained the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees and/
or officers from effecting the claims of the performance bond or receiving
the payment or part payment under the performance bond from the Bank
until the disposal of the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation
against the Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala Lumpur High Court
granted a permanent injunction against the Beneficiary in favour of BGMC
Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal against the decision of the
High Court. The estimated payout for the bank guarantee is in the sum of
approximately RM5,500,000 should the Beneficiary's action be successful in
the appeal. The matter was fixed for hearing on 21 August 2024.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the burden of proving
any mistake in law made by the Honourable High Court for the appeal
is on the Beneficiary while the Beneficiary was still holding on to the
retention sum tantamount to unconscionable conduct since the alleged
back-charges for defects were certified and estimated to be approximately
RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation and has not
provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Maha Alusteel Sdn Bhd (“Maha”) served a notice of demand dated 13
July 2022 ("Notice dated 13 July 2022") on BGMC Corporation pursuant
to Section 465(1)(e) of the Companies Act 2016, demanding payment of
approximately RM285,000 to be made, failing which, Maha would proceed
winding up proceedings against BGMC Corporation.

In response, BGMC Corporation filed an originating summon (“Encl. 1),
inter alia, to seek for an injunction to restrain Maha from filing a winding up
petition against BGMC Corporation pursuant to the Notice dated 13 July
2022.0On 19 December 2022, the High Court dismissed Encl. 1 with costs of
RM5,000 to Maha ("“Decision”).

Dissatisfied with the Decision, BGMC Corporation filed an appeal against
the Decision to Court of Appeal on 4 January 2023 ("“Appeal”). BGMC
Corporation also sought for an injunction to prevent Maha from presenting
a winding up petition against BGMC Corporation pending the conclusion
of the Appeal ("Encl. 31"). The High Court had on 27 January 2023, allowed
Encl. 31 on the condition that BGMC Corporation shall deposit a sum of
approximately RM290,000 (inclusive of costs RM5,000 awarded by the High
Court) (‘Deposited Sum”) with its solicitor, pending disposal of the Appeal.
The Deposited Sum will be released to Maha in the event if the Appeal
is dismissed, and will be refunded to BGMC Corporation if the Appeal is
allowed.

The Court vacated the hearing of the Appeal scheduled on 31 January 2024;
consequently, the Court of Appeal has fixed the next case management
of the Appeal on 21 August 2024 and the hearing of the Appeal on 5
September 2024.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation and has not
provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
this annual report and in the accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy ("Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”), provided that the Group records a profit after
tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. Details of the Dividend Policy are set out in the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Corporate Governance Report.

Reserves

Details of movements of the Group's reserves during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had reserves amounting to approximately
RM34.6 million (2023: RM35.5 million) available for distribution as calculated
based on the Company’s share premium and accumulated losses under
applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment totaling
approximately RM0.02 million (2023: RM0.03 million). Details and other
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Director (“ED"):
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’ Michael Teh") (Chief Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Chairman)
Mr. Kua Choh Leang
Datuk Kang Hua Keong

Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association’), the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the first annual
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association provides that notwithstanding any
other provisions in these articles, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Dato’ Michael Teh and Datuk Kang Hua Keong will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
(‘Directors’ Service Contract’) with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year. None of the Directors who offered himself/herself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a Directors’ Service Contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Saved as disclosed in the sections headed “Group Reorganisation and Global
Offering” and the “Connected Transactions” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in
which any Director or controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or an entity connected with him/her had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares; or (i) require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 3 July 2017, the

Company adopted a share option scheme conditional upon the Listing (“Share

Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing

Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme (“Option”) has been

granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there

was no outstanding Option as at 31 March 2024 and no Option was exercised or

cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established as
incentives or rewards for the contributions or potential contributions that
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) had or may
have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

Who may join

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an Option to the following
persons (collectively “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for such number
of new Shares as the Board may determine at an exercise price determined
in accordance with paragraph (f) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including INEDs) or directors of any of the Company’s
subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons, who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the Options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of RM1.0 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the total
number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of the Listing,
being 180,000,000 Shares. As at the offer date of any proposed grant of
Options, the maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may
be granted is such number of Shares less the aggregate of the following
Shares as at that offer date:

(i)  the number of Shares which would be issued on the exercise in full
of the Options or options under any other scheme but not cancelled,
lapsed or exercised;

(i) the number of Shares which have been issued and allotted pursuant
to the exercise of any Options or options under any other scheme;
and

(iii)  the number of cancelled Shares.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option

Scheme is 180,000,000 Shares, representing 10.0% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report.
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(e) Maximum number of underlying Shares comprised in Options

to any one Eligible Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the Options and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant (subject to the following paragraph) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not, when aggregated with:

(i) any Shares issued upon exercise of Options or options under the other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible Participant;

(i) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise of outstanding
Options or options under the other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and

(i) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of Options or options
under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted
by that Eligible Participant, exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant.

Options cannot be granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any INED or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) resulting in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

() representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage as may
be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in

issue on the date of grant; and

(i) having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such other
sum as may be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules,
based on the official closing price of the Shares at the date of each

grant.

Unless provided otherwise in the Listing Rules, the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible
Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares.
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Subscription price of Shares

Subject to any adjustments on certain circumstances, the subscription
price of a Share in respect of any particular Option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the Share Option
Scheme

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the Option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. Subject to termination, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for the scheme period after which no further Options
shall be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and Options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Minimum period for which an Option must be held before it
can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an Option granted must be held
before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the Board.
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Retirement Benefit Plan

As required by the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of Malaysia, the Group
makes contributions to the federal statutory body, Employees Provident Fund
("EPF"), which manages the compulsory savings plan and retirement planning for
employees in Malaysia. Both the employer and employee are required to make
contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a specified
percentage of the employee’s monthly income. During the Year, the Group is
in compliance with this requirement. For details, please refer to Note 3(u) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and Chief
Executive in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
("SFO")), which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules (“Model Code") were as follows:

Interests in the Shares

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest
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EEnA B EnitE IR 2D BRRERE D a2
Dato’ Michael Tehote Interest of a controlled corporation and 1,244,250,000 (L) 69.13%
interests held jointly with another person
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Notes:

(1)

@)

On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh”) and Dato’
Michael Teh entered into a concert party confirmatory deed (“Concert Party Confirmatory
Deed’) to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had been parties acting in
concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business of the relevant members
of the Group since they became shareholders of BGMC Holdings Berhad (‘BGMC Holdings’), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and would continue to act in concert after the
signing of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed. For further details, please refer to the paragraph
headed “History, Development and Reorganisation — Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” in the
Prospectus.

On 19 February 2024, Prosper International Business Limited (“Prosper International’), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, has agreed to purchase and Kingdom Base Holdings
Limited ("Kingdom Base’) has agreed to sell a total of 36,000,000 Shares in the Company. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 February 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the 1,244,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of
(i) 900,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International which in turn is beneficially
wholly-owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and (i) 344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva
International Limited (‘Seeva International’) which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by
Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held or deemed to be held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2024.

Interest in the Shares of Associated Corporations

Bt -
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Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Interests in Percentage of
Name of Directors corporations interest ordinary shares shareholding
EEnA HEEE AR B nitE TERER ERESL
Dato’ Michael Teh Seeva International Beneficial owner 1 100%
SR F Seeva International EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a)

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7

and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she

was taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to

therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the Chief Executive) had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding 2
REREHE B9 EnitE FEROEEAE BRE )
Prosper International®ete?) Beneficial owner and interests held 1,244,250,000 (L) 69.13%
jointly with another person
LR ) BB ANES - ATHARANER
Tan Sri Barry Gohtete?) Interest of controlled corporation 1,244,250,000 (L) 69.13%
FHT B RERE i) Ry EE R
Seeva International Mote 1) Beneficial owner and interests held 1,244,250,000 (L) 69.13%
jointly with another person
Seeva International 1) BB ARES -2 ATHERENER
Kingdom Base Beneficial owner 105,750,000 (L) 5.88%
Kingdom Base EnEEA
Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif Interest of controlled corporation 105,750,000 (L) 5.88%
2B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif R EEER
‘L” denotes long position FRIZNEE

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh entered into the Concert
Party Confirmatory Deed to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had
been parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business
of the Company and the relevant members of the Group since they became shareholders of
BGMC Holdings and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed. For further details of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed, please refer to
“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” sub-section in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation”in the Prospectus.

On 19 February 2024, Prosper International, a controlling shareholder of the Company, has
agreed to purchase and Kingdom Base has agreed to sell a total of 36,000,000 Shares in the
Company. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19
February 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the 1,244,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of (i)
900,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International which in turn is beneficially and
wholly owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh, and (ii) 344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva
International which in turn is beneficially and wholly owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of
Prosper International and Seeva International is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or
deemed to be held by Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2024,

Prosper International acquired 2% issued shares of the Company from Kingdom Base, the details
of which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 February 2024.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors or the Chief Executive are aware
of, as at 31 March 2024, no corporation or person (not being a Director or the
Chief Executive) had any interests or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Arrangement for Directors to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

During the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual report, the Company
did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company with each of them, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance in order to achieve sustainable development and enhance corporate
performance especially in the areas of internal control, fair disclosure and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (“CG Code”) as its
own code of corporate governance. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses, which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act alone, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for all
Directors and senior management of the Company, who subject to the applicable
laws, will be indemnified against the costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
for legal action incurred by such a Director or officer in the execution of his/her
duties or otherwise in relation thereto.

Management Contracts

Save for the Directors’ Service Contract or contracts of service that any members
of the Group has entered into with the Directors or any person engaged in
the full-time employment of the Company, no contract by which a person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business was entered into or subsisted during the Year.

Confirmation of Independence of INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation in
writing of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is
not aware of any unfavourably reported incident. Therefore, it considers all the
INEDs to be independent for the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual
report.

Directors’ Remuneration

The RC determines the remuneration and other benefits of the ED (including the
Chief Executive who is an ex-officio member of the Board), and considers and
recommends to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration paid
by the Company to the Directors (including the non-executive Directors). The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to monitoring by the RC to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the businesses operated by the Group which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.
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Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition dated 3 July 2017 has been entered into by Tan
Sri Barry Goh, Prosper International, Dato” Michael Teh and Seeva International
(collectively “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company (‘Deed
of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure his/its close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and/or companies controlled by the respective Controlling
Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on his/its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any business
or activity which is or may be in competition with the business of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section headed
“Non-Competition Undertakings” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Despite the fact that Tan Sri Barry Goh had acquired his interests with effect from
the end of June 2019 in B&G Capital Resources Berhad (‘B&G Capital’) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “B&G Capital Group”), the Board was satisfied that the
business undertaken by B&G Capital Group was not in a competition with the
Company or its subsidiaries, taking into account the differences in various aspects,
including products and services, external revenue source, customers, suppliers,
management as well as strategy, growth and expansion plan.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied with since the date of the
execution of the same and up to 31 March 2024.

Related Parties Transactions

Details of the related parties transactions are set out in the Note 36 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. None of the related party transactions as
disclosed constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and the
Company had complied with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the Year.
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Connected Transactions

During the Year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Group did not enter
into any related party transactions that falls under the definition of one-off or
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 35.5% of the total
cost of sales of the Group for the Year (2023: less than 48.8%).

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 99.1% of
the turnover of the Group for the Year (2023: approximately 95.6%).

During the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were
approximately 62.1% (2023: 57.9%) and 12.6% (2023: 25.3%) of the Group's sales
and cost of sales respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

Donations

During the Year, the Group has made donation of RM4,700 to charity
communities (2023: Nil).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or under the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the

Company was incorporated.

Public Float

Based on the information which is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient amount
of public float of at least 25% of the issued Shares during the Year and thereafter
up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years is
set out in the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this annual report.

Review by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and annual report before presenting them to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about
the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their

professional advisers.

Independent Auditor

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by Moore CPA Limited
(“Moore”) which would retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offers
itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint Moore as the independent
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed to the Shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM. Prior to
the appointment of Moore as the auditor of the Company on 5 January 2022, the
former auditor of the Company, being ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, resigned
on 28 December 2021.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysia, 28 June 2024

BGMC International Limited

HEHBEEE
AEEREREEE Y L  AERABHERR
RER REMEIEE | -

EREEEERN

ERZE QO EHKERRA VB RER LFHY
o YEXTERSTHNME -

B S

R B A AR E 5 A LD T A S A A
BRR - WERTHEERE  FF  HE  BEER
0 SATE BP0 A B8 BV (T RE A PSR VR IS B e
R BEAARSEXERNER

B ZHE

BEVBRREBRESHESHMEHMERA
A REBRE ) EiZ - AR AIERITHRRE
FRELEAVHFAERBBEEET - i5RAIEER
THREEFAE CIRERAMEBREAESHEE
RARTVBIZEMEREESETENSRE
o REFHEBER2002F1ASHEZRTAARR R
A2 Al - AARBIE RSP ERESFAIES
FrAR A RIN2021F12 828 HEHT »

RERES=S
TEFEBTIHITER
ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othman

Bk Phas - 202456 A28H



Independent Auditors’ Report

K| MOORE

T +852 23753180
F +8522375 3828

www.moore.hk

To the shareholders of BGMC International Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BGMC International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 90 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code’) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes that the Group incurred a loss from continuing operations of
RM8,206,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024. This condition, along with other
matters set forth in note 3(b), indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Moore CPA Limited

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition
to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  4h >
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETTNAEERRETSE

Revenue recognition from building and structures
construction contracts

We identified the recognition of revenue from building and
structures construction contracts as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and that
significant management judgement and estimation are required in
the estimation of total budgeted contract costs and the amount of
revenue to be recognised by the Group.
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BGMC International Limited

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
construction contracts included:

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

scrutinising the key clauses of construction contracts on a
sample basis, and assessing whether these key clauses had
been appropriately reflected in the estimation of total budgeted
contract costs applied in revenue recognition;

BEEAREREEANBENRTFEE

FHEEEAOTE
NGBVERC

HRELERTERATIEHIR - B

MEBETEESONBERIGN
BEERRN S ERAERNARES

I B4 % F R R IR
IR AE T



Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENFANMEEFARETSHR

Most construction works take several years to complete and the scope
of work may change during the construction period. Management
estimates the revenue and budgeted costs at the commencement of
the construction contracts and regularly revisit the budgeted revenue
and costs by assessing the progress of construction works as well as
the financial impact of scope changes, claims, disputes and liquidated
ascertained damages. The Group recognises construction contract
revenue overtime using input method based on the proportion of
total contract costs incurred at the end of reporting period compared
to the estimated total budgeted contract costs to complete the
contract when control of the goods or service is transferred to the
customer.

The measurement of the revenue therefore relies on estimations of
total budgeted contract costs. Changes to estimated total budgeted
contract costs could give rise to material variances in the amount of
revenue recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group generated revenue
of RM116,522,000 from building construction contracts as disclosed
in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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challenging the Group’s estimates of budgeted costs to
complete the contract on a sample basis by considering the
Group's historical records of gross profit margins for similar
contracts;

assessing whether costs incurred were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing costs incurred during
the current period to purchase invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation on a sample basis;

performing a re-calculation of revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and the agreed contract price;

performing site visits for selected major contracts in progress,
physically observing the stage of completion of the contract
and discussing the status of the contract with site supervisors;
and

assessing the related disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRRETEE

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENFANAEEFARETSHE

Impairment assessment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

We identified impairment assessment of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of subjective judgement and management estimates in
evaluating the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the Group’s trade and
retention receivables and contract assets at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group'’s trade and retention receivables
and contract assets amounted to RM7,149,000 (net of loss allowance
of RM10,200,000) and RM58,142,000 (net of loss allowance of
RM24,179,000) respectively. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
the Group reversed net impairment allowance for trade and retention
receivables, as well as contract assets of RM9,383,000 and RM529,000,

respectively.

As disclosed in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets for ECL
individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets included:

obtaining an understanding of how management estimates the
loss allowance for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets;

challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining loss allowance on trade and retention receivables
and contract assets as at 31 March 2024, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade and retention receivables
and contract assets, and the basis of estimated loss rate such
as customers’ credit risk grading dependent on the customers’
financial performance, historical loss rate and forward-looking
information; and

evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and those Charged With
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with [FRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chu Mei Yue, Michelle
Practising Certificate Number: P05826
Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BZE2024F3A31HIEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ2024F BZE2023F
3A31BLEE  3ANBLFE
Note RM’000 RM'000
BT THEH THER
Continuing operations EREER
Revenue g 7 117,070 110,110
Cost of sales SHE RN (124,361) (105,766)
Gross (loss)/profit E(#8) /A (7,291) 4,344
Other income HlA 8 5,783 1220
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment losses) CREEMAENEEZRERBE
of financial assets and contract assets, net BB/ (REER) T8 9a) 10,005 (6,947)
Administrative and other expenses TR R HoAtb A (17,190) (15,730)
Other gains, net HAW 558 9(b) 1,787 25476
Finance costs BE X A 10 (1,577) (1,077)
(Loss)/profit before tax REBELSEEKY
from continuing operations BREA(BE), BRI 12 (8,483) 7,286
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSHiEe,/ (AX) 1 277 (489)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations RERELLEK 2 (BR),BF (8,206) 6,797
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REFREBBLILEEL 2 RH 15 9,180 4,462
Profit and total comprehensive KTEERANREZEABALE
income for the year 974 11,259
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (loss)/ BT AL EEREE(FE)BFR
income for the year attributable to: 2E(EE) WHEeE
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIEZZE N
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations REFECEET 2
(B#H),/ a7 (10,392) 7,560
Profit from discontinued operations RE B RIS 25 15 9,228 4318
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners ANElEB AEG(EBE), &
of the Company (1,164) 11,878
Non-controlling interests RS
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations KREBBECLEE 2EF,/(518) 2,186 (763)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations RACRIELEERZ (BE) 55 15 (48) 144
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests ~ 3E{ZR& %5 FEIE % 7,/ (E518) 2,138 619
974 11,259
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) BF
From continuing and discontinued operations REBERCREBEEK
Basic and diluted (RM sen) ERNEE(MEHS) 16(a) (0.06) 0.66
From continuing operations REFECEEL
Basic and diluted (RM sen) ERREE(HEHS) 16(b) (0.58) 042
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE BB R

At 31 March 2024
M2024F3H31H8

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
7202445 20234
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’'000 RM'000
M5t THEE ARIN=Eo
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 17 92 116
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 402 192
Investment properties WEYE 19 49,385 48159
Other investment HEmig & 20 - -
Intangible assets mREE 22 726 964
50,605 49431
Current Assets REEE
Investment in redeemable convertible AR EE O] A EIRE S R IR &
preference shares 21 - 5,694
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5 M EADEWFIE -
prepaid expenses Ee RBERNEX 23 25,703 50,865
Income tax recoverable AJUg Bl FTISHR 20 1,710
Contract assets BHEE 24 58,142 51,274
Fixed deposits TFHITFER 25 30,509 28,358
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 26 6,497 1,547
120,871 139,448
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAFELEZEE 15 - 213,932
120,871 353,380
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LEMBRRE

At 31 March 2024

FR2024F3A31H

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
7202445 20234
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’'000 RM'000
M5t THEE ARN=Ec
Current Liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities GBHBE 24 9,316 4,504
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNTIE 27 92,082 132,380
Borrowings — secured BE -2 29 - 2,889
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 252 213
Income tax liabilities FisHiaE 146 738
101,796 140,724
Liabilities directly associated with WO AFIEHE 2
assets classified as held for sale BEEZHRBENAE 15 - 104,839
101,796 245,563
Net current assets REBEEFHE 19,075 107,817
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERE 69,680 157,248
Non-Current Liabilities IRBEE
Redeemable secured loan stocks AELAERFERES 28 48,515 48,272
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 143 33
48,658 48,305
Net assets EEFEE 21,022 108,943
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAREE AEEER
Share capital &4 32 9,862 9,862
Reserves B 33 17,252 107,716
27,114 117,578
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 2 (6,092) (8,635)
Total equity ERBE 21,022 108,943

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2024.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Director

EBF
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ZEEEF
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BE2024F3A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2V
Redeemable
preference Non-
Share Share shares Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
ARE

Rx  ROBE GEiREE  HtRE  RiEB @& FEREZ  ERAE

RM000 RIM000 RM000 RM000 000 RM000 RM000 RIM000

Tikss TS OTHEE TSR THER TR TR T
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Fse32)  (Wss3)  (MfsEss)  (WEEs3)

At 1 April 2022 #2022%4718 9862 135571 89,300 65,000 (194,033) 105,700 (8,016) 97,684
Profit and total comprehensive income TEEEFR

forthe year e N - - - - 11878 11878 ©19 11,259
At31March 2023 12023534318 9862 135,571 89,300 65,000 (182,155) 117578 (8635) 108943
Issuance of share capital of a subsidiary RFRRER ST

to non-controlling interests MEARRA - - - - - - 441 441
Disposal of a subsidiary NG - - - - - - 36) (36)
Redemption of redeemable preference share B (8 B B B4k - - (89,300) - - (89,300) - (89,300)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEEFIREE

for the year WA - - - - (1,164) (1,164) 2138 974
At 31 March 2024 2024534318 9,862 135,571 - 65,000 (183,319) 27,114 (6,092) 21,022

FHl 202 BRERZRERAT 9
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BHZE204F3A31HIEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
220245 =037
3A31H 3A31R
LEE IHE
Note RM’000 RM'000
B s THER FHER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES PR
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations REBBEEEEB 2 REA(ER), /&7 (8,483) 7,286
Profit before tax from discontinued operations RE DRI EEER 2 BRFHATR A 9,602 5403
Adjustments for: B TEIE
Finance costs AR A 10 2,701 3,875
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 17 44 54
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 18 337 1072
Reversal of impairment of property, plant & equipment Y13 - = M RERERER 9(b) - (4,140)
Amortisation of intangible assets EV AR 2 286 278
Reversal of provision of performance bonds AR PR R ] 9(b) - (25,797)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of trade, 25 RESMEMERZE
retention and other receivables CRERD),/HE 9(a) (9,983) 2257
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of contract assets &4V EECHERE),/HE 9(a) (529) 4,461
Written back of goods and services tax payable e i R ARG i e 8 (4,228) -
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange REWINEEIE 9(b) 55 10
Imputed interest income from contract assets BHEEMEF WA 7(d) (687) (10292)
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFFHF BN 8 (681) (548)
Written off of trade and other receivables WIHE 2 REMEUGIR 9(@a) - 130
Written off of contract assets WS NEE 9 104 54
Written off of deposits kit 9a) 403 45
Written off of investment properties under construction  MSEEZRE M E 9(b) 188 -
(Gain)/loss on fair value of investment properties WEMEZ NHERE) B8 9(b) (1,414) 1442
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEMNE - BERREL (W), B 9b) (630) 2,992
Gain on extinguishment of debts BEERRE 8 - (160)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKB AR 2 W 15 (10,050) -
Operating cash flows before movements HERREPALLERENE
in working capital (22,965) (11,578)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables, B REMEWTIE &R
deposits and prepaid expenses BFEZRD, /() 17,021 (9.716)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BWEECEM),/ B (4,496) 76,321
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMEATUEE M (D) 6,399 (68,745)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHBEEN/CRD) 4,812 (2,921)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations AR/ (TR )REFE 77 (16,639)
Income tax paid BIFERIE (315) -
Income tax refunded REIFER 1,690 2439
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities RESEEFTS /(RIS 358 2,146 (14,200)

BGMC International Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=] iﬁ%l)lb;%

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BHE2024F3A31BILFE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
220245 HZ=203F
3A31H 3A31R
LEE HEE
Note RM’000 RM'000
Bt s THER FHES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received BIFE 681 548
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEIHR (24) (25)
Purchase of intangible asset EERVEE (48) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « BiE KR EFSHE 444 200
Net cash inflows from disposal of subsidiary HEMBARKNRERAFE 15iii) 5,332 -
Proceeds from redemption of redeemable convertible FE ol ] B (o] P 85448 SR IR P 1S 500E
preference shares 5,694 -
Placement of restricted bank balances FHEBHIRITEER (3,992) (3992)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances RIS R B RITEH 208 595
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted fixed deposits IREE I & IR I 2R 1,633 1,761
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities RETHHE,/(FRES 2R 9,928 (913)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Interest paid on borrowings — secured EEENFE-—BER (1,865) (2.272)
Interest paid on redeemable secured loan stocks AEREHEAETEFE NS (477) -
Lease interests paid BEREEF S (116) (1,068)
New borrowings raised HEER 9,603 37,957
Repayment of borrowings BEER - (50,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBEER (424) (1442)
(Repayment)/advance of bank overdrafts FITEX( *zk)/ B} (2,889) 95
Proceeds from issue of share capital of a subsidiary to AIFEE AR RS I THT B A AR AR
non-controlling interest Firi% JXIE aa -
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hin A HECRD), /1 27(a)(b) (16,360) 27,732
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities BEEB(FA),/ FFEHREFE (12,087) 11,002
FiR 204 BEFERZERERAT 95
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2024F3A31HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
HZE20245 HE2023F
3H31H 3H31H
IHFE IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHELF FHRER
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBREEEY
EQUIVALENTS WA R (13) @111
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENNRER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR REZEY 6,565 10,686
Effect of foreign exchange rates HMNBIER 2 528 (55) (10)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERHNRER
AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 6,497 6,565
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year are determined as follows: FRESFREEBWETHT :
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 20235
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FHRE R
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated REFBIRRAKRNIRE R
statement of financial position RITHERR 6,497 1,547
Cash and bank balances included SFADBEARBIELECEENR SR
in assets classified as held for sale IRITHEBR = 5018
Fixed deposits with licensed banks RFFREERTITHYE BRTE 3K 30,509 28,358
Less: Restricted bank balances W ZRBIRITAE R (26,080) (22,296)
Restricted fixed deposits PR Il 7 BifF 51 (2,872) 2811
Pledged fixed deposits R E BT (1,557) (3,251)
6,497 6,565

BGMC International Limited



1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 9 August 2017. The Company was incorporated as
an exempted company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 18 November 2016.

The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal place of
business are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and A-3A-02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One
City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Since Prosper International Business Limited and Seeva International
Limited are parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their
interests in or the business of the relevant members of the Group, both of
them are considered as the ultimate parent undertakings of the Company.

e P BHmRMNE

—REHR

Apdlp—BERSESTME IO ARER
nNaEl - ERHBR2017FSAIRERBHAERS
FIBER AT ER LM o AAAR20165F11 718
AREAEREARIAENE(1961F E350E
& R a kgD ERS ST M RER
RERGCBRAT

RAAFE Mg R Ee E B a5 5l
// Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands }& A-3A-
02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One City, Jalan USJ
25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °

RABR—EREERATR  XARIHEBAR
ZEBEBRBENGE BB HRRME7 -

HRREEZERKEZ S BMR A A K Seeva
International Limited % Itk < 1 2 1% 55 78 2N &2 [ 4
FAXKERRARERN — BT AL AEEN
BB RRIEB—HITE - BERHR AR AR

MR RF]

E3R 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T BHRRHME

2. Application of New and Amendments to IFRS 2. FEAHIT RSB EHREE

Accounting Standards

Adoption of new and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) have applied the following new and amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB") that are relevant to the operations to the Group
and are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023:

IFRS 17 and Amendments
to IFRS 17

Insurance Contracts

Amendment to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar

Two Model Rules

The application of the new and amended standards in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the year and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Application of New and Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards (continued)

New and amendments to standards in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial
Statements?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

A won =

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of
adopting the above new and amended standards. So far, it has concluded
that the above new and amended standards will be adopted at the
respective effective dates and the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

e M RRME

FE FI3ET R AR AS RT B PR B 3 3R o5 2
A5 2RI (&)

C AR E s R A BBV HT E R R HASFT &
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] BRI RS ERIE T ER R EERTAS

BRI eE22R) B RaR 2 251 K45
F1858

BRI S R E 2ER] 1R EE EAERE AR
FI0E R HEE BRbEZENERE
FTZERIZE 285k (S HEITE

EIEN

BRI 2ER]  SRARMNHEERE?

F16RIEET A

EReRERE 15 HaEIEARBNIER

BRI A B) 2 S 2SR ) FE T &
af&E

RS ERTERIE 7S HEERE LR

A e s

ERIE7IRIEFT AR
B et RS2 R A RN

EACIEN
BRI IREAER]  FEAAZTEEMEBAF
5195 B3 F24

' B £57E B #isk 2 2 BALA R [ HAR Ak

2 B2024F1 1 A3k 18 F A8 F Z BB A Ak
; B2025%1 A1 83k 2 AR FE AR A
4 B20275%1 A1 Bz %R EE BRI AR
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FH 2024 BRERZRERAT 9



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(a)

(b)

100 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “lASB”). For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency’). Malaysian Ringgit ("RM") is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the use of fair value basis for investment
properties and investments in redeemable convertible preference
shares.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

BGMC International Limited

3. EXETTHERER

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)
(continued)

(b) FEMBHREREE(K)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS
Accounting Standards that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
disclosed in Note 4.

Reclassification due to discontinued operations

BGMC Bras Power

On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd. (“BGMC
Corporation”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Deed of Arrangement ("DOA") with reNIKOLA Sdn.
Bhd. (“'reNIKOLA"), an independent third party, to dispose of the
interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.
("BGMC Bras Power"). BGMC Bras Power is engaged in concession
and maintenance, which undertakes Private Partnership Contracts
related to solar plant of duration of 21 years. Upon the completion
of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power, the Group will discontinue its
concession and maintenance business which is under the segment of
"concession and maintenance”.

As at 31 March 2023, the Directors believed the disposal was highly
probable and the net carrying value of the relevant assets and
liabilities of BGMC Bras Power would be recovered principally through
sale rather than through continuing use. Accordingly, as at 31 March
2023, the assets and liabilities attributable to BGMC Bras Power were
reclassified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 and the result of BGMC
Bras Power for the year ended 31 March 2023 and for the period from
1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 has been presented as discontinued
operations.

On 26 April 2023, the disposal was completed. Details of the disposal
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 June 2022 and
26 April 2023 and the Company’s circular dated 21 September 2022.

EEEERAERYBREEN SR
FEHMERAMBERRAEERATZENH
B ARG THARENEERIR - £
B FE4FR 3R

=

HEeRLREEEMEH D
BGMC Bras Power

7202293 A 248 * BGMC Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.([ BGMC Corporation | * Zx/A &) & #
2 EWME QT EIBE =T7reNIKOLA Sdn.
Bhd.([ reNIKOLA |) 5737 % B 224% ([ & BF
24 |) - LAHEBGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.
([ BGMC Bras Power | ) 9 95% 3 3 P& ##
25 ° BGMC Bras Power it SR RF 4 & L 4
& A RENFRE KIS BRI
M ABREEL o 75T & BGMC Bras
Powerf& » REEAGAR A FFRTE &R R
HAS |0 BOIR TR TS S B TS o

202338310 EERBLEM A4
MEAR K+ T BGMC Bras Power ) 18 8 & &
FEENEREEFESTERBLEMIER
MEBCRAYKE - Bt - 720235F3A31
H - 858 M BGMC Bras Power I E E K B
BER2023F3A3BEF N EAZEDR
£ MBGMC Bras Power /A&, & 202343 A
318 IEEE 20234 A1H E2023F4 826
HERMEEZ I AD LI EEER -

R2023F4F20H  HEEHEE =K ° 1
EEZEFBIHNARR BHEA202F6 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

(b) FEMBHREREE(K)

statements (continued)

Going Concern Assumption

During the year, the Group incurred a loss from continuing operations
of RM8,206,000. The Group's ability to continue as a going concern is
dependent upon a number of factors. These conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors of the Group are of the opinion that the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis remains appropriate based on the following:—

(i) the estimated cash inflows of RM23,791,000 within the next
twenty-one months from the customer of a new construction
contract which was secured by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2024;

(i) the Group is in the midst of arranging mezzanine financing to
fund for working capital; and

(i) continuous repayments from the debtors within the next
twenty-one months.

Based on the Group'’s cash flow projections, taking into account
of effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a
period of twenty-one months from the end of the reporting period
prepared by the management, the Directors of the Company consider
the Group would be able to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the forecast
period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any future liabilities that may arise and to re-classify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(c)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries from 1 April 2023 to 31 March
2024. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(c)

(d)

104 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RM, which
is the Company's presentation currency and the functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.

b) Transactions and balances in financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign

currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

b)

<)

Transactions and balances in financial statements
(continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company's
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Furniture and fittings 10% — 20%

Computers 20% - 33%
Machinery and site equipment 10% — 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
Office equipment 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(f) Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost including all direct

costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent valuer. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)
(continued)

(g) Leases (9) HE

The group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term
50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)

(continued)
(g) Leases (continued) (9) HE(HE)
Lease modifications HEBK

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The group as lessor

Operating lease

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(h)

0]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life of
5 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Service concession arrangements

A portion of the Group's assets are used within the framework of
IFRIC Interpretation 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”. The
characteristics of the service concession arrangement generally
provide, directly or indirectly, for grantor involvement in the
determination of the service and its remuneration, and the return of
the assets necessary to the performance of the service at the end of
the contract.

In order to fall within the scope of concession contract, a contract
must satisfy the following two criteria:

- the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them, and at what price; and

- the grantor controls the significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

Such infrastructure is not recognised in assets of the operator as
property, plant and equipment but in financial assets (“financial asset
model’) depending on the remuneration commitments given by the
grantor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(i)

110 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Service concession arrangements (continued)

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a Renewable
Energy Power Purchase Agreement ("REPPA”") with Tenaga Nasional
Berhad (“TNB") for 21 years commencing upon the fulfillment of the
Condition Precedent set out in the REPPA. The Directors consider that
the term of a concession arrangement for the operation of a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility is 21 years, which coincides
with its estimated useful life. This arrangement is within the scope
of IFRIC 12 as Suruhanjaya Tenaga Energy Commission controls and
regulates BGMC to sell to TNB with the infrastructure at a fixed price
per kilowatt hour.

Financial asset model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from the
grantor.

In the case of concession services, the operator has such an
unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the
payment of:

- amounts specified or determined in the contracts; or

- the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and amounts specified or determined in the
contract.

The fair value of a concession asset received as consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession arrangement
is estimated by reference to the fair value of the construction
services provided. The fair value is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin, which the Group evaluates and
determined to be a reasonable margin earned.

Concession assets resulting from the service concession are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position under contract
assets and are amortised using a rate of return specific to the assets
to give a constant periodic rate of return on the financial asset in each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Investments at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

3. Mater

ial Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(k) Financial Assets (continued)

(i

(i)

112 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loans and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit

losses.

Investments at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value
with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest income
and dividend income. Interest income and dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss. When these instrument are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

U]

(m)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (‘ECL")
on financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected
credit losses”) for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade and retention receivables and contract
assets) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
represents the expected credit losses that result from default events
on that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)

(continued)

(n) Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued (n) PEARABHFHEZEERECRLRE
operations 7
Assets or disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying WEENHEMAR 2 EEERTEZEB
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather HEL S (MIERSEEFER)KE - 3%
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only LIRBEERDEEANED ERIFED
when the sale is highly probable and the assets or disposal group are € o PR ESNRE R REETTIHE -
available for immediate sale in their present condition. The Group BEBEENHESE LR AR D
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify ERRAENK  ANEBEBNBERGETE
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of & BIEFEER AR —FAGE
classification. iR/ —HE TS °
Assets or disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at the DERFELEZ EERLEAFTIRE
lower of the assets’ or disposal group’s previous carrying amount and EHEARBEC BREER A FERE
fair value less costs to sell. ERAMEREETE ©
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the operations RIS EEB RSB AN - HE
and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest T R EIF G 2 0] Wi B AR S F 82 T 5B
of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business NED RBIZEFEERHRAEEM
or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated @ kANEEY X EEBENEE
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical B BEFE—D  HAEEEAETE
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view EmikEE 2B AR -
to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or NEERNERERSEEBTERIERE
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale W REERFESROEABIELERT
in accordance with IFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is F(UREERE)  FRAIDEADKIEE
abandoned. EEERS o DM N MEEAS S E TR

iH o
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is B IHERED AR ILER - gRIE
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mREMPERARANZINE —2%FE - £
income, which comprises: 15
—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and — DRIEEEEBZRBE RN SE
B R
- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to —  FITEATERMBEEK RSN SR
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or HERDRIEEEER 7 EELE
disposal group constituting the discontinued operation. AR HERR I E WG S ETE -
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3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
IFRS Accounting Standards. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks are initially
recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks are classified as
current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(s)

116 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant
financing component.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3. EXEHERER(E)

3. Material Accounting Policy Information
(continued)

(t) Otherrevenue (t) Hfbzs

F B AR BRI HORER -

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

HERARBERNIREREER -

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(u)

Employee benefits

(i

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are
recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

Defined contribution plan

As required under the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of
Malaysia (the “EPF Act 1991"), the Group makes contribution to
the employee provident fund scheme (the “EPF Scheme”) for
employees employed in Malaysia. The EPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan that requires both the employers
and employees in Malaysia make monthly contributions, which
the monthly contributions are determined based on the rates
set out in the third schedule of the EPF Act 1991. No forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce the existing level of
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(v) Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)

(continued)
(w) Taxation (w) BiIE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable FriS i A sz 45 BN AR FE 9 A 18 S IR RE AR IR Y
and deferred tax. 4azm o

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the financial B Al A< 5 T8 4% B B AR ) A0 FE SR B s U &
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit before tax’ as B o ERTRMNERGEEBR REMEHE
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other W RRE BB A(EB) %A T
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that [l RERTFEEMFE 2 ERFSHA T
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never Mz WASFZIER » skFERFSET
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated AR 2IER - AEBEMABHES EK
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by AR EREH R B EE BRI =R
the end of the reporting period. tE -

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the BELEHIBERRERARNEERBENERR
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the end of reporting period BEHtE R SN RN BERERE
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable MEREREER - BELEHIEAGERTEHE
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable FTA RS S ZRRErTER - EIEFIE
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for BEBTSHAME KA EREREER
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable BERAIaE& A FERT R M 7] AR 84 A]
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible IR =580 5 T IARER - Mgk =%5
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and TR ERER —ERE T 2 M R a A I
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the THEGH RNz X GP 2 EERBEM
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects EA - BRXSBTEESRSAERK
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time KAl EREER BT eERERIEL
of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible HEBEEENEE -

temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary EIETRIE B & Ty m B A7) 2 A
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where ZIERM R EREERAAR  HEHAER
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference AR A = e 2 B O B Hi X R = 5T
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in B e r] RigRE R ERRIN o HIIEIR
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible BIHENRER SR EEES R
temporary differences associated with such investments are only IBEEEZEEREAE AN ERE N AR
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient EHERZEN T = - WA TERH SR T8
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary BB IRER MG TR o

differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is reviewed at the FEFIBEEZREAENE) TREHRE
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no HIRETIRG - W TEHAS T se B o4
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow 2 FERRTL @ AR SE P A sk 2l o #5 F I (D]
all or part of the assets to be recovered. ZEERFR -
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e M RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)
(continued)

(w) BiIE(E)

(w) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(x)

(y)

120 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(y)

Related parties (continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(vii)

The entity and the entities comprising the Group are
members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to a parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include:-

@

(i)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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e MR RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets, except investment
properties, other investment and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3. Material Accounting Policy Information 3. EASHEFEER(E)
(continued)

(aa) BERIAREE

(aa) Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.

(bb) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

4. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

a) Construction contracts with customers

As revenue from on-going construction contracts are recognised
over time, the amount of revenue recognised at the reporting date
depends on the extent to which the performance obligation has been
satisfied. This is performed by determining the stage of completion.
The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total
contract costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of
completion, the extent of the contract costs incurred, the estimated
total revenue and total costs, the recoverability of the construction
project and contract cost as well as the financial impact of scope
changes, claims, disputes and liquidated ascertained damages. In
making these judgements, management relies on past experience
and, if necessary, the work of specialists.

Where the total actual revenue and cost incurred are different from

the total estimated revenue and cost incurred, such difference will
impact the contract profit or loss recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

(continued)

b)

)

Impairment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

The ECL on trade and retention receivables and contract assets are
assessed individually for customers with significant balances. Where
the Group uses simplified approach in calculating allowance of ECL
for trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the ECL
rate is determined based on the management’s assessment on the
individual customer’s credit risk grading dependent on the customer’s
financial performance, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions at the reporting date that is
available without undue cost or effort, including time value of money
where appropriate. At each reporting date, the ECL rate is remeasured.
The allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
of forecast economic conditions and consequently, may not be
representative of customers’ actual default in the future.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The Directors have exercised their judgment and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

5. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s major financial instruments include investment in redeemable

convertible preference shares, trade and other receivables, retention

receivables, deposits, fixed deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and

other payables, borrowings, lease liabilities and redeemable secured loan

stocks. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective

notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include interest

rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The policies

on how the Group mitigates these risks are set out below. Management

manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a)

(b)

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables, retention receivables and contract assets. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for customers. Limit and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

5. Financial Risk Management (continued) 5. MEEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) SER(E)
The Group's internal credit rating assessment comprises the following AEBRHABEEETRTHEIEATE
categories: Bl

Trade and retention

Internal Credit receivables/ Other financial
Rating Description contract assets assets
ESRRES

REREE TR Rt FBWRE GRNEE HitemEE

Good Debtor’s financial information is positive with low risk of ~ Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
default and frequently repay before due date and do credit-impaired
not have any past-due historically

BR BEHANPMBERNELEE - EHRARE - BEER 2RBEEFE—- 2EAEREEER
FEA R ATE K - B (T8 B IE WEEERE

Fair Certain debtor’s financial information is negative though  Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
information developed internally or external sources credit-impaired credit-impaired

with no history of bad debts or debtors frequently
repay and settle after due date

R&f BENISNERRAGEBIRRCE - B 2HEHEEER- 2HBRHEEEE-
}\E’Jﬁﬂkéﬂgéﬁ  AEHBAEEREHER I EZERIE WEEERE

u‘.\:j:h

BRI FOE

Marginal There have been no information on debtors’ financial Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
performance and debtors frequently repay and settle credit-impaired credit-impaired
after due date

—M WEABEBA Hﬁkiiﬁﬂ’] BH BERARERT  2HEHEEERE- 2HRBEEEE-
HRZERIFNRK WEEERE I EEERE

Weak The information of the debtors'’ financial performance is Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
negative and have historical bad debts with the Group credit-impaired credit-impaired

RiE ERAVBRANENBEE - BEEASEES 2URBEEEHE- 2HEHEEEE-
AR WEEERE W= ERE

Poor There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic credit-impaired credit-impaired
prospect of recovery

TR FRBERPABKABAREMERRE - mALER HRHEESE- ip FEHEEEE -
& W E IR E T EERE EERE
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5. MREREEE)
(b) FERERE)

5. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management of the
Group has taken into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate. As of 31 March 2023, the
management of the Group has considered that there was a significant
increase in credit risk in other receivables owing from a related
company of RM4,933,000 and made a loss allowance of RM4,933,000
during the year ended 31 March 2023. During the year ended 31
March 2024, a reversal of RM211,000 has been made upon settlement
from the related company. The credit risk inherent in the Group's
remaining outstanding receivables is insignificant.

The credit risks on fixed deposits and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The tables below detail the credit exposure of the Group's financial
assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

RETEtERRNTEREEHER - K
SEEBEC BT ENLRKATEYE
B (ER) - 202338318 K&
EEEERRER—HBEQ AR HME
W 5K T8 4,933,000 & 5 K15 B R A 18 15
e WHEZE2023F3831HIEFEIER
5 1B 54,933,000 F 45 © B ZE 20244 3
ﬂmaﬁir EEMEAREEEED
11,0008 F o AEBH T REERUGK
EMIﬁET BWTEK °

AR ZHFREEREEFERERT
mﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁ7'$%llmrm&ﬁ
RN EERRAR

TRAMEIAKBALETAREEER
HENEREERANEENEERR

Gross carrying  Gross carrying

amount amount
BREAE REAE
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 FA2023%
3A31H 3A31H
Note Internal Credit Rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
P AEMEERTR 128 A2 BRFEEEEEE FHER THER
Trade receivables (Note a) 23 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 5,877 6,014
B SR (f7ta) BR FHEREEEE - TREERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 1,226 6,014
Rif PHEREEEE - TREERAE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
— FHEREEEE - TEESRE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not cred|t—|mpa\red 1 9
REE FHEREEEE - TREERE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit—impawed 10,212 35,132
TR PHEBEEFE-FERE
Retention receivables (Note a) 23 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
RES R (H7ta) BR FHEHEEEE - VRESRHE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
Ry FHEREEERE - TREERAE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 33 33
UNES P HEREEEE - TREERAE
Poor Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - 3428
TR FHEREEEE - TREERE
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued) 5. MEEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE(E)
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
amount amount
IREAE RmeE
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 20235
3A31H 3H31H
Note Internal Credit Rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
st AEMEETAR 1218 Az 2 BEEEEEE THER THER
Other receivables 23 Good 12-month ECL 11,391 11,591
Hith EYFIR BR RERAEHREERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
RyF PHENEEEE - URESHE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired 460 730
—K FHEHEEEE - UREERHE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit- |mpa|red 8,288 7,183
TR FHEREEEE - GERE
Contract assets (Note a) 24 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 39,290 34,861
BRIEE(Mita) BR ZHBHEEBE - TEEENE
Fair Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 18,680 16,197
Ryf FHEREEEE - TREERE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 13 55
—# PHEREREEE - TREERA
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - 54
Rz FHBHEEBE - TREENE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 24,338 25,920
R FHEREEEE - GERE
Fixed deposits 25  Good 12-month ECL 30,509 28,358
EHER BR REAEBEEEE
Cash and bank balances 26 Good 12-month ECL 6,497 1,547
Re RRITHER BR REAEHREERE
Notea: For trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the Group has Hiita - RB S RRFEREWBFIBARENEET
applied the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance T ARBECERBRS SRS ERE
at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these MEEF NG E2HBEREEBENER
items based on individual assessment. B o AEBRBERNFEETZEEE

EIREIEREIR o
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

()

130 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets under simplified approach.

5. BEREE(E)

(b) FEREER(E)

TREFIREBETANE S RRESE
WRIEREKEEMERN2MEHEER
BRENE) -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit ECL (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEHEA
FEEE 2 HITEHA
(BEEE FEEE
RiE) (EERME) et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHERE FHER FHRE R
1 April 2022 202254 H1H - 46,970 46,970
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE 3 2,233 2,236
Written-off bk - (3,762) (3,762)
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3H31H 3 45,441 45,444
Reversal of impairment losses recognised & FE 5208 (B B 18 B (O] 3) (9,909) (9,912)
Written-off b - (1,153) (1,153)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H - 34,379 34,379
Liquidity risk () REBESRE

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group'’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 31 March 2024, the Group
has available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
RM26,025,000 (2023: RM28,530,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from prevailing market interest rates at the end of each reporting
period.

BGMC International Limited
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

5.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the

MR EE(E)

(0 RBESEMR(E)

REASESBAEIABRRSRENF

Group's financial liabilities is as follows: HEERSATINT -
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Between Between undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year 1to2years  2to5years cash flows amount
mETYE  REREE REB
kS F-FR —EWF “ERF REREAR REAE
At 31 March 2024 12024534318 % RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
% THER THER THER THES THER
Trade and other payables ZHREENFE - 92,072 - - 92,072 92,072
Lease liabilities HEAE 1.4 3 127 29 429 395
Redeemable secured loan stacks EEEERENES 150 - 49,490 - 49,490 48,515
92,345 49,617 29 141,991 140,982
Weighted
average Ondemand Total Total
effective orwithin Between Between  undiscounted carmying
interest rate 1 year 1102 years 2105 years cash flows amount
mEFE  RERER REH
UES —FR —ERE “ERF  BRenERE REE(E
At 31 March 2023 R03E3A31A % RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
% THER THER THER THER THER
Trade and other payables B REMEMNTE - 129691 - - 129691 129691
Lease liabiltes HERR 565 235 36 - 271 16
Bank overdafts BITEX - 2889 - - 2889 2889
Redeemable secured loan stocks REAERERES 150 - - 49,885 49,885 48272
132815 36 49,885 182,736 181,098
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d)

132 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as certain of its
bank balances and borrowings are subject to floating interest rates.
Management considers any significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
its fixed-rate bank deposits and borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to floating interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and assumed the amounts outstanding at the end of this
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and held
constant throughout the financial year. If interest rates on interest
bearing borrowings were 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the (loss)/profit for the year would
increase/decrease (2023: decrease/increase) by approximately
RM183,000 (2023: RM133,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent

interest rate risk because the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued) 5. MEEREE(E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March 2023 and (e) 2023%F3H31HK2024%F3H31H
31 March 2024 SRITAER
At amortised At amortised

cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL

BAoYE EAEE

bi7¢: Eic)o sTABE  WEHENAR FFABE

As at As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2024 2024 2023 2023

20244 202445 20234 20234

3A31H 38318 3A31H 3A31H

Financial assets SREE RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHEE THER THERF

Trade and other receivables E 5 K H b fE R IE
(including cash and cash (BERSERESZEEY)
equivalents) 119,230 - 128,127 -
Investment in redeemable 7 7] (2] A S (B S A
convertible preference shares I E - - - 5,694
119,230 - 128,127 5,694
At amortised At amortised
cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
RATE BEAEE
R sFABE  REHEAR FFAEZ=E
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023

20244 H202445F 20234 20234

3A31H 3A31H 3H31H 3H31H

Financial liabilities SRIEE RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHEH TS FHRESR

Other financial liabilities Higsmas 140,982 - 181,098 -
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5. Financial Risk Management (continued)
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(f) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
current and previous financial years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes
borrowings, lease liabilities and redeemable secured loan stocks as
disclosed in Notes 29, 31 and 28 respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents, attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, redeemable preference shares reserves,

other reserve and accumulated losses.

The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group will also balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if
necessary.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of
the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

BGMC International Limited
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 6. NFEFTE(E)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEER
The table below analyses fair value measurements for financial assets TRAMERFEERERE D W EE
and financial liabilities, by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based BN ASENeREERERAEEDN
on the inputs to valuation techniques. NHERTE ©
At 31 March 2023 2023538318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R ot B=R mat
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
THER THES THESR THES
Recurring fair value measurements: EE M A FEE :
Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEFABRNEREE
Investment in redeemable convertible 7 A] B[] A 824 S iR 9128
preference shares - 5,694 - 5,694
The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities REFEVFRATFEAENEREER
not carried at fair value are not materially different from their fair BEMRAEELN2023F3A3TAHA
values as at 31 March 2023. In April 2023, Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd. FETBERER - B20235F4H + Kuala
and Machang Estate (Il) Sdn. Bhd. have fully redeemed the RCPS of Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd. & Machang Estate (1)
RM2,549,000 and RM3,145,000 respectively. Sdn. Bhd. B %3 5l 2 B4 FE 5] A] FE 2] AT 484 (8
FERR2,549,0007K T 5 }.3,145,000FK F 45 ©
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of TREJNERFEEHMEENETENRAF
significant non-financial assets, including their levels in the fair value B BEATEERNER -
hierarchy.
At 31 March 2024 202453 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-® Lt £t st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000
THER THER THER THER
Recurring fair value measurements:  EE M A FEE :
Investment properties KEYE
Commercial A - - 49,385 49,385
At 31 March 2023 720233 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E_M E= st
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER FHER THER FHER
Recurring fair value measurements:  EEMALEHE !
Investment properties "EME
Commercial A - - 47971 47,971
FiR 2020 EBFIBERIZRARDF 135
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AFEE ()

(b) AVEFE

6. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 6.

(b) Measurement of fair value
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Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2024:

The Group's chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the chief financial officer and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are
mainly:

- price per square foot of comparable properties and lands

Level 3 fair value measurements

REE2023F3 A31H %2024%3A318
FrAMERFARRAFEFEFMAHER
T s ABUER TN T ¢

AEEERUHEARETEERARN
R EFEMEMBRER S BREF =
BRE=FNFEFE BFEUBEEEE
MEEFERZEAFEFE - AWK
FHEFEFFHRIBITMAEE - B
EERFRER -

RE_RRE=RLFEAENS A%
E-—ReEZEAGIAVNEXERAAGT
WL ERR N EFZETHE

FEZPAFEFEMRANES A R
BASEETEA

—  AILEYER TG RERE
E=HKAFEFE

Effect on fair

value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
BABELM
it ER EXTUHERAYE gE HATENTE ALE
As at
31 March
2024
R2024%F
3H31H
RM'000
THER
Commercial investment properties  Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics ~ =50% to +5% Increase 47,355
approach of the properties (decrease)
HRRENE LA MEFIEEEB(TE) -50%Z+5% EmeRL)
Residential lands Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics  ~20% to -15% Increase 1,580
approach of the properties (decrease)
BN MELEE MEFIEREEB(TE) -20%Z-15% EmeED)
Service apartment Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics 0% Increase 450
approach of the properties (decrease)
BBERAE MELEE MEFIERE(TE) 0% #EMORD)

BGMC International Limited
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e MR RR MR

6. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 6. AFVEFE(E)
(b) Measurement of fair value (continued) (a) AFEFE(E)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=RKAFEFNE

Effect on fair

value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
B ABEEM
S fhE R EATAERBARE #E HLATENTE ATE
Asat
31 March
2023
2023F
3A318
RM'000
THEs
Commercial investment properties  Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics RM179 to Increase 45,891
approach of the properties RM794 per sq.f
BRREME (il d v NEFIERE (TR BYAR bl
179 ERHE
1AM E R
Residential lands Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics ~ RM89 per sg.f Increase 1,560
approach of the properties
FER [kl d v NEFIRE(TE) BYAR bl
BOME R
Service apartment Market comparable Premium (discount) on characteristics  RM430 per sg.f Increase 520
approach of the properties
RBELE ikl d v MEFIRE(TE) BYAR bl
BORER
There were no changes in the valuation techniques used as at 31 #0233 A31H N 202443 A31 BB
March 2023 and 31 March 2024. 1B BT
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7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 7. Uz~ 1SR WA RS BER
and Segmental Information

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) BEFEEHWERD
The Group derives its revenue from contract with customers in the REETEPEHWRNE 2R RRN
following major revenue streams: N
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
EZ20245F BHZ2023F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TR E R
Building construction revenue BFREEWR 116,522 107,451
Supply and installation of elevators HpE R LB 415 37
Management fee income EEEWA 133 2,622
117,070 110,110
Representing: ToHIEIEG ¢
Continuing operations SIBICE ET 117,070 110,110
Timing of revenue recognition: W B SRR ] -
Over time g 5 ] 117,070 110,110
(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers (b) BEEEHCEHNER
Building construction pr-f==k:
The Group provides building construction services to customers. Such RNEERMBEPIREEFEERE - BBEN
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over EFERSILRRPIEHINEE  ZER
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer RSB RAABRITERAEE - @iAEH
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for B AEE NS AT P R MR SR
these construction services based on the stage of completion of the FERIA ©

contract using input method.

The Group's construction contracts include payment schedules REBNBRESNBIEERNZERENA
which require stage payments over the construction period once EWETIEC BRSO E SR
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group may require sk «c AEBERGEERA TREPIEMY
certain customers to provide upfront deposits of certain % of total AWNBBEETFASLLHFIEIES - BARE
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit before construction EREER TAKEIZS @ EERANH
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of WWRELEENEE  BEEZAHERNIK
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract HBBIL S S5 o

exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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e M RRME

7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 7. Iz » S HH B AR 2 HE H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(b) BEFENZENEEE)

(continued)

Building construction (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same contract,
is recognised over the period in which the construction services are
performed representing the Group's right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights are conditioned on the Group's
future performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention sum receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, ranges from one to two years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires and invoiced. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specification and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.

Management fee income

The Group is compensated for services through a monthly fee earned
based on the promised consideration in the relevant agreements.
The services represent a series of distinct daily management services
rendered over time and such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group transfers the benefit of the
services to the customer as it performs. Consistent with the transfer
of control for distinct and daily services to the customer, revenue is
recognised at the end of each period for the fees associated with the
services performed.

BFEEE)

BEMEEHKRER-ANBERZANA
B)REITAEXNRGHRER - KRAE
Bt ARG WM EZERN - REZ
BREENBURR AR B R REE D ERIETE
B1R - BERAKABEGESS - AIGNEE
BEREEE SRR -

R & FEWGRIB B RE R LA & (T B WAl
NERENEE - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{%ﬁﬁﬁkﬂlk
ERTHR 2 AR —EMFETE - A
EEHRERKEARE  aNEEZHEAE
CREFHEREFHEWGIE - REET
RN REAMIT 2 RERBRAEEEN
g MBEARETEIFEE -

EEBEWA

AEEE BRIFRE T AGNOLER
B A BEEREKA - ZF R EHER
BREN—FRITEN A EEERSE - M
% F BRAG A7 5 B B 40 B 5 AR A5 M en 88 75
EXPRHERHEEARCENBOEL -
B[R P EETR K B F ARG H 26—
B WaE R SRR ERSNIERE &
FRHERR. -
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e MR RRME

7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the transaction

price allocated to performance obligations that is unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024.

7. Wi BHBBRARIBER
(#&)

(c)

PEFEFENBRTBENREEINRS
B

TRETREZR2023F3 318 k202443
A3BPRERTR (I D RTK)EL
EANRZERBELHE -

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
12024F 720234
3A31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Building construction revenue EFEERE 610,369 158,641
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
120244 20234
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TR E
Representing: TEEIRG
Continuing operations B ET 610,369 158,641
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e MR RR MR

7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 7. Iz » S HH B AR 2 HE H

and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)
(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance () PTEFEFENBRTENEINRS
obligation for contracts with customers (continued) B (&)
The Group expect revenue from unsatisfied performance obligations RNEBEFEHR KBNS EaI RGP
to recognised in the following years as follows: T T LARER
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
#2024F 2023
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TR ER
Within one year —FNR 507,030 137416
More than one year, but not more than 2 years i —FE T BIBMRE 103,339 21,225
610,369 158,641
(d) Income from concession agreements (d) SFHFiHBWA
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZE2024F BZE20235F
3A31H 3A31H
LFE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Imputed interest income from REPPA REPPA &y & F1| B U A 687 10,292
Supply of electricity BAHE 237 5,078
924 15,370
Representing: T3 & IE ¢
Discontinued operations (Note 15) BRI TS (Mt 15) 924 15,370
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7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]

142 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a REPPA with
TNB to design, construct, own, operate and maintain a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility (“the Facility”) with a
capacity of 30MWac proposed to be located in Kedah, Malaysia
to generate and deliver solar photovoltaic energy to TNB. BGMC
Bras Power will sell to TNB, and TNB will purchase from BGMC
Bras Power the Net Electrical Output generated by the Facility
and delivered to TNB in exchange for energy payments as set
out in the REPPA (“the Kuala Muda Project”).

The REPPA is for a period of 21 years (“the Term") commencing
upon the fulfillment of the Condition Precedent (“CP") set out
in the REPPA and expires on the day before the 21st anniversary
of the CP fulfillment date (including such day), unless otherwise
extended in accordance with certain clauses or terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the REPPA. Upon expiry of the
Term or the earlier termination of the REPPA, TNB shall have the
right to disconnect the TNB Interconnection Facility from the
Facility.

The financial asset arising from the REPPA, which represents
the fair value of the consideration receivable for the preliminary
services delivered, amounted to RM187,319,000 (2023:
RM188,579,000) as at 26 April 2023, and is included as assets
classified as held for sales as disclosed in Note 15. Such receivable
is settled over the Term of the REPPA. Since BGMC Bras Power’s
entitlement is to receive the energy payments resulted from
construction work provided as well as the operation and
maintenance of the Facility upon commercial operation date
as defined under the REPPA, the related contract asset was
discounted over the Term using a rate of return specific to the
Facility to give a constant periodic rate of return on the financial
asset in each period. The imputed interest income recognised
during the period from 1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 amounted
to RM687,000 (year ended 31 March 2023: RM10,292,000).

Revenue from supply of electricity of RM237,000 for the period
from 1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 (year ended 31 March 2023:
RMS5,078,000) is recognised when the electricity is generated and
transmitted.

BGMC International Limited

7. Wz

(%)

BHHERARD BER

(d) #FEFIHZBUA (&)

0]

7201843 F27H + BGMC Bras Power
EATNBET M REPPA » LARRET ~ B3
WA - R REERGE I REER
FE([FZ&iE]) - A2 R30IEEMN
BRI ABRAEDRFITIMN A
MTNBAEZE K B ik KI5 82 IKREIR o
BNREPPAFTEL * BGMC Bras Power #[A)
TNB & & TNB# B BGMC Bras Power
BEAZREEENFHEES I
B TNBE X AR BN EE & ([ IR iR 18
B -

REPPA K HABR 7% B 3 AKX REPPAFT K %
G ([ e REH D BT F([EF
) - WA ERK SR G B BB T
FE2VEBFEE BHAET B ER(RiEZ
H) - BRIFARIEREPPAE T 53T B sk
RIRH AR TELIERE RlER © ZF
HAJE M S REPPATR HIER IE1& - TNBA
T B %R M T TNB BB AR ie o

WM FEISATIR B8 - REPPAFTE £ 1Y
CRMEERRVITMIRHRGE
WHREMNRFE - R2023F4H26
H % 187,319,000 #& & #F (2023 F :
188,579,000 E 1) + Bt AN R
FIEHEMEE - BABBKFKER
REPPAZ FHANAETE © FBGMC Bras
Power B fE W AR FL IRt E & T2 A K
REPPATREMM XL ER BEZR
M2 E MMEEFTELETE - 1HE
B E N T EIRE R e MY E B
WEAE - URESHHEREMEE
RMHTFERERE - B2023F4818E
2023F 4 A 26 B HARRIRER M E FI 2
WA #687,000/ & 15 (k2202353 H
31EIEERE 10,292,000/ F ) ©

202354 A 18 2202354 A26H Hf
4 B U 25 237,000 78 35 4 (i 22023
F3A31HIEFE © 5078000/ FH 55)
REE R BRER o
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e M RRME

7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 7. Iz » S HH B AR 2 HE H

and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)

(e) Segment information (e) HEBER
Information reported to the Executive Director of the Company, being HERDE LSRRG ENELZ TR
the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource NAMTES(AIEELERARE)NER
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types EZEMEHORSESE - W ARNEBHEE
of services provided. This is the basis which the Group is organised. HYE%E o

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under BEEmsS - m’i R 15 B R B & 3R 5 R
IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” are as follows: EeR BN IE DL E RAIMED
|

(i)  Building and structures — provision of construction services in () BFELEE - REEFREBESET
building and structural construction works; TSR

(i) Energy infra-structure — provision of construction services in (i) BERERE - IREEREX YT
energy transmission and distribution works; FREERRTS

(i) Mechanical and electrical — provision of construction services in (i) HWNEF —REERLE TR
mechanical and electrical installation works; and REERE &

(iv) Earthworks and infrastructure — provision of construction vy TARERE-REHLIFTTIREREZET
services in earthworks and infrastructure construction works. REER

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group has certain br LAl E S FSN - AEBDBETE

operating segments (including supply and installation of elevators) ISP (B IEFHRRE R L E R 28 )W R =

that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining HETERAIRED T E(CEAR - %

reportable segments. These operating segments are grouped under EREDHEDHENEMIDET o

"Others” segment.
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e MR RRME

7. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 7. & * B HBURAR S HBER

and Segmental Information (continued) (%&)
Geographical information IR E R
No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue BERIRIEE 5 KRG i - AEB K E
is all derived from Malaysia based on the location of trading and services 2ERESERADR ARAEBIFERDEELRE
delivered and the Group's non-current assets are located in Malaysia by ENERMEE UM AERAD  MITES
physical location of assets. FI IR S ELE RS o
Information about major customers EFRETERFNEHR
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the total RAFEBEAEERELCEEB R EBR
revenue from continuing operations of the Group during the year are as 10% A ERE PR -
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
HZE20245F B &2023F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Customer Z (a) BFZ @) 14,473 N/A*
N iE A
Customer Y (a) BPY @) 72,743 63,781
Customer X (a) 25X (a) 26,013 N/A*
TEA*
Customer W (a) BFEW (a) N/A* 21,820
s A
(@) These customers are from the building and structure segment. @) ZERFPHKBEBFEREBHI -
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue from * HER T EE AR EFBECEEBWEEER
continuing operations of the Group. T0%MA L ©
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mE M BEHmRME

Other Income 8. HA
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
HE20245F B ZE2023F
3A31H 3A31H
ILEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHES THRE R
Bank interest income HITHBWA 681 548
Written back of goods and services tax payable FEAS 7 M AR S (B 4,228 -
Rental income LW A 162 26
Gains on extinguishment of debts (Note 28) B IEEBWE(ATFE28) - 160
Others Hih 712 706
5,783 1,440

Representing: ToIEIEG ¢

Continuing operations FEICE TS 5,783 1,220
Discontinued operations (Note 15) BRI T (Mt 15) = 220
5,783 1,440

Reversal of Impairment Loss/(Impairment Losses)
of Financial Assets and Contract Assets, Net and

9. TRMEERGNEEZREFER
B, ORERE) B8R i F

Other Gains, Net L]
(@) Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment loss) of (a) *REERGHNEEZREFER
financial assets and contract assets, net B CGREREE)E5HE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
HZE20245F HZE20234F
3A31H 3A31H
IFEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
THEHS FrER
Reversal of impairment losses/ BEEBERCREERE) :
(impairment loss) on:
Trade and retention receivables (Note 23) E 5 RIRE S EWGRIB (H1:#23) 9,383 2,225
Other receivables (Note 23) Ho A FE MR IA (7 5523) 600 (4,482)
Contract assets (Note 24) BNEE(HWHE24) 529 (4,461)
10,512 (6,718)
Written-off: s
Trade and retention receivables B 5 MRE S KGR - (130)
Contract assets AHNEE (104) (54)
Deposit Be (403) (45)
(507) (229)
10,005 (6,947)
Representing: T3 &8 ¢
Continuing operations RHBICE T 10,005 (6,947)
EER 2024 ERIERRIZERARAF 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

9. Reversal of Impairment Loss/(Impairment Losses) 9. 2REERANEEZREFER

of Financial Assets and Contract Assets, Net and B (REEE) FEREMKES
Other Gains, Net (continued) R (E)
(b) Other gains, net (b) HfbWzs 358
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ2024F B ZE 20234
3A31H 3A31H
LEE IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Realised loss on foreign exchange B2 IR SN B 18 (14) (34)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYE  BMEMREZ
plant and equipment Wiz, (E518) 630 (2992)
Reversal of impairment loss of property, Y% - BE MR ERERE
plant and equipment = 4,140
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange REIRIMEEIE (55) (10)
Fair value gains/(loss) on investment properties R & 7 A AW (EB1E)
(Note 19) (Bfat19) 1,414 (1442)
Written-off of investment properties under WEHTE R EWE(HaE19)
construction (Note 19) (188) -
Reversal of provision of performance bonds B #) 1R 1k Fa A B o) - 25,797
Compensation paid B ES - (1,980)
1,787 23,479
Representing: TEEIRG
Continuing operations SEICEETS 1,787 25,476
Discontinued operation (Note 15) BRI T (Mt 15) - (1,997)
1,787 23,479
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e MR RME
10. Finance Costs 10. @& LA
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ20245F B ZE 20234
3A31H 3A31H
LEFEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FHRER
Interest on: TFEEZFE
Borrowings EBE 1,865 2,272
Lease liabilities (Note 18) HEBEWZ18) 116 1,068
Redeemable secured loan stocks AIEOERFEERES 720 535
2,701 3,875
Representing: T3 &8 ¢
Continuing operations SIEIC T 1,577 1,077
Discontinued operations (Note 15) BRI T (Mt 15) 1,124 2,798
2,701 3,875
11. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 1. FiiEHimx(ER)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ20245F B E20234F
3A31H 3A31H
LEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FHRE R
Malaysia Corporate Income Tax: TS RPAEE (R RPN
Current year REE 4 570
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERG (281) (127)
(277) 443
Deferred tax: ERERIIA
Current year NEE 422 987
145 1,430
Representing: B
Continuing operations SEBISE TS (277) 489
Discontinued operations (Note 15) BRI T (Mt 15) 422 941
145 1,430
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e MR RRME

11. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued) 1. Frigfimsx (ER) (&)
Reconciliation between income tax and (loss)/profit before tax IR RREARRTENSEREER
from continuing operations at the applicable tax rate: ZBRBAT (B518) 5 R Z B E R
A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/profit before KRB RHEKIOMBREIALEEMENLE
tax from continuing operations using the applicable rates for the regions in AR ENEBCEEB BT (EER),
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the wmAERRIEGER) AR ERTRHE
tax (credit)/expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: MFE(ER), FXEERNT

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ20245F B ZE 20234
3A31H 3A31H
LEFEE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations REFELEER 2
BRBEAT(E51R) SR F (8,483) 7,286
Statutory tax rate in Malaysia R TEANEER X 24% 24%
Tax at applicable statutory tax rate WA E R RN HTHIE (1,969) 2,152
Tax effects of: AN B IBRNIBE
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TR ARG 3,083 9,030
Income not taxable for tax purposes AR A (6,326) (11,446)
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised B ARERHNIIAEE (16) (90)
Tax losses not recognised RERHTIAGE 5,143 4,343
Other temporary differences HihE =5 72 (3,791)
Overprovision of estimate BT F AT R E
tax expense in prior years (281) 81)
Others EHAh 17 372
(277) 489
Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate on the R ENEHR NS ERREE 2 HE
estimated assessable profits for each of the assessable year. JERFUE N HPEER REAHE o
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11. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unabsorbed
capital allowances can be utilised. As at 31 March 2024, the estimated
amounts of unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other
deductible temporary differences arising from contract assets for which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements due to uncertainty of its realisation, are as follows:

e M RRME

1. S8R, (KR) (&)

TEARRFERT G R A & FE LUK S5 A F0 5
TRERE  ADBREBERRARMNE LR
HRBERT - SHATAAHNRERESE - K5
ARIEEE R ARMNE N R R EEREETHRE
BE - R2024F38318  REREILERIBEE
B RRESE ME T R B R A B IS R FERR IR R
HEEMRSBMERIE RBRAEREHEHE
MAEKHEEEEMNHEAM A HRE R E2E0EE
SR :

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

12024F 20234

3A31H 3A31H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER TMHER

Unused tax losses REVAMIAEE 185,266 163,904
Unabsorbed capital allowances RN E R BHiEE 21,004 21,146
Contract assets BRIEE 1,670 2,113
207,940 187,163

The unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible
temporary differences arising from contract assets are available for offset
against future chargeable profits.

Under the Malaysia Finance Act 2018 which was gazetted on 27 December
2018, the unused tax losses of subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia
amounting to approximately RM185,266,000 (2023: RM163,904,000) as
at 31 March 2024 will be imposed with a time limit of utilisation. Any
accumulated unused tax losses brought forward from year of assessment
2024 can be carried forward for another 10 consecutive years of assessment
(i.e. from year of assessments 2025 to 2034).

ARPHHABE - ARAELARTENRANE
EMELHEMA MR GRS ERAAEHER
KIERTOEA]

BIER 2018512 27 B FIEHIK2018F 2K A s
BfECAZ) - P 2R PG 2 sE A SZ A0 BT BB A R &Y
KRB B IS B R 202443 A 31 B 185,266,000
R (20234F 163,904,000 F 55 ) » 1585
TINEYFABRER o FR2024FF 8 F E A AT M R R 5T
KRBTSR R 7] AR A AR 4 (BD
F2025F 22034 F M FE) o
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e MR RRME

12. (Loss)/Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations 12. R B S E R & £ & 2 BB A1 (55

B),RF
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations has been arrived after REFELEER 2RI AT(ER) 87 ThE

charging/(crediting):

BB GT AR T EEESH

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ20245F B ZE 20234
3A31H 3H31H
LHFEE IEFE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 22) EREESE(WF22) 286 278
Auditor's remuneration ZEE &
Audit services E1ZRTE 617 561
Non-audit services HE R = 1
Cost of sales and services HE KRR 124,361 105,766
Depreciation charge of: THEBEFERX
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) M - BB RERE M E7) 44 54
Right-of-use assets (Note 18) CREEEMFZ18) 272 289
Reversal of impairment loss of property, W - R MR ERERE
plant and equipment = (4,140)
Legal and professional fees FEERBEER 2,749 1,056
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - BEREBEZ
plant and equipment (Mz),/ &8 (630) 2,992
Reversal of provision of performance bond B #1R 1k Fa A B o) - (25,797)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties WEWE T N HERE),EE
(Note 19) (Bfiz19) (1,414) 1,442
Written off of investment properties (Note 19) MsERE (M EE19) 188 -
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BTIRA(BIEESNG)
— Wages and salaries —IEKE® 9,926 9,496
— Employees Provident Fund —REQES 1,122 1,081
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e MR RR MR

13. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s 13. 25 - E{THAEREE#MS

Remuneration
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEMWESHT :
Year ended 31 March 2024 BiE2024F3A31HLFE
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  and benefits Bonus  contribution
fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
EXHH
EHR A REMR
EEhe ENER (Bizta)  sTEINER @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THEH THER THEH THEH THEH
Executive Directors HTES
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (Note (c)) S2BEER (M) 132 369 135 60 696
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kua Choh Leang i 107 - - - 107
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman 2EKamalul Arifin Bin Othman 120 - - - 120
Datuk Kang Hua Keong (Note (b)) SETESMZ0) 9 - - - 9%
323 - - - 323
455 369 135 60 1,019
Year 31 March 2023 BiE2023F3A31HLFE
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors'  and benefits Bonus  contribution
fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
EREH
IR TEAT FEET
EEHe B (Brita)  FEIROHET @5t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Thak T THER FHak Thak
Executive Directors HTES
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (Note ¢) SEHEF (Hizc) 132 316 - 38 436
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (Note (d) R EeBNETEE W ) 2 - - - 2
Kua Choh Leang T4 102 - - - 102
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman 28 Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman 120 - - - 120
Datuk Kang Hua Keong (Note (b)) SBTER(MHD) 74 - - - 74
298 - - - 298
430 316 - 38 784
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e MR RRME

13. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s
Remuneration (continued)

Notes:

(a) Bonus are determined based on the results of the Group and/or performance of
directors.

(b) Datuk Kang Hua Keong was appointed on 24 June 2022.

() Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is the chief executive officer of the Group, and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive
officer.

(d)  Tan SriDato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha resigned on 8 April 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group and the
Company. The non-executive directors’ emoluments were for their services
as directors of the Company.

Employees

The five (2023: five) highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one (2023: one) existing director, details of whose emoluments
are set out above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining four (2023:
four) highest paid employees who are neither an existing director nor chief
executive of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023 are as follows:

B.EE - &ST

BAEREEMS

=

(#&)
wiz -

(@ TEALVRBAKENEER REFRBAET -

() EEITERN2022F6FA24BHET -

© EEBENAAEETRER MELXAKRE
RS B EEEETRERRREHREHOME

d) FHHEEEHETHEEN202F4A8AEHT -

HTESTHNHIEZRESMREHRAREER
SEEARREHORBAGME - JERTE
EZ2HFMIBEFERARBREF MRS
Z FASH#EN o

(=]

REEBRAFENAE(2023F : AR)E=H
EEBIE—R(2023F : —R)RIESE H
FINFBH N L o 8 THE (20234 : MA)
EaEES (WIERARFRAEEKESTR
AB)EE2024F3 8318 K£20235F3 831 B IHEF
ERFHHFERHNAT

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

BZ20245F B ZE2023F

3A31H 3H31H

LHEE IEFE

RM’000 RM'000

FHEH FHRER

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ARG - 2B R B YEF 1,369 1,218
Bonus TE4T 315 -
Contribution to defined contribution plan REHIETEIR R 202 146
1,886 1,364
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13. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s

14

15

e MR RR MR

B.EE ESTHRAEREEMS

Remuneration (continued) (#&)
Employees (continued) EE (&)
The emoluments fell within the following band: e BER AT EE -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
HZE20245F HE20234F
3A31H 3A31H
IEFE WHFE
Number of individuals
AL
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 L% 1,000,000 7T 3 4
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T £ 1,500,00078 7T 1 -

During both financial year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors waived any emoluments during both financial years.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend any dividends payment in respect of the
year (2023: Nil).

Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

BGMC Bras Power
The Group completed the disposal of the interest in 95% ordinary shares in

BGMC Bras Power on 26 April 2023. BGMC Bras Power was engaged in the
provision of renewable energy. The details are set out in the Note 3(b).

AEERZRET BEEARERATAERR
hEHESHFMALTNMEIAERIMAZ A
AEER ) ER BB E - BIEEFNZM
Ef BRFEREE AN -

14. BE

EETERSMNAFEIRA AR (20235 ¢
)

15. ERUEREXRBRRIBR/IFELE

ZIERBEE BIB|RFEHE
ZEEEENMEBZEE

BGMC Bras Power
N £ B 722023 F 4 A 26 B 72 B H & BGMC Bras

PowerHy95% & A AE S ° BGMC Bras Powerftt =&
IRMAT AR o SEEEHNHIE3b)
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15. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 15. BRI REER R > EAZELE
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABELHE

Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale ZEEEEHEBz2EE(E)
(continued)
BGMC Bras Power (continued) BGMC Bras Power (#%)

Ly e Tl A HeE

The operation is classified as discontinued operation for the period from 1 ARIBDRIB2023F4 A %2023%2)? 26854
b Z< = He % AN S

April 2023 to 26 April 2023 and for the year ended 31 March 2023 and its AREE2023F3 A3 ALEFEMERILEEX

%o EEENT

results are as follows:

Period from
1 April 2023 Year
to ended
26 April 2023 31 March 2023
20234 A1 H B ZE2023F
220234 3A318
426 A HAf IFFE
Note RM'000 RM'000
FaE FHEHE FHRE R
(Loss)/profit of BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Powerf (E518) /4 ) 0] (870) 4,462
Gain on disposal of BGMC Bras Power H #BGMC Bras Power#J 4 &1 (i) 10,050 -
Profit for the year from discontinued REFIRE BRI EEE 2 RN
operations 9,180 4,462
Profit for the year from discontinued LARATEIERFERE
operations attributable to: BRI ST 2w A
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZS DN 9,228 4318
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R A (48) 144
9,180 4,462
The assets and liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held R2023F3A31H - EREARBELEEEER
for sale as at 31 March 2023 are as follows: EENEERAGBNT -
As at
31 March
2023
20234
3A31H
Note RM'000
{iFss FRE R
Assets classified as held-for-sale PERABEHEZEE
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power (iv) 213,932
Liabilities directly associated with HOEABEHEZEE
assets classified as held-for-sale HEERNERE
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power (iv) 104,839
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e MR RR MR

15. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 15. BRI REER R > EAZELE

Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABELHE
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale ZEEREEHEZEE(E)

(continued)
BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(i) Results of BGMC Bras Power

BGMC Bras Power (#&)

(i) BGMC Bras Powerfy ¥4&

Loss for the period from 1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 (date of disposal) 2K B BGMC Bras Power B, #% |F 48 & S A
from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras Power is analysed as 202348 1BE2023F4820B8 (HEHR
follows: ) BRI

Period from
1 April 2023 Year
to ended
26 April 2023 31 March 2023
2023F4A1H HE2023F
0235 3A31H
4 A 268 H#Af IEFE
Note RM'000 RM'000
BfaE FHER TMHE R
Revenue ez 7(d) 237 5,078
Cost of sales THER A (169) (4,071)
Gross profit EA 68 1,007
Income from concession agreements LSRN 7(d) 687 10,292
Other income HABA - 220
Administrative expenses THAX (79) (1,321)
Other loss, net HMEEFERE 9(b) - (1,997)
Profit from operations gyl 676 8,201
Finance costs BhE KA 10 (1,124) (2,798)
(Loss)/profit before tax MR AT (EE), A (448) 5,403
Income tax expense e 11 (422) (947)
(Loss)/profit for the year REZ(ER), 5T (870) 4462
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15. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale
(continued)

BGMC Bras Power (continued)
(i) Results of BGMC Bras Power (continued)
Profit for the period from 1 April 2023 to 26 April 2023 (date of

disposal) from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras Power has
been arrived at after charging:

15. ERIEEEXRR D BRBELE
ZIERBEE BOBRFEHE
ZEEEEZBABEZEE(R)

BGMC Bras Power (#&)
(i) BGMC Bras Powerf 34 (%)
5 B BGMC Bras Power B, #% || & & 2 15 1A

202344 1AE2023F4826B (HER
B HAR A R B IR A TS IBRER

Period from

1 April 2023 Year

to ended

26 April 2023 31 March 2023

202354 A1H HE2023F

0235 3A31H

4 A 268 H#Af IEFE

RM'000 RM'000

FHER THER

Auditor's remuneration ZE N & - 70

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 65 783

(ii) Cash flows from BGMC Bras Power (i) 3REBGMC Bras PowerV &8

Period from

1 April 2023 Year

to ended

26 April 2023 31 March 2023

2023F4A1H HZE2023F

F20235F 3A31H

4 A 268 H#Af IFFE

RM'000 RM'000

FHRER THER

Net cash generated from operating activities KL EBFTRIRE TR 716 3,828

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEB(FTA) /FTBREFE
activities (2,756) 1,136
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be R,/ RAFE (2,040) 4,964
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15. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale
(continued)

BGMC Bras Power (continued)
(iii) Effect of disposal of BGMC Bras Power

The following are the assets and liabilities in respect of the disposal of

e MR RR MR

15. ERIEEEXRR D BRBELE
ZIRBEE ROFAFELE
ZEEEEZBABEZEE(R)

BGMC Bras Power (#&)
(iii) H%£BGMC Bras PowerH) 5/ &

VAR &7202345 4 A 26 B B £ BGMC Bras

BGMC Bras Power on 26 April 2023:

PowerfHEEIEEMEE :

RM'000

THRE S

Right-of-use assets EREEE 15,281
Contract assets BHEE 187,319
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERGRIA 5,697
Tax recoverable AT EIF I8 52
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 2,978
Trade and other payables B 5 KA ERFIE (34,242)
Borrowings — secured BHE-BE&A (70,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE (1,409)
Lease liabilities HERE (15,940)
Net assets of BGMC Bras Power disposed of B & HIBGMC Bras Power/F & & 89,736
Less: Non-controlling interests W SRR RS (36)
89,700

Less: cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid & : BUWIRERE (R DX HAKA) (99,750)
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary LE—RMB ARz W (10,050)
Cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid BUREREFIBRENRSHA) 99,750
Less: Cash and bank balance disposed of B BHERE RIBITER (2,978)
Less: Redemption of redeemable preference shares R+ &[SI AT B B1E ST AR (89,300)
Less: Unsettled consideration included in other receivables W A AR EREIERN R EENRE (2,140)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEEENFESRA 5,332
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15. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 15. BRI REER R > EAZELE
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABELHE

Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale ZEEREEHEZEE(E)
(continued)

BGMC Bras Power (continued) BGMC Bras Power (&)

(iv) Assets and liabilities associated with BGMC Bras Power and (iv) EZBGMC Bras Poweri8 83 /4202353 A

classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2023

For presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2023, the amounts due to Group amounting to
approximately RM18,403,000 were excluded from the total assets
associated with BGMC Bras Power classified as held-for-sale.

MNASEARFHENEERAEE

B 2MEE2023F3 A31 BWER A B AR
IR - FER RS BIFRIE 418,403,000/ F
= B BABGMC Bras Power#B B8 48 A1 E
HEMBEER NG

As at

31 March

2023

20234

3A31H

RM'000

THRE S

Right-of-use assets HREEE 15,346

Contract assets BHEE 188,579

Trade receivables B 5 [EUWGRIA 4,273

Tax recoverable AT EIF I8 52

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIA ~ e R EAMFEWGRIA 664

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 5018
Assets associated with BGMC Bras Power E22BGMC Bras Powert8 R8I 7 38

classified as held-for-sale ABEHENEE 213,932

Amount due to Group JE AR EFRIA 18,403

Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFIE 27424

Borrowings — secured BE-BEMA 60,397

Deferred tax liabilities FREFIBEE 987

Lease liabilities HEAE 16,031
Total liabilities associated with BGMC Bras E2BGMC Bras PowerifEE I 5 38

Power classified as held-for-sale ABEHENBARE 123,242

Less: Amounts due to the Group A R AREERIE (18,403)
Liabilities associated with BGMC Bras E2BGMC Bras PowerifBE I 5 38

Power classified as held-for-sale ABEHENERE 104,839
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16. (Loss)/Earnings Per Share

(a)

(b)

()

From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RM1,164,000 (2023:
profit of RM11,878,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,800,000,000 (2023: 1,800,000,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There is no diluted (loss)/earnings per share in 2024 and 2023 as
there was no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting
period.

From continuing operations
Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
loss for the year from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RM10,392,000 (2023: profit of
RM7,560,000) and the denominator used is the same as that detailed
above for basic (loss)/earnings per share.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There is no diluted (loss)/earnings per share in 2024 and 2023 as
there was no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting
period.

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share from the discontinued operation is RM0.52
sen per share (2023: earnings per share of RM0.24 sen per share), based
on the profit for the year from discontinued operations attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately RM9,228,000 (2023:
RM4,318,000) and the denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

There is no diluted earnings per share in 2024 and 2023 as there was
no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

e M RRME

16. R (EER) BF

(a)

(b)

(c)

REFERCRILEEEY
BREX(EBE) BF

AAREEANEBEESRERN(EE) &
FEETE T ERAR B HE ABEAF
[E 518 491,164,000 45 (2023 « 5 FI
11878000 F ) R A FECHTEB
Ji% 0 4 F 5 £11,800,000,000 f% ( 2023 & :
1,800,000,0008%) °

SREBE(BR) BA

20244 K 2023 FE AR EEE (B51R)
BH - REAREBREHEBEETA
B -

REFECEXEE
BREX(BRE) BA

RRFHEBAEREREBELEEBZ
BRERN(EBER) BFNTEHERAR
NEHEEANEBIEREFEREER 2F
B 18 4910,392,00098 & 5 (20236 = & F
7,560,000%8F 45 ) I F B2 G AR AN (JB548)
BFERNSEGHER ESOE -

BREBHE(EE)BF

20245 K 2023 F i E F AL E (EBE)
¥ REAABRE @RS HAESESBER]
HERRL -

REBRILEEXRK

REERIECEEBNEREART R
FIROS2MERED (20234 - BIREF A
BROUMERED) HERARRHESE
AFE(R R B BRI & EBHF N T
#79,228 000K 45 (20234F : 4,318,000k F
) BFTASEEEFINESRER
REES (E18) /BFMER -

FR2024F 2023 F i ESREE AT - R

HRNA B ®RE SRS EE T #E R
,f/\ °

E3R 2024

EFIEBIZERER A F 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

166 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

e BRRME
17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 9% - BRERZE
Machinery
Furniture and site Motor Office
and fittings Computers equipment vehicles equipment Total
HHR
BERRE B BhRE RE BRERE o3t
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
THER THER THES THES THER THER
Cost KA
At 1 April 2022 R202F4R18 146 1434 27,887 543 139 30,149
Addition AE - 25 - - - 25
Disposals e - (5 (7583) (344) - (7932)
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R03F3A31A R
023%F471R 146 1454 20,304 199 139 22242
Addition AE 1 3 - - - %
Disposals HE (15) (7) (4320) (199) - (4.547)
At 31 March 2024 1202435310 132 1,470 15,978 - 139 17,719
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 April 2022 R02F4A18 63 1434 16,233 543 77 18350
Additions HE 15 25 - - 14 54
Disposals e - () (3443) (344) - (3,792)
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R03E3A3A R
03%F471R 78 1454 12,790 199 91 14612
Additions HE 15 19 - 10 - 4
Disposals & () 3) (2.292) (209) - (2.509)
At 31 March 2024 12024535310 88 1,470 10,498 - 91 12,147
Accumulated impairment losses ZitHEER
At April 2022 R02F4518 - - 11,654 - - 11,654
Disposals e - - (4,140) - - (4,140)
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R203F3A31A R
023F4R18 - - 7514 - - 7514
Disposals e - - (2,034) - - (2,034)
At 31 March 2024 1202435310 = = 5,480 - - 5,480
Carrying values BEE
At31 March 2024 2024534318 44 - - - 48 92
At 31 March 2023 #2023F3A31H 68 - - - 48 116

BGMC International Limited



18. Right-Of-Use Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RR MR

18. EFEEE

Disclosures of lease-related items: THEMRBEE NS -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
12024F 2023
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Right-of-use assets HREEE
Land and buildings T RiEF 402 179
Motor vehicles RE - 13
402 192
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash BEAEEEEAERURRE
flows, of the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: REERRESTIOT
Less than 1 year —F AR 273 235
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 127 36
Between 2 and 5 years “ERF 29 -
429 271
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE
Land and buildings T RIEF 324 1,016
Motor vehicles REE 13 56
337 1,072
Less: depreciation from discontinued operation W BRI EER 2 ITE (65) (783)
272 289
Lease interests (Note 10) MENB(HEE10) 116 1,068
Total cash outflow for leases HERS LR 540 2,510
The Group leases various land and buildings, machinery and site equipment NEBMELS BT NIET - HEE RIGHEE

and motor vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 4 years (2023: 1 to 4 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

ARRE - EMRBEE A1 Z24F M E T HR
(2023%FF : 1Z24%F) - FAEK
i WEEE BT EMER R -

KTy (B Bl 2 AR

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group and the respective lessors
entered into renewal lease agreements for the same office premises. The
original lease terms remained unchanged. An additional right-of-use asset
of RM482,000 (2023: RM202,000) was recognised.

HZE2024F3A38EFE  AEEEZHHE
ABR— W AEWME L ER R - RIS
BAE - ERRAEEAREEL82,000/ME F
(2023%F : 202,000/FF 45 ) o
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18. Right-Of-Use Assets (continued)

19

168 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the hire purchase periods of
certain machinery and site equipment and motor vehicles with cost of
approximately RM930,000 and RM277,000, respectively, and net book
values of RMNil and RMNil, respectively, have been completed resulting
in the transfer of the assets from right-of-use assets to property, plant and

equipment.

In addition, the lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interest in the leased assets that are held by the lessor of the

relevant leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

18. EAEEE (&)

HE24F3A3BILEFE KEADRDOAE
930,000 45 12 277,000 & 45 LA & BR T FHE 5
R ASHE R TENE A THW &SR
HUARAEMNRBHE RN  BREEMRFER
HEESBEYE - BEREE -

IS - HE I E i R (fr T HES
EHEARENEBEEEENERES) - 8
EEENMSMEEFNERR

Investment Properties 19. REMH

Investment

properties

under Investment

construction properties Total
EEREWHE REMHE #at
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER FHERE THER
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4H1H 188 25,000 25,188
Additions INE - 24,413 24,413
Fair value loss on investment properties &Y% 2 N FEE1E - (1,442) (1,442)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 7202353 4310 K%20235F4 8180 188 47,971 48,159
Fair value gain on investment properties &Y% 2 N FEUE - 1414 1414
Written-off Bk (188) - (188)
At 31 March 2024 7202453H31H - 49,385 49,385

The Group's investment properties are situated in Malaysia and are
held under long-term leases (over 50 years). As at 31 March 2024, the
Group's investment properties with carrying value of RM49,385,000 (2023:
RM47,971,000) are pledged to secure the redeemable secured loan stocks
(Note 28).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the investment properties under

construction of approximately RM188,000 have been written off which was
recognised in other gains, net.

BGMC International Limited

REBEBZHEMEMRBRALR - WRER
BAFRA) (RBIBS0F ) 75 © 202453 H311H -
7N £ [ BR T {E /449,385,000 7F & 55 (2023 F ¢
47971000 E 55 ) IR EME D EIF - 1ERTA
BRIEEFERESFHOERPITE28)

HE224F3831BILFE @ £2IREWMEY
188,000 EHFE Filiss - W E Mz FREF



20. Other Investment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e KRR
20. Hibig &

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

20245 20234

3A31H 3A31H

RM’000 RM'000

FHEE TG

Other investment:
At cost RM2 (2023: RM2)

HAE -
ERR AR 4 (20234 2PN EE4) -

Particulars of the investment are as follows:

REMBIENT

Place of Proportion of
incorporation Paid-in/ ownership interest and
Name and operation issued capital voting power held Principal activity
=L MR R B8 FREERER FEEWR
AR 3 B 2RITRA iR E AL B
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
R20245F FR20234F
3A31H 3H31H
Sparks Energy International Limited Cayman Islands RM2 0% 0% Investment holding
("SPARKS") HEHS PLANEESS REFERL

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is one of the director of SPARKS, therefore, SPARKS is a
related company.

FE BB RSPARKSHIEE 2 — » FILSPARKS
R—HREERF

21. RO EE TEREERNVIRE

21. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

202445 R20234F

3A31H 3A31H

RM’000 RM'000

FHES FER

Financial assets measured at FVTPL A ETABSHNSREE - 5,694
582024 FEFIEPRZERERDT 169
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21. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC Holdings, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, the Group subscribed 50% of the RCPS in
Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd. ("Kuala Muda Estate”), Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. (‘Machang Estate”) and Machang Estate (Il) Sdn. Bhd. ("Machang
Estate (I1)") (collectively refers to “Land Companies”) for a total
consideration of USD5,363,000 (equivalent to approximately RM22,044,000).

Land Companies had acquired land and lease to BGMC Bras Power, a
subsidiary of the Group and Idiwan Solar, a company incorporated in
Malaysia, for the development of a 30MWa.c. solar photovoltaic energy
production plants in Malaysia, including the Kuala Muda Project and
Machang Project.

The salient features of RCPS are as follows:

(@) the Land Companies shall issue and BGMC Holdings Berhad (“BGMC
Holdings") shall subscribe the RCPS at the value of USD1 each for a
total amount of approximately USD5,363,000;

(b) any payment to be received by the Land Companies under this RCPS
shall be utilised solely for the purpose of purchasing of the land;

(c) subject to the availability of distributable profits, the RCPS shall yield
a fixed cumulative dividend of twenty percent (20%) per annum from
the date which the RCPS has been subscribed by BGMC Holdings;

(d) BGMC Holdings shall, at its option, be entitled to convert all or any part
of the RCPS into ordinary shares at any time after the Land Companies
having been registered as the landowner in the document of title
of the land on the basis of each RCPS being equivalent to 4 ordinary
shares. Such number of ordinary shares that issued on conversion
shall be credited as fully paid and rank pari passu in all respects with
the ordinary shares then in issue in the Land Companies;

(e)  the Land Companies may be entitled at any time at its sole discretion
cancel the RCPS and pay BGMC Holdings the cancellation payment, i.e.
principal and accrued interest;
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21. RA R E ATERE K RIVIRE (&)

1R 1% [ 2 2 & K B 2 3)BGMC Holdings 7] 37 #Y
REEE - AEE R Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd.
([ Kuala Muda Estate | ) * Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. ([ Machang Estate | ) }z Machang Estate (Il)
Sdn. Bhd.([ Machang Estate (I1) |) (£578[ £ it 23
T 1) R EE500% A fE [ Al BB L AR - (REREE
/35,363,000 7T (AEE 70 4922,044,000M FH 45 ) ©

3 22 B 2 W 3 I ) 7S 5= L BB /2 RIBGMIC
Bras Power } 55 2R 78 58 s A% 32 2 Idiwan Solarit!
Mzt - AEERSRATIOEZMEN
[ZEE R REER YL - BIEMNEEIRE REEIE
B o

AJFE [ AT B SE AR O E RAF RGO T

@) LHbA FA#E 1T & BGMC Holdings Berhad
(I BGMC Holdings | ) # R BB S EE A1
ELMAIERAEIRELER - BEAY
5,363,000 7T

(b) 3B BIEHAR B bt AT () T B8 48 S AR
HE R FIER AFRE LR /Y

© MRTAFaHDIREF - o] E QA
BRI #% B 7] B8 o] ] 82348 5T B EBGMC
HoldingsiRiE A i B F A ER D 2 =1
20%)[EE RETARE

(d)  BGMC Holdings#& B #EZ IR L A RIE &
it B Hh R A AR AR
152 BBk (] & 4> 0] & [0 o] 88 #4048 Sr iR 83
mAatEl EEAFIRAED SR
BERERABARTBER - BREBETH
ZEENLRIREAREABERT - 1
RFTA A EE LA R E R RITHNTE
=B RFHAL

(e) LA TRIBRERER BB iH P [l r] 4
BB S P% K [FIBGMC HoldingsZ {745 & -
B KRR,
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21. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares (continued)

()

BGMC Holdings shall have the right to receive notice of any general
meeting of the members and to attend such meeting but shall have
no right, unless otherwise permitted under Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at any general
meeting of the Land Companies, except that BGMC Holdings shall
have one (1) vote for each RCPS fully paid up with conditions as stated
in the subscription agreement;

(i) during such period as any fixed RCPS dividend or any part
thereof that has been declared for payment remains in arrear
and unpaid, such period starting from a date falling not later
than twelve (12) months after the due date of the relevant sum
of the fixed RCPS dividend;

(i) upon any resolution which varies or is deemed to vary the rights
attached to the RCPS;

(i) upon any resolution which creates or issues (i) shares ranking in
priority to or pari passu with the RCPS in relation to participation
in profits or assets of the Company or (ii) equity share capital
except for the RCPS which is not in all respects uniform with the
Ordinary Shares;

(iv) upon any resolution which would result in a change in the
dividend policy of the RCPS which deviates from the terms as set
out under this Agreement;

(v) appointment of a receiver or an administrator over the
Company'’s assets, and (in the case of voluntary liquidation) an
application for the appointment of a liquidator, determining
the liquidator's remuneration or making any other insolvency
decision whereby the Company may be wound up; or

(vi) upon any resolution for the winding up of the Company;

In the event of winding-up or return of capital of the Land Companies,
RCPS holders have the right to receive, in priority to holders of
ordinary shares, the cash payment in full of the subscription price of
the RCPS after the payment and discharge of all debts and liabilities
of the Land Companies and the costs of winding-up or such capital
reduction exercise;

RCPS holders shall have no voting rights save for matters relating to,
among others, the variation of the rights attached to RCPS, a change
in dividend policy, the creation of equity share capital except for
RCPS which is not in all aspects uniform with ordinary shares and the
winding-up of the Land Companies;

e M RRME

21. RA R E ATERE K RIVIRE (&)

BGMC Holdings 578 & AR IR SR AT R B K
EMREWHEESBAT - HHRIEETK
FETE2016F R RNESBITH A » HRIERER
e VNSIER AR E PN e A
AR Z » MBGMC Holdings A B
EREREMBAIER TSRELKRES
—(WERRE  WERBEATEA ST
FRR

() BEIREMRETE A E D A] 8 i0E 5k 5%
B B ER H AT 2B B HE R e AR S A+F
B - ARESEEAEETH
fE A s B AR S R EIRE R &
T2 B AR AT#EE

(i) EHERREEE AR E A SR E
P B s A ) B AL DR R ER

(i) BIRKBEITORD FARAGMKE
RO AERE AP ¢S
BLH = B[R A7 B9 AR ) sk (i) AR B R
AR (BRI IR 2 7677 E B2 A
95— ) A] B (2] A] S8R E SE ) BV (AR

A o

INFRIR G

(iv) RIBEEERA] fE O ] S 3 S A AR IR
R IR BN M A Bl AN 195k P L 165K
EVE(DRES -

V) MARFEEZETEEAIEEA
(B ERERIEN) RBEEEEE
A EERRAF SR EAEAM
ERTE (ARR]ATBERILIZR) © 3

vi) BRAARBBENEMARESR

— B RARBRIREEAR - AN
KEGTTHABMAEERAERFRN
HZEARHRITEIR AR - AR B A R e
FBRFFA AR BRI A AR
AED R SRELNEEREENRSE

Eo
N

AEORERELRFEBEARTEZAR
S MR (R ERE) A e AT E iR E T
PP REMEERT « ERERERMEE - &
SRR AR 25 (R O AT SR ST AR S
REMB T ELIFEE B —2) kit
RABRABNEERI ;
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21. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 21. AT EEE A ERE L RNVIRE (E)

Shares (continued)

(i) Without the prior written consent of BGMC Holdings, the Land
Companies shall not, among others, sell, pledge, charge, mortgage,
transfer, dispose of or otherwise subject to any security interests or
encumbrances to any of its properties or assets, including the land;
and

() The RCPS is redeemable by Land Companies for cash based on
USD1.00 per RCPS at any time after the date of allotment and issue of
the RCPS.

On 19 January 2022, Idiga Holding Sdn. Bhd. (Idiga Holding), the sole
shareholder of the ordinary shares of Machang Companies had entered
into a deed of arrangement with reNIKOLA. Pursuant to the deed of
arrangement, Machang Estate (I) would redeem all existing RCPS issued
by Machang Estate (Il) at their original price. Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, all RCPS were redeemable by Machang Estate (Il) for cash
based on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any time after the
date of allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the period from 1 October
2020 to 31 March 2023, the Group agreed to not exercise the conversion
features of the RCPS in Machang Estate (Il) and Machang Estate (II) would
redeem all RCPS held by the Group after the completion of the disposal
of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power in accordance with
deed of arrangement between reNIKOLA and Idiga Holding. As at 31 March
2023, the Group had the investment in RCPS of Machang Estate (ll) of
approximately RM3,145,000.

On 24 March 2022, Bras Ventures Bhd. (Bras Ventures), the sole shareholder
of Kuala Muda Estate had entered into a deed of arrangement with
reNIKOLA, pursuant to which Kuala Muda Estate would redeem all existing
RCPS issued by Kuala Muda Estate at their original price. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement, all RCPS were redeemable by Kuala Muda Estate
for cash based on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any time
after the date of allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the period from
1 October 2020 to 31 March 2023, the Group agreed to not exercise the
conversion features of the RCPS in Kuala Muda Estate and Kuala Muda
Estate would redeem all RCPS held by the Group after the completion
of the disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power
in accordance with deed of arrangement between reNIKOLA and Bras
Ventures. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had the investment in RCPS of
Kuala Muda Estate of approximately RM2,549,000.
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()  HRABGMC Holdings®IBLEEZEERE © Tib
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@ - DABMEGR S -

R2022F1A19R - BEAREEKRME -
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21. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 21. AT EEE A ERE L RNVIRE (E)
Shares (continued)

On 30 April 2023, Kuala Muda Estate and Machang Estate (II) have fully 7202354 A30H - Kuala Muda Estate &z Machang

redeemed the RCPS of RM2,549,000 and RM3,145,000 respectively. Estate (I)E % 5!l 2 HEE [0 7] & [0] A] 85 3248 S0 A%
2,549,000/ 25 5 123,145,000/ 5 ©

22. Intangible Assets 22. BILEE

Deposits paid
Intangible for computer

assets software Total
I

BILEE [EENE: & @t

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

THER THER THES

Cost AR

At 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 720224 18 K%2023F3H31H 1,386 549 1,935
Addition NE 48 - 48
At 31 March 2024 1202453A31H 1,434 549 1,983
Accumulated amortisation ESg 1

At 1 April 2022 R2022F4 411 693 - 693
Amortisation for the year NEEHH 278 - 278
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 720233 318 &%2023F4H 18 971 - 971
Amortisaton for the year N E S 286 - 286
At 31 March 2024 72024%3A31H 1,257 - 1,257
Net book value BREFE

At 31 March 2024 7202453 A31H 177 549 726
At 31 March 2023 720233 H31H 415 549 964
As at 31 March 2024, the net book value of RM177,000 (2023: RM415,000) M202453 A31H - BREF(E 177,000 F FF
represents the project software and human resources system. (2023%F : 415000 E ) IEIEBHHRANE
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23. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 23. E 5 R EMEWEIE  RERFEN

Expenses B X
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
120244F 20234
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Trade receivables: B 5 EGRIA
Third parties F=H 17,315 47,168
Related parties RaE 1 1
Less: provision for expected credit loss W TEEMEEEEEE (10,200) (19,627)
7,116 27,542
Retention receivables: REBESFEWFRIA
Third parties F=H 33 3,461
Less: provision for expected credit loss B TEEMEEEEEE - (4)
33 3,457
Other receivables: H At EYGRIR
Third parties E=F 13,317 14,535
Related parties RaiE s 6,822 4,969
Less: provision for expected credit loss B TERREEEEEE (5,961) (6,824)
14,178 12,680
Refundable deposits AR EER 1,001 278
Building construction related deposits BFREERBELS 1,754 2,991
Prepaid expenses TEfR 208 204
Prepaid expenses to suppliers and sub-contractor AN THER R BEHNRXS 1,413 3713
25,703 50,865

ST AE 5 B UGRIR M BEE )5 6 R SR R B

unsecured and interest-free. K8 o

Amounts owing by related parties included under trade receivables are

FEARAMEUGRIEMBE T BRI BES
BAKRERAXNZAY  REER 28K
WENREE -

Amounts owing by related parties included under other receivables which
arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf by the Group, are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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23. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid

Expenses (continued)

Trade and retention receivables of the Group comprise amounts receivable
from sales of goods and services rendered in connection with contract with
customers. The credit period granted to the customers ranges from 30 to
90 days (2023: 30 to 90 days).

No interest is charged on the outstanding balance.

As of the end of the reporting period, there was significant concentration
of credit risk arising from amounts owing by three (2023: two) major
customers which accounted for 68% (2023: 64%) of total trade receivables.
The extension of credit to and the repayments from customers are closely
monitored by the management to ensure that they adhere to the agreed
credit term and policies.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and retention receivables
presented based on the invoice date (net of provision for loss allowance of
trade and retention receivables) at the end of each reporting period:

e MR RR MR

23. BEE RHMBWFRIE REKRFAN
A< ()

AEBE S RREFSEWIEBRIEREHERS
BmERAENEPIREMNRISHOERGIE - 1T
BEEHEEBHNF30E90H (20234 : 30290
AH) -

B A EE SRR AT A R -

REEER - KE=F(2023F : MB)XTER
FPHEAFENEERRBEST  HEFHREW
FRIBHBEE68%(20234F : 64%) » BIRE T )BT
EFEEHEREESNER  BRESEST
WEREE B RS °

REBRERRZERBAM2I2EZRRES
JE WK IR (REHORR E 5 R AR 8 & FEUGR IR B 1R 7

ERRE DM T

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 R20234F
3A31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM'000
THESE TIRE S
0to 30 days 0&30H 6,290 12,879
31 to 90 days 31290H 3 2,261
Over 90 days 90BN E 856 15,859
7,149 30,999
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23. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 23. E 5 R EMEWEIE  RERFEN

Expenses (continued) B (&)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade and retention receivables: B 5 MRES EWIEREEEELER
RM'000

THER
At 1 April 2022 20224 H1H 21,856
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FRREBERD (6,550)
Increase in loss allowance for the year FABEREIL M 4,325
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31RH 19,631
Written-off as uncollectible during the year RAFEEME AT AU E (48)
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FAREBERE (11,515)
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREEREIZ M 2,132
At 31 March 2024 72024%3A31H 10,200
Reconciliation of loss allowance for other receivables: A Ui R IE B 1B BB 2 T BR

RM'000

THER
At 1 April 2022 202294 H1H 2,342
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FRREBERD (4571)
Increase in loss allowance for the year FABEREEIL M 4933
At 31 March 2023 20233 A31H 6,824
Written-off as uncollectible during the year RAFEMEE AR YD (263)
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FAREBERE (600)
At 31 March 2024 202453 H31H 5,961
As at 31 March 2024, the Group provided an impairment loss of other R2024F3H318 - NEERER—HBEENQT]
receivables owing from a related company of RM4,722,000 (2023: 2 EHo At FE YR IB FT R (B B 154,722,000 8 &
RM4,933,000). (20234F : 4,933,000M &) °
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the HZE2024F3831BN2023F3A3NHEERNE
year 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in Note 5. 5 I E A FE MR IR R (B AT R B SR PR RES -
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24. Contract Assets/(Liabilities)

e M RRME

24. ENEE(BE)

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2024 2023 2022
7202445 20234 20224
3H31H 3H31H 4H1H
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEE THEE FhER
Contract assets BHEE
Arising from performance under REBITRESGH
construction contracts 82,321 77,087 140,633
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIEERE (24,179) (25,813) (25,114)
58,142 51,274 115,519
Contract liabilities EHaE (9,316) (4,504) (7,425)

The contract assets represent the Group's right to receive consideration for
work completed but not yet billed because the rights are conditional upon
the satisfaction by the customers on the construction work completed by
the Group and the work is pending for the certification by the customers.
The contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains the
certification of the completed construction work from the customers.

Included in contract assets are retention receivables for contract works
amounted to approximately RM39,707,000 (2023: RM46,647,000).

Included in the contract assets are amounts of RM3,394,000 at 31 March
2024 (2023: RM3,891,000) due from the related parties of which RM3,394,000
(2023: RM3,394,000) are retention receivables.

No contract liabilities at 31 March 2024 (2023: RM47,000) are due to the
related parties.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets
recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the construction period once certain specified
milestone are reached. As at 31 March 2023 and 2024, the Group did not
receive any upfront deposits from customers.

BHEERASENCTRERRERENT
RKEBRENEN  REZAEENAGER
HAKBAMTRERTIRERIMERBHAIRE
EEFEPZE © i SHEEN TR RS
(ERAEEARCUATKEETIERGEP
RA) ANBESBRELHRYGR -

AHMBERRANIRRELEWHEY
39,707, 000K E 45 (20234F © 46,647,000FKE 45 ) °

R2024F3H318 - GHEEBIERENE S
TH3,394,0004K 2 5 (20234F : 3,891,000 45 )
H AR 3,394,000 T 43 (20234F  3,394,0004K 7 45 )
BIRES BRI -

R2024F3 8318 MEEMBEH INANEE
(20234 : 47,0004KE ) o

TEANEET RN MBS ERER DT

REERBESNBIEERNEERENER
ATHETERBROBESFHNREHEE -
HR2023F M20245F3A31H - AEBWEL R
BT AT ERIE & o
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24. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from 12
months to 24 months for 5% of the contract value. This amount is included
in contract assets until the end of the retention period at the Group's
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the issuance of certificate
of making good defect by the customer.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets because the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle ranging from 1

to 2 years.

Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during the

24. SNEE (BE) (&)

REE—RIT A FF T 1208 A 224108 A B8R EE
THE - RESESREAOEE - L8R

ABREE BERBLHEER ~A5EHEA
REUWEN % B A SR RE R BUR N B P 3 g I

B
AEEBRSANEESBARDEE  HA
RNEFEA RN F1E2EH —RLBBREAE
BREEE -

AEEENEENANABNERES

year:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZ20245F HZ2023F
3A31H 3A31H
LLFE IEFE
RM’000 RM'000
FHES THRE S
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year REVERBRENEOEE
recognised as revenue 4,387 7,097
Contract assets (other than retention sums) at the REVIEEEE 5 FEWGRIAR
beginning of the year transferred to trade receivables & #IEE(TNEERFESR) 6,989 56,867
Retention sums receivables included in contract assets R EYEEEE 5 ElEE A
at the beginning of the year transferred to trade FAGHEENERRES
receivables 9,151 18,787

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for contract assets in accordance with simplified approach set

TRETEARIRER MRS 2R F o5k ATl
T ERA N EERANEHRREEERE

outin IFRS 9. 5
RM'000
THER
At 1 April 2022 20224 H1H 25,114
Written off as uncollectible during the year RS i 3E A A AT U E] (3,762)
Reversal of impairment during the year RAFEREREE (6,216)
Increase in loss allowance for the year FANBEEEIL M 10677
At 31 March 2023 20233 H31H 25813
Written off as uncollectible during the year AN R AT e (1,105)
Reversal of impairment during the year RAFEREREE (831)
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREIERHEE N 302
At 31 March 2024 A2024F3H31H 24,179
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e MR RME
25. Fixed Deposits 25. EHIER

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

120245 20234

3A31H 3A31H

RM’000 RM'000

FHER THER

Fixed deposits with licensed banks: HBiRT 2 TR ¢

Ringgit Malaysia R EME R 30,509 28,358
As at 31 March 2024, fixed deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging 2024534318 - EHTFERIREEEFEN T
from 1.95% to 2.80% (2023: 1.73% to 2.34%) per annum, with maturity 1.95% 2 2.80% (2023 4F : 1.73%2£2.34%) 5 B °
period ranging from 30 to 365 days (2023: 30 to 365 days). Included in fixed EIHAR N T 30K E= 365K (2023 4F 1 30K E 365
deposits as at 31 March 2024 are pledged fixed deposits of approximately K)o R2024F3 A3 AN TEHRGFERBEEER
RM 1,557,000 (2023: RM3,251,000), restricted fixed deposits of approximately TE BB 17 5K 491,557,000 5 5 (2023 4F + 3,251,000
RM2,872,000 (2023: RM2,811,000) and restricted bank balances of MER) « ZRHE TR L2872,000 5 15
RM26,080,000 (2023: RM22,296,000) for borrowings and banking facilities (20234F : 2,811,000MF 45 ) J& IR Il $R17 45 84
(including performance bonds) disclosed in Note 29. 26,080,000 2 47 (20234F : 22,296,000WR & #F ) &

RITRE (BREBARE) - R0 EE

26. Cash and Bank Balances 26. R RIBITHER

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

120245 20234

3A31H 3A31H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER FHE S

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 6,497 1,547
The Group's cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are AEEREREOBMHBESRRSEEYWIUAT

denominated in the following currencies: FIEHEETE -

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

20245 20234

3A31H 3A31H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER FRE SR

Hong Kong Dollar BIT 26 6

United States Dollar EVIv 16 15

Ringgit Malaysia R EME R 6,455 1,526

6,497 1,547
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27. Trade and Other Payables

27. ES R EMENARIE

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
120244F 20234
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’000 RM'000
hFss FHEH FHRE R
Trade payables: 2 S IE IR -

Third parties F=h 31,483 40,595
Retention sum payables: JEHRZE R

Third parties F=H 16,902 14,496
Other payables: HAbERTFIA -

Third parties E=F (@), (o) 5,307 44,144
Amount owing to related parties REREE T FOR 2,604 3175
Accrued staff costs FERT B TR 700 586
Accrued building construction related expenses  FEFTIEF AR 33,412 25,947
Other accrued expenses Hub et 1,664 748
Goods and services tax payable FEA P M RS AR 10 2,689

92,082 132,380

Amounts owing to related parties are unsecured and interest-free.

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and
ongoing costs. The credit period granted to the Group for trade purchase
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2023: 30 to 60 days).

The credit period on retention sum payables is 24 months (2023: 24
months) after completion of construction.

Included in other payables as at 31 March 2024 is amount owing to a

director amounted to RM61,000 (2023: RM61,000), is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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e M RRME

27. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the

27. ES R EMEMSFIEE)

HENERAHZEHEMNS

invoice dates.

RIEEER AT -

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

1202445F 20234

3A31H 3H31H

RM’000 RM'000

FHER FRE S

0-30 days 0%30H 8,699 14,841

1-90 days 31290H 4,900 4378

Over 90 days 90B A 17,884 21,376

31,483 40,595

Notes:— st - —

(@  On 19 January 2022, BGMC Holdings, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, (@ H202F1 198 © HE 2 &K B XA FBGMC

has entered into an advance agreement ("Advance Agreement with BGMC
Holdings") with reNIKOLA. As at 31 March 2023, the advance from reNIKOLA
to BGMC Holdings was amounted to RM8,800,000 which was included in other
payables. Pursuant to the Advance Agreement with BGMC Holdings, the RCPS held
by the Group as disclosed in Note 21 shall be pledged to the advance in favour of
reNIKOLA. The amount was interest-free and repayable upon the completion of the
disposal of BGMC Bras Power. During the year ended 31 March 2024, in June 2023,
the Group has repaid the advance of RM8,800,000 by cash.

BGMC Corporation has entered into the reNIKOLA Advance agreement on 24
March 2022 and the Supplemental reNIKOLA Advance Agreement on 13 May
2022 (Collectively known as “Advance Agreements”) with reNIKOLA. As at 31
March 2023, the advance from reNIKOLA to BGMC Corporation was amounted to
RM27,732,000 was included in other payables. Pursuant to the Advance Agreements,
the redeemable convertible preference shares issued by BGMC Bras Power to
BGMC Corporation in the aggregate value of approximately RM89,000,000 were
the security of the advance. The amount was interest-free and repayable upon the
completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power. During the year ended 31 March
2024, the Group has repaid RM26,231,000 of which RM18,671,000 was offset with
the amount due from BGMC Bras Power and RM7,560,000 was repaid by cash. As at
31 March 2024, the advance amounted to RM1,501,000 which is included in other
payables. The amount is interest-free and repayable on demand.

Holdings £ reNIKOLA 5] 32 2 & 1% & ([ B& BGMC
Holdings ¥ B & 15 3% | ) - M 2023F3A31H -
reNIKOLATEIBGMC Holdings#4& 8,800,000/ 2 45 2 51
ANE M EA F0E o R R EEBGMC Holdings ) 24 & 1
AR B A R) B B AT B R (8 S AR (FAMTRE
T&E&)JEL/{reN\KOLAﬁ'F‘/\)\T’Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁa EA
FIE AR B MR TERK E & BGMC Bras Power i & F
Bi8 - HZE2024F3A31BILFE - 20235 6A -
REBE B AR £ (B8 24 3K8,800,000/ E 45 ©

(b)  BGMC Corporation £ 7220224 3 A 24 H £d reNIKOLA
A reNIKOLAB B 5% - WA 202245 B13 AT
reNIKOLARVE i 7t e (RTB Bl ZSBEWHE]) -
7202343 A31 8 * reNIKOLA [A] BGMC Corporation
#$E027,732000MFH FFE T AR M ER FRIE - BB
. E ¥ » BGMC Bras Power [A] BGMC Corporation
E5 1T 42 (8 #989,000,000 M8 & 45 HY) 7] & [B] 7] 32 A% 1B
ERABBENER - ZHEARBERREKLE
BGMC Bras Power s FE T (€ 18 o B E2024F 3 A 31
ALLFE  AEEDEE26231,000F 54 - H
18,671,000 7 #F 2 £ JE UK BGMC Bras Power X IE 1K
$4 + 7,560,000 % FFE AR S (B8 © 202443
A318 » #3%1,501,000/ % 45 2 51 A E R 3R
18 o B AR ERARERER -
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] = >
28. Redeemable Secured Loan Stocks 28. AIEEEEAERES
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
#2024F 20234F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH THER
Redeemable secured loan stocks AEDBEAERES 48,515 48,272
Notes:— PIEE : —
@  On 25 May 2021, BGMC Corporation issued an explanatory statement to its (@ #2021 5825H + BGMC Corporationt HARIE A &)
creditors in connection with its proposal to enter into a scheme of arrangement EEOREBERNER T AR(BER]HE
(the “Scheme”) with its creditors pursuant to section 366 of the Companies Act. On EAEBEREARMG T —HEBREEER - 12021F6
16 June 2021, the creditors approved the Scheme at the court convened creditors A168 - BRADER BROBERAGH LIET
meeting. On 13 January 2022, BGMC Corporation obtained the sanction of the High 2 E ° 12202291 138 + BGMC CorporationFta%
Court of Malaya in relation to the Scheme and the court order lodged with the FRESSRARSSERNIE  Ehaee
Companies Commission of Malaysia on 24 January 2022 for registration. R02F VAR EFEFRAERANEZEE » X
VEE D ©
All Scheme Creditors were divided into 2 categories (‘Category A” & “Category B") B RERABIRES REEASRAIEE MK
according to the status of the projects the Scheme Creditor being involved with. moEAE(TABIRIBE]D - REZFER - BB
Pursuant to the Scheme, debt was compromised at a ratio of repayment of RM0.5 MEREAF T RERAGEB A IMEFEERS
for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category A Scheme Creditors as full settlement MEREAREEE  IBEHFRERABEEY
and repayment of RMO.7 for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category B Scheme MEFERDESENLERETT  AREENL
Creditors as full settlement, as a result of which a reduced amount of debt would be BREGESER T RERA(BEANRS
owed to the Scheme Creditors (“Creditor’s Compromised Sum’). The Scheme also Bl ZARNMBREFRERANER AR
required the Scheme Creditors to waive all interest, penalty and/or default interest, ST BEHFE - MENRFE - AN RS
late payment interest, costs and other charges of a similar nature. PHENEMER -
20% of the Creditors' Compromised Sum was to be settled in cash within 3 months 20%EEAFR S REEN AR AEIEARAER
after the effective date. BIEE -
80% of the Creditors’ Compromised Sum was to be settled by converting the same 80%1E 1 A KN f#E & 7815 LA 534 5K BGMC Corporation
into Redeemable Secured Loan Stocks ("RSLS") issued by BGMC Corporation. BOMAERNEEAERER((TEEEERE

REF D EE -

The RSLS would be redeemable at the discretion of BGMC Corporation anytime A& 61 /5 #K I B 7K E % 7 FBGMC Corporations R iE
within 36 months from the issue date at its principal amount with its accrued 8172 AE36ME A MBERRA S R E FERTFI S
interest due and payable by the Company on the redemption date. The RSLS is not B WHARREERASN - JEEEEFE
tradeable nor transferable, the RSLS holders also no voting rights. RSLS was issued HEFTAIRZ ST AIEE @ RLSHA AR ER
to the trustee who acts as a security agent to hold the RSLS on behalf of all Scheme R EEEERERESFEEITTIRAA
Creditors. REAEEERREA  REFMEFTRERAR
ArERAERERES

The RSLS will become due and repayable 36 months from the issue date (i.e. 14 June AJREEA EIRERES BT B B (B1202246 A
2022), interest will be accrued on the outstanding principal amount of the RSLS from 148 )& K368 A AEIAIEE - FIS BN EITHE
the issue date at a rate of return of 1% per annum for the first 12 months, 1.5% per IR BRI A EREAROREERARHE - Al12E
annum from the 13th month to the 24th month and 2% per annum from the 25th RFEEHRER1% - F13E A ZF 248 A FEIHE
month till the due date. #1.5% - 2518 AREFE A FEHREH2%

As at 31 March 2024, the RSLS are secured by the investment properties of 202438318 - AIEEBEFERES A
RM49,385,000 (2023: RM47,971,000) (Note 19). 49,385,000/ 7 i (20234F : 47,971,000/ & 45 ) A%

BRI (IR19) -

During the year, no gain on extinguishment of debts (2023: RM160,000) was RARFE - BEFEEBE (20234  160,0004F
recognised in other income. HR ) BEREA YA AR #ERR o
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29. Borrowings - Secured

e M RRME

29. fEE - CHEH

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
120244F 20234
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Current: B -
Bank overdrafts (a) HRITEL @) - 1411
Bank overdrafts under multiple facilities (b) ZIRE TN 2R1TBESDB) - 1,478
Total HEt - 2,889
Summary of borrowing arrangements are as follows: BELHRMT
(@  Asat 31 March 2024, all bank overdraft were fully settled. (@) FA2024%F3H31H » FTARITE DB
g o
(b)  Multiple facilities, comprising general financing line, contract financing b)) ZEREREARLEEREHESN K

line and blanket contract financing line to finance construction
projects, are RM89,988,000 (2023: RM102,696,000) of which
RM63,963,000 (2023: RM74,166,000) were utilised for the provision of
performance guarantee to the customers and bank overdrafts. The
facilities were secured by corporate guarantee by the Company and/
or its subsidiaries and memorandum of legal charge over deposit
and letter of set-off over fixed deposit of a subsidiary, by creating
restricted bank balances of approximately RM26,080,000 (2023:
RM22,296,000), restricted fixed deposits of approximately RM2,872,000
(2023: RM2,811,000) and pledged fixed deposits of approximately
RM1,557,000 (2023: RM1,516,000), properties owned by the close
family member of a director.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group complied with financial
covenants granted by various banks.

MEEE  GHARERER—REEH
BVEMRIE - /89,988,000 & 5 (20234 :
102,696,000/ 5 45 ) + H H163,963,0004F &
15 (20234F : 74,166,000 5 15 ) O 1E A 1R
BIFEFHBEOERIBITESEA - Z
ERMEDNARAR/REMBARMELR
TR E R R BFRVE L #9552 1750 bA Rt
—HNE AR E R FEREL AR EREE
(77 2B 5 2R HISR1T 45 82 £926,080,000
R HF (20234F & 22,296 000 F 45) ~ =
PR I 72 B 13 2 49 2,872,000 4K 7 45 (2023
12811000 F ) REBEREHEFR
#91,557,0004K % 45 (20234F : 1,516,0004kF
)  EROEKEREEYEERR -

R2024%F 20233 A31H » AEEPRE
TFERIBITIR DB L -

E3R 2024
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e M BHRRME
29. Borrowings - Secured (continued) 29. B -CEH(E)
The remaining maturity periods of borrowings as at 31 March 2023 and 31 M20235F3 A31H K2024F3A31 B 2 BEFI&
March 2024 are as follows: FEINT -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
120245 20235
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TS
On demand or within one year BEREEN—FA - 2,889
The weighted average interest rates per annum for borrowings as at end of RmEBRRZBEMETHERNEDT
the reporting period are as follows:
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
#2024F 20234F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Variable rate: AJEEF R
Bank overdrafts HBITEX N/A RiERA 7.67%
Multiple facilities ZILRE 7.07% 5.82%
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30. Pledge of or Restriction on Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pledge of assets

The Group's RSLS, borrowings and other banking facilities had been secured

by the pledge of the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the

respective assets are as follows:

e M RRME

30. EEK PRI

BEEEA

AEENAER A ERERES - ERMEM
RITRECBBARENEERARER 18
BMEENKRESENAT -

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
7A20245F 20234
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’000 RM'000
PI5E FHER FHE SR
Investment in RCPS (Note 21) AR HE ] Al BB S iR RIS &
(K1zE21) @) = 5694
Fixed deposits (Note 25) TE BT R (B aE25) (b) 30,509 28,358
Investment properties (Note 19) BEMEHTE19) (© 49,385 47,971
79,894 82,023
Notes:— sk © —
@  Asat31 March 2023, investment in RCPS, amounting to approximately RMS5,694,000 @  M2023F3A318  RAJERAERELERNEE

was pledged to advance in favour of reNIKOLA in accordance with the Advance
Agreement with BGMC Holdings as disclosed in Note 27(a).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the advance from reNIKOLA has been fully
settled and the pledged has been released.

Included in the fixed deposits as at 31 March 2024 are pledged fixed deposits,
restricted fixed deposits and restricted bank balances for borrowings and other
banking facilities as disclosed in Notes 25 and 29.

As at 31 March 2024, investment properties of RM49,385,000 (Note 19) (2023:
RM47,971,000) were pledged to RSLS as disclosed in Note 28.

495,694,000 FK & 5 AR & B2 BGMC Holdings 2 & 13 :%
LAreNIKOLABZm AERBENEF - RIE270)

HE2024F3A31BIEFE » reNIKOLAR R E &
HEEE - WIS R -

(b)  FRANRTEE25 R 2OFTHIFR - $A20244F3 A31 H A E EF
GFHREEEENDEREHER  SREITHT
R ZR IR TERIA R EMIRITRE -

© 202453 A318 - LEYZ£49,385000F F (Ff

5519) (20234 : 47,971,000/ F 45 ) B3R T o] & 0]
BEFRERES (A28 HEE) -
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FEMBRRME
31. Lease Liabilities 31. HEAE
Present Present
value of value of
Lease lease Lease lease
payment payments payment payments
HEFFR HEARRE e HEMNKRE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2024 2023 2023
20245 20244 20234 R20234F
3A31H 3A31H 3H31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHES FHES FHE R FHE R
Within one year —FR 273 252 235 213
In the second to fifth years, RE_EFRF
Inclusive (BIEEEME) 156 143 36 33
429 395 271 246
Less: Future finance charges T RIRBE R (34) = (25) -
Present value of lease liabilites ~ FAE & EIRE 395 395 246 246
Less: Amount due for settlement 3 : 121 B R H]
within 12 months (shown under {BiEH & %8
current liabilities) (REBaET2%)) - (252) - (213)
Amount due for settlement A28 A ?é\ i)
after 12 months pal|p=iF = 143 - 33
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e BRI
31. Lease Liabilities (continued) 31. HE& & (&)
At 31 March 2024, the average effective borrowing rate was 7.24% (2023: R2024F3A31H - FHEREEFEE724%
5.65%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the (20234 : 565%) ° FIRRELHBHEETE @ K&
Group to fair value interest rate risk. A EENFEFNERRE
It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment. REENHEAEBEEDE  BEREH R
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases as at 31 March 202453 A3 1 BRVEHE T AAERBAS =
2024 are fixed at respective contract rates ranging from 7.37% to 9.78% BITI737%ZE9.78%(2023%F 1 4.94%Z6.18%)
(2023: 4.94% to 6.18%) per annum. HEREASLIFIE -
32. Share Capital 32. R4
The share capital as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 represents the 20233 831 H %2024 3 A31 BB RAIER
share capital of the Company with details as follows: NRIAMRA - FIB
Number
of shares Amount Amount
R EE KX} KX}
HK$ RM’000
BT THER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREHE.OIBTINEER
Authorised: SEE :
Asat 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 20224 A18 ~ 20233 H31H
31 March 2024 }2024F3H31H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
Asat 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 20224 H18 ~ 2023F3H31H
31 March 2024 }2024F3A31H 1,800,000,000 18,000 9,862
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e MR RRME

33. Reserves 33. #fE
(@) Group (@) F£H
The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and AEBRMDEEMFEENSBLEZHR
movements therein are presented in the consolidated statement of IREREREERES -

changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) ZA&AF]
Details of movements in the Company's reserves are as follows: RARRESEFFHOT

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

IR a8 = BEr

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

FHER FHERE FHRE R

At 1 April 2022 F20224F4 818 135,571 (94,666) 40,905
Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEFEREHEEELRRR

for the year - (5,362) (5,362)

At 31 March 2023 720233 A31H 135,571 (100,028) 35,543
Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEEELEHEEIERE

for the year - (946) (946)

At 31 March 2024 720243 H831H 135,571 (100,974) 34,597
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e M RRME

33. Reserves (continued) 33. f#fE (&)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves () REENUHERAZR
() Share premium (i) BEE
Share premium represents premium from the issue of ordinary B ERATFEaREERITA
shares of the Company above par value in prior years. RNAEIEBRAFTEENRE -
(ii) Redeemable preference shares reserves (i) TEEELRHFE
Redeemable preference shares reserve represents the value of AIEEME LR EEREAEE D 3T
the unexercised equity component of redeemable preference BRMELRARITHERAEL S HE
share issued by the Group. 8o
(iii) Other reserve (iii) HttrE
(@) The transfer of the difference between the nominal @@ 2016F 126 EHETHKELRD
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and Ak BRE B HKRIER A RE
the nominal amount of the issued share capital of BGMC RN R)EET 2 IR TE B & BGMC
Holdings after the Company became the ultimate holding Holdings B B/ TRR AN (B 2 Z= 58
company of the Group upon the completion of the o

reorganisation on 6 December 2016.

(b) The repayment of amounts due to directors of by EAEAZRA—E50 12017
RM65,000,000 in BGMC Holdings through the issue of 1 A 268 3@ #BABGMC Holdings
additional shares by BGMC Holdings to BGMC Malaysia [M BGMC Malaysia Limited % 17 %8
Limited on 26 January 2017 as part of the reorganisation SN A5 18 42 JE {5 BGMC Holdings
requirements. The directors mentioned are the controlling ¥ EFKIB65,000000MFEFHF o E
shareholders of the Group. MEERNEEITARME -
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e MR RRME

34. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

34. GEBRERERME

(a) MEFBFELABENES

Borrowings - Other  Total liabilities
secured  Lease liabilities RSLS payables  from financing
(Note 29) (Note 31) (Note28)  (Note 27(a), (b)) activities
TREEFEA Hitr
BE-BER HESE ENES EfFE REMEEH
(Hiit29) (Hit31) (Witzs) (Ht2ze) )  WRESE
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
FitEs THER THER ThEr THER
At 1 April 2022 R02%4A818 2,7% 425 - 8,800 12019
Changesin cash flows Renes (14,220) (2510) - 27,732 11,002
Non-cash changes FReEE
~Transfer from trade payables -BRBZIENTE - - 47897 - 47897
- Interest charged —5TARE 227 1,068 535 - 3875
~ Lease modification —-HEBR - 202 - - 202
- Gain on extinguishment of debts —EEEBIS - - (160) - (160)
Movements in liabilities directly associated B EABERE 2 BE
with assets classified as held for sales ERRENAGES 12043 1,061 - - 13,104
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 #0363 831 B RA3E4A 1A 2889 246 4807 36532 87939
Changes in cash flows Benegy 4849 (540) (477) (16,360) (12528)
Non-cash changes FReE
- Interest charged 5T AFE 1865 116 720 - 2,701
- Additional leases -FIMIE - 48 - - 48)
- Disposal of a subsidiary ~HERBAR (9,603) 91 - - 9512)
- Settlernent by offsetting amount due — BRI EWBGMC Bras
from BGMC Bras Power PowerFUELE - - - (18671) (18671)
At 31 March 2024 2024530318 - 395 48,515 1,501 50,411
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34. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(continued)

(b) Major non-cash transaction

U]

(i)

(i)

During the year, the Group settled trade payables by transfer of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RM 190,000 (2023:
RM948,000).

During the year, other receivables amounted to RM430,000 was
offset with trade payables.

During the year, amount of RM89,300,000 redemption price of
redeemable preference shares was settled by reNIKOLA. The
amount was offset against the cash consideration of disposal of
the interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power.

As at 31 March 2024, remaining unsettled balance of the cash
consideration of the disposal of the interest in 95% ordinary
shares in BGMC Bras Power amounted to RM2,140,000 was

recognised in other receivables.

e MR RR MR

34. GEBRERERMEE(E)

(b) TEFRERS

0]

(i)

(iff)

NAEE » REBEBBEEYE W
B M & 18 4515 8 5 FE S FRIE 190,000k
(20234 © 948 000K ) ©

RAFEE - B E R FRTE430,00098F
%EE@%%%HWQT&%

RAREE - reNIKOLAE 475 AJ fE BB

5 I /9 BB (2] 1B 89,300,000 K 5 4 © 3%

%%ﬁaiﬁiﬁ’iBGMC Bras PowerHJ95%
AREER S REEE -

MR2024F3 4318 » H & BGMC Bras
Power H)95% & 3 % #E 25 HY 3R & (B
HIER T AR A E 522,140 000 H B
P EAD PR R IB AR FERR o

RAFE  AEEZBEHEEK

(iv) During the year, the Group settled advance from reNIKOLA (iv)
by offsetting with the amount due from BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power 5k I8 18,671,000 Mk &
amounted to RM18,671,000. Fr#E B reNIKOLARY X o
35. Capital Commitments 35. EAEIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had approved and contracted RIREHR - $%@Eﬁt)ﬁ%—t@&§%¥&%
for investment properties under construction, as follows: EETRIAY - BRWT -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
#2024F 20235
3A31H 3H31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TS
Approved and contracted for: B NMETA -
Investment properties under constructions EEEEME - 2,878
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36. Related Party Transaction 36. BEARS
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MRS REMITDTIREEI)  AEEH
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties REZE2023F N2024F3 A31 B I FEHEE
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024:- ETATRS « —

BRI 7 ) A R RIS BB AE23 ~ 24 %

(@)  The details of balances with related parties are set out in Notes 23, 24

—
Q
=

and 27. 27 °
(b) The remuneration of the directors and key management including b)) BEERTETEAS(BEARTETELT
chief executive of the Company is disclosed in Note 13. A B ) NI 521342 5% o
37. Subsidiaries 37. B A F
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and of FEWHB AR REBEAEEM 22 Hi
which RM63,593,000 (2023: RM63,283,000) is repayable in June 2025 and 63,593,000 2 45 (20234F : 63,283,0000R 5 #F )78
the remaining amounts due are repayable on demand. 202556 A1EE - TR N2 HAF BRI ZKE
= o
The amounts due to subsidiaries and related parties are unsecured, interest- FERB AT NEE A EAsEEE A8 K
free and repayable on demand. BIREREE -
The Company has the following subsidiaries: RARHMBARAT -
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
HMARL/ FRE BETR NS
HEARER T HREBRRE FrisbER TEEE
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 035
3A31H 3A31H
Directly Owned
ERER
BGMC Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands/ USD100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Malaysia
BGMC Malaysia Limited EBRLHE/ 10057 REBR
SRAE
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37. (B A E (&)

37. Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
AR/ ERR BEAR KRR
HWEARER gewy HREERRE sl R TEEH
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
20245 RANBE
3A31R 3A318

Indirectly Owned

e

BGMC Holdings Berhad Malaysia RM1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

BGMC Holdings Berhad SRAR 1000555 RAER

BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1 100% 100%  Investmentin the solar power infrastructure

business

BGMC Energy Sdln. Bhd. SRASE INER REAGHEEERER

BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM10,000,000 100% 100%  Building construction and investment holding

BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. SRES 100000007/ 4 BFRALRARR

Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Supply and installation of elevators

Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (#/) SR 750000/ 5 45 HERTEEH

Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Mechanical and electrical engineering and

investment holding

Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (A7) BRED 750000% 4 BIRREEER

Indirectly Owned

HERE

Headway Construction Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia RM7,650,000 51% 51%  Earthworks and infrastructure works

Headway Construction Sdn. Bhd.(47##b)) BRED 7,650,000 & ¢ tHRERTR

BGMC BRAS Power Sdn. Bhd. (Note (a)) Malaysia RM100,000 - 95%  Development and construction relating to

provision of renewable energy

BGMC BRAS Power Sdn. Bnd.(#/#2(3) SRAD 1000004 & 4 RBRABERRNER 2R

BGMC Estate Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Holding of investment properties

BGMC Estate Sdn. Bhd. ERED 100H RERENE

Notes:— st - —

@  On 26 April 2023, BGMC Bras Power ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group as @  E R reNIKOLAE 4 B BGMC Bras Power i) & 2 2
the management control and economic interest in BGMC Bras Power have been 1 I AE R 2+ HUBGMC Bras Power 742023 4 A
acquired by reNIKOLA. As a result, the financial results of BGMC Bras Power will no 6B TER/AREEMKTE QTR © Bt - BGMC Bras
longer be consolidated by BGMC, while BGMC Corporation remains as registered Power 89 81 1% £ 45 1§ S B BB A & ff - i BGMC
owner of 95% shares in BGMC Bras Power until reNIKOLA exercises Call Option Corporation 13 # /& BGMC Bras Power 95% f% {3 &)
or BGMC Corporation exercises Put Option. Details are set out in the Company’s +F il BT A & & 2 reNIKOLA 1T {3 32 & HA # =k BGMC
announcements dated 27 June 2022 and 26 April 2023 and the Company's circular Corporationf TEF20H BA#E © FBEHN AR R B
dated 21 September 2022. 202266278 K2023F4 26 BRI R E AR A F]

H 14202299 A21 BH@EK ©
(b)  Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests. (o) HERIEERIERZERBEEAMBAR -
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38. Contingent Liabilities

(@) Asdisclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020,
a subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had

disputes with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed
in completing the works under two contracts arising out of the
same project. Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group's two
performance bonds in the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an
injunction in the High Court against Customer A’s proposed forfeiture
of performance bonds and has obtained an ad-interim injunction
order dated 29 May 2020 against the forfeiture of the performance
bonds by Customer A. On 16 April 2021, the High Court granted the
Group the injunction order. Customer A filed an appeal at the Court
of Appeal against the High Court order. The Court of Appeal on 13
January 2023 dismissed Customer A’s appeal and upheld the High
Court's decision. Customer A did not further appeal to Federal Court

within the deadline 12 February 2023.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which
was withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October 2020,
which was eventually consolidated) to dispute the validity of the
terminations by Customer A and claim against Customer A for (i) losses
of profit of approximately RM35,000,000 (ii) return of retention sum of
approximately RM4,400,000 and (iii) return of the sums under the two
performance bonds amounting to approximately RM25,800,000.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of
approximately RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of
approximately RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration

proceeding against the Group.

The matter was heard in 2022 and 2023.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. The
next hearing of the matter has been fixed for 6-17 October 2025.

The Group’s legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a
stronger case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's

favour.
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38. AAREE

()

NN B B HA20205 6 A30H AL
FTiise - NARE—ENEB AR IE &2
HiBREREESA LAY -

202055 A22H - BPABKEKR EEE
BHRBA - EBIEAEBETEETKFE 8
BETMHOEHRENTRE - TREARER
LR 7 &2 (5] ) R 22 B 40 4R BRI 4925,800,000R 25

-

M2020F5 H27H - REEBEERERARR
W AMR KA S E LB BRSNS - R
202045 A29 A BLE P AR B AR I ERAS
FaRF 2|5 - 2021548168 » %)%
RETAEBERHS - REASHEHRE)
Prrym < A _EFRARTIR S E5F o EEFARR
202351 A13ABEEFAR L5 - #5:
BEERK R - BEAWENE IEBH
(BP2023% 23128 ) A B FHAPTIE H #
— e

ANEE IRE 52202056 A30 B RIBHEL (7
2020F 10 H26 BB W (R B8 A M IEFEL -
BEREEMHA—IBME)  HEPAKRILES
AMBEREREEZRTHATIERERER
AR ERE ¢ ()& BB 493500000008 F
B (i) R IBIRTE 2 494,400,00008 2 15 K (jil)
IRIE 1D B 4R EKAY25,800,0000R F 45 o

20208 178 » BEAEMEIZFF M
AREZ B H I BB R #9126,400,00000 2 45 (BE
BAEIB R E A A R B 224983,000,0004F %

5) o

ZEEH D R20226F K203 F BITHA o

HEGAMERRERES M 2H -
FRFDEETF - ZBETHN2025F10 7
6HZ=17HBIT N —IREH ©

AEENERBERRRAEERNEAN
BN - BEARIRIPERE UHAEEAF
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38. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(b)

On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation received a demand letter
from a licensed bank in Malaysia (“Bank”), in which the Bank alleged
that it had received a demand against a bank guarantee from a
beneficiary (‘Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC Corporation,
in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000, and unless the Beneficiary
withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained from performing its
obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the sum demanded to
the Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by
BGMC Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for
which the Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly
performed its contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation
filed an application (“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court
against the Beneficiary, which restrains the Beneficiary from receiving
the sum demanded by the Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the
Kuala Lumpur High Court granted an interim injunction in favour of
BGMC Corporation, which restrained the Beneficiary, their respective
agents, employees and/or officers from effecting the claims of
the performance bond or receiving the payment or part payment
under the performance bond from the Bank until the disposal of
the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation against the
Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted
a permanent injunction against the Beneficiary in favour of BGMC
Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal against the decision of the
High Court. The estimated payout for the bank guarantee is in the
sum of approximately RM5,500,000 should the Beneficiary’s action
be successful in the appeal. The matter was fixed for hearing on
21 August 2024.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the burden of
proving any mistake in law made by the Honourable High Court for
the appeal is on the Beneficiary while the Beneficiary was still holding
on to the retention sum tantamount to unconscionable conduct since
the alleged back-charges for defects were certified and estimated to
be approximately RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors
consider BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation
and has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these
consolidated financial statements.

e M RRME

38. LAREE(E)

(b)

720204 11 A208  BGMC Corporation £
BB R — R RIT([ZBITH
Rz - ZIRITEES UE 1E BBGMC
CorporationE FPHIZm A ([Z#A ) 2R
FTHEIRZE 495,500 00008 F FF » WHEHRIE
Fan A H =K EBR IERZ R TR 1
THE - BRIZIRITAER20205F11 A 24
ARYEAXNRENFIE

BIEZ @ AGZIRITHRRE - ZRKH
BGMC Corporation [A] % z A HE fH #) — I8
BIHEMEAREER - Zm AFBGMC
Corporation AR & BITH A R o

720205 11 A 23 H * BGMC Corporation £
AARFEAMREEESSEEREETR
HEmARKWBAB(HE]) - #HER
5 2 A WER H RSB 5RIE - 720205
1M A28 - SE¥EEF AR 2K TBGMC
Corporation A BR 75 I 2% 1 BR RF 22 51| <
D EEmAEXENRER - EE
R/ Sa@BEHZBITIREBOREK
MR BIMEBRERBLZE H
FIIBGMC Corporation[A] 3 & A HE B B9 5F 72
BEERAI - K2021F5A208 © HE
WaE A E 2 ABE T A M HBGMC
CorporationBJ ;K AZE < o

X AERBFERMERRE EF - &
RmALFRY - RITERRGEFZLOA
5,500,000/ & 1 © 5% FIBFEF 20248 H21
HER1THRE o

BEAEEEZZERNER  FHRE
it LRI TRERE RN EAER X =
A MEBRARERERTEEITAN
KRB AAFBHREHERERDEE
BANE (A 5T AR 493,644,000 5 o

BEAEEEFERNOESR  EZRA
BGMC Corporation#{ 5f #A 5 B I & -
SEIr A L AR S BT SRR P bz S AL 5
A REEEHERE -
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38. Contingent Liabilities (continued) 38. AR EE(HE)
() Maha Alusteel Sdn. Bhd. (“Maha”) served a notice of demand dated () Maha Alusteel Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mahal)#E#52016
13 July 2022 ("Notice dated 13 July 2022") on BGMC Corporation FRF)EZE46501)(e) 6 ABGMC Corporation
pursuant to Section 465(1)(e) of the Companies Act 2016, demanding FEBHA202F7HI3EMNERBHNE
payment of approximately RM285,000 to be made, failing which, Maha ([BfB2022F7A13AMBHNE]) B
would proceed winding up proceedings against BGMC Corporation. KA #9285,000MEHF - BRI Maha ¥

BGMC Corporation#1T/E 812 ©

In response, BGMC Corporation filed an originating summon (“Encl. {E/& O & - BGMC Corporation 2% {1 5F FA Z
1"), inter alia, to seek for an injunction to restrain Maha from filing a Z (1)) (Hhaig) SkEZ2H< - LA
winding up petition against BGMC Corporation pursuant to the Notice R $lMahatR 1% H 81 &2022F7 A 13 A 88
dated 13 July 2022. On 19 December 2022, the High Court dismissed F4E 2 $IBGMC Corporation #5225 ©
Encl. 1 with costs of RM5,000 to Maha (‘Decision’”). 202124198 - mEEREE T M
1+ b [AlMaha Sz 5,000 & 450 & A (T #
) e
Dissatisfied with the Decision, BGMC Corporation filed an appeal BGMC Corporation ¥f ¥ J& R + 72023 F
against the Decision to Court of Appeal on 4 January 2023 (“Appeal’). 1H48 @ EFERRE LR (T E5R])
BGMC Corporation also sought for an injunction to prevent Maha BGMC Corporation 71 5 3k 28 &l < ([ K 4
from presenting a winding up petition against BGMC Corporation 311) + Py 1EMahatE £ 5F 45 R B ¥/ BGMC
pending the conclusion of the Appeal (“Encl. 31"). The High Court NEREERBAE - ®F /AR RN 2023
had on 27 January 2023, allowed Encl. 31 on the condition that BGMC F1 827 BRAIW 31 - &8 2BGMC
Corporation shall deposit a sum of approximately RM290,000 (inclusive Corporation 78 1§ & %8 9 290,000 M & 5 (&2
of costs RM5,000 awarded by the High Court) (‘Deposited Sum”) FEEE A AR e & 5000 E ) ([ 17
with its solicitor, pending disposal of the Appeal. The Deposited Sum REFEFRTEAD - LAFEE LR o W
will be released to Maha in the event if the Appeal is dismissed, and FERWE L - BEERX S E T Maha
will be refunded to BGMC Corporation if the Appeal is allowed. fid LR EFIEE - B AR E T BGMC

Corporation °

The Court vacated the hearing of the Appeal scheduled on 31 January EREBUBRER2024F1 A31BETH
2024; consequently, the Court of Appeal has fixed the next case FEFERER - AR - FEVARRE BN 20245
management of the Appeal on 21 August 2024 and the hearing of the SH2VHE FFET T —ERGER - I
Appeal on 5 September 2024. 20249 A58 ¥ FEF#ETTERA ©

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors BEAEBZZERNEZ  E225
consider BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation BGMC Corporation#{ 5f 52 8 B i i -
and has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these T A M S 4R A B ISR R P BLEZER A S
consolidated financial statements. A RAEEHRRE -
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e MR RR MR

39. Operating Lease Arrangement 39. REMEERH
As lessor ERHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (Note 19) under operating AREERBLKEHELHEEEREYE (M
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to 19) » KEFHEPN T —EMF - HEKZTE
two years. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay security KPP NRES - WRERE MR E AR
deposits and provide for periodic rental adjustments according to the then Vishe

prevailing market conditions.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on lease are as follows:— THEEWRERBEENZNT « —
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
720245 F2023%
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FTHER THER
Within one year —F R 138 11
In the second year E_F 49 _
187 11
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e MR RRME

40. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

40. KB 2 AR R R

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at BRERNATNRERRZHEMR AT ZER
the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™~
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
#20244F 20234
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
ASSETS &E
Non-Current Assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB AR Z®RE 1 1
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U —FEIFfT /&8 2 B 5K IR 63,593 63,283
63,594 63,284
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H fib e U 308 168 160
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFT /B A Bl 5RIE 34 23
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT4 8% 42 20
Total Current Assets REBEEARE 244 203
Total Assets EESR 63,838 63,487
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEZkEE
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 9,862 9,862
Share premium =B 135,571 135,571
Accumulated losses RitEsE (100,974) (100,028)
Total Equity DB 44,459 45,405
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses H b A~ F0E N FEETRE S 788 1,017
Amounts due to subsidiaries fﬁ RIENGIE ] 18,383 16,857
Amount due to related parties P& 5 5RI8 208 208
Total Liabilities BEA% 19,379 18,082
Total Equity and Liabilities EaRkEERE 63,838 63,487
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41. Events Subsequent to the end of the Reporting

Period

(a)

On 5 April 2024, the Group has incorporated an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Golden Sun Solar Energy Sdn. Bhd., with principal activity
of construction of power plants.

On 19 June 2024, the Board proposed to implement the share
consolidation on the basis that every fifty issued and unissued existing
shares of HK$0.01 each will be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HKS0.50 each. The board lot size is also proposed to be
changed from 4,000 existing shares to 1,000 consolidated shares. The
share consolidation is conditional upon, among other things, the
approval of the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
("EGM"). Details of the share consolidation were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 June 2024.

42, Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2024.

e M RRME

4. BEPEREEIE

R2024F4 A58 » ANEE MK —H
fEl# 2 & Bff /& ‘2 T Golden Sun Solar Energy
Sdn.Bhd. " ZARIKEEXBEHERE
g& o

R2024F6 F190 - EEEEHEHERD
A6t BEEAERTREREECSET
MEBETRARBETREROEHA—KRE
IREE0SOB LA iR - IMEFEHSE
F & & 5 {7 14,0008 3 B Bz {7 B 2043 1,000
IR & BAR D o BRIDEHAEF(EPReE) R’
RRBEERENARE ([REFHIAE]) it
HEIEFTAMEE - RIDEHFBEHRARAT
BEIA2024F6 H19BMAE o

42, #tEFS B/ E

FEMBERERN2024F6 A28 B EEEESHER
MBS -

E3R 2024

EFIERERERAF 199



Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEBEE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five TXEHF|IAEBEBERES 245 - EERAER
years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial statements of the & » Jifst 8 AR A0 TZE 2 2 A TS TRE -
Company is set out below.

Period from

1 October
Year ended Year ended 2020to Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 30 September 30 September
2024 2023 2022 2020 2019
B8z BE 20206 BHE =
2024F 2023 10A1AZ 20204F 2019%F
3A31H 3A31A 20224 9H30H 9H30H
LLFE IHFE 3A31BHME IEFE FFE
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

THES THER THER THER THER

(re-presented)

(&E751)

Turnover from continuing SBICE TS 2

operations ERE 117,070 110,110 285,828 190,473 343,356
Turnover from discontinuing BRI EER

operations e 237 5,078 78918 122,625 10,382
Total turnover BEFER 117,307 115,188 364,746 313,098 353,738
(Loss)/profit before tax from BEREEE 2 BRI

continuing operations (E518),mFl (8,483) 7,286 (47,110) (203,296) (53012)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERiE e, (FX) 277 (489) 2421 (5616) (2,264)
Profit/(loss) and total FE/ R, (BE)

comprehensive income/(loss) REEWE (EE)

for the year/period 1B 974 11,259 (59,299) (198,257) (55,276)
(Loss)/profit attributable to KNAFEE AES

owners of the Comnpany (E18),/mFl (1,164) 11,878 (56,542) (193,543) (53,063)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERTE 171,476 402,811 473,319 839,052 893,711
Total liabilities Bfates 150,454 293,868 375,635 739,639 627,698
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